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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.:  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Regional Health Authority Inc., which comprise the  statement of
financial position as at March 31, 2015, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these  financial statements in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards for government not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Northern Regional Health Authority
Inc. as at March 31, 2015 and  the results of its operations, changes in net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for government not-for-profit organizations.

Other Matter
The comparative figures as at March 31, 2014 and for the year then ended were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants who
expressed an unmodified opinion in their report dated June 18, 2014.

Winnipeg, Manitoba

June 24, 2015 Chartered Accountants

2500 - 201 Portage Ave., Winnipeg, Manitoba, R3B 3K6, Phone: (204) 775-4531, 1 (877) 500-0795





Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

Revenue  
Manitoba Health  (Note 15) 198,528,437 189,775,686
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets  (Note 13) 6,365,283 5,507,144
Non-insured income  5,400,900 5,384,893
Other revenue  4,751,312 4,496,870
Northern patient transportation program recoveries  2,795,839 3,244,053
Ancillary revenue  1,493,265 1,827,853

Total revenue 219,335,036 210,236,499

Expenses  
Acute care  95,273,158 83,154,183
Amortization of capital assets  6,365,283 5,507,144
Ancillary operations  1,489,608 1,862,577
Community based health  21,755,079 19,341,419
Community based home care  8,282,671 7,651,580
Community based mental health  5,824,439 5,055,662
Aging in place/long-term care  14,634,763 13,661,955
Land ambulance  5,832,072 4,911,301
Northern patient transportation  18,729,485 19,583,137
Medical remunerations  34,922,627 34,423,946
Unallocated regional health authority costs  16,930,418 17,151,705

Total expenses 230,039,603 212,304,609

Deficiency of revenue over expenses (10,704,567) (2,068,110)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2015

Investment
in capital

assets

Externally
restricted

Unrestricted 2015 2014

Net assets, beginning of year 11,233,854 10,182 (6,470,444) 4,773,592 6,841,702

Deficiency of revenue over expenses - - (10,704,567) (10,704,567) (2,068,110)

Net changes in investment in capital
assets  (Note 14)

(2,161,143) - 2,161,143 - -

Net assets, end of year 9,072,711 10,182 (15,013,868) (5,930,975) 4,773,592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used for) the following activities  
Operating

Deficiency of revenue over expenses (10,704,567) (2,068,110)
Amortization 6,365,283 5,507,144
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets (6,365,283) (5,507,144)
Deferred revenue recognized in income (5,094,443) (3,221,496)

   (15,799,010) (5,289,606)
Changes in working capital accounts  

Accounts receivable 1,419,218 4,189
Due From Manitoba Health (4,795,950) 275,021
Inventory 18,200 (86,912)
Prepaid expenses (240,892) 6,567
Accounts payable and accruals 1,399,648 2,373,254
Accrued vacation entitlements 335,484 357,684
Deferred revenue 4,121,940 2,740,326

   (13,541,362) 380,523

Financing   
Increase in long-term debt   4,784,348 578,346
Change in pre-retirement obligation   1,899,000 (882,432)
Change in DSM pre-retirement obligation   46,367 (86,153)
Repayment of capital lease obligations   - (47,126)
Receipt of deferred contributions related to capital assets   3,264,341 2,122,801
Change in sick leave benefit obligation   51,952 (189,155)
Change in line of credit   6,189,773 3,571,408

   16,235,781 5,067,689

Capital activity   
Purchases of capital assets   (12,077,318) (11,362,637)

Decrease in cash resources  (9,382,899) (5,914,425)
Cash resources, beginning of year   (245,554) 5,668,871

Cash resources, end of year   (9,628,453) (245,554)

Cash resources are composed of:   
Bank indebtedness   (9,628,453) (245,554)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for
government not-for-profit organizations. 

Nature and purpose of the Authority  

Effective May 28, 2012, a Regulation was registered in respect to the Regional Health Authorities Act, affecting the
amalgamation of Burntwood Regional Health Authority Inc. with the Norman Regional Health Authority Inc. to form a new
authority named the Northern Regional Health Authority Inc. (the "Authority").  The amalgamation of the regional health
authorities was part of the provincial budget announcement made on April 17, 2012 to reduce the number of regional health
authorities in Manitoba.

All operations, properties, liabilities and obligations and agreements with contract facilities of the predecessor organizations
were transferred to the Authority on this date.

The Northern Regional Health Authority is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt from
income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act are met.

Basis of reporting  

These financial statements include the accounts of the following operations of the Authority:

Cormorant Health Care Centre
Cranberry Portage Wellness Centre
Gillam Hospital
Ilford Community Health Centre
Leaf Rapids Health Centre
Lynn Lake Hospital
Northern Consultation Centre
Pikwitonei Community Health Centre
Thicket Portage Community Health Centre
Thompson General Hospital
Wabowden Community Health Centre
Northern Spirit Manor
Flin Flon General Hospital
Flin Flon Personal Care Corporation
Northern Lights Manor
The Pas Health Complex
The Snow Lake Medical Nursing Unit
Thompson Clinic
Northern Consultation Clinic
Sherridon Health Centre

Cash and cash equivalents  

The Authority considers deposits in banks, certificates of deposit and other short-term investments with original maturities of 90
days or less at the date of acquisition as cash and cash equivalents.  

Inventory  

Inventory consists of medical supplies, drugs, linen and other supplies that are measured at average cost, except drugs
which are valued at the actual cost using the first in, first out method.  The cost of inventory includes purchase price,
shipping, unrebated portion of goods and services tax, and provincial tax.  Inventory is expensed when put into use.
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies   (Continued from previous page)

Capital assets  

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution if fair value can be reasonably determined.

Amortization is provided using the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated
useful lives. 

No amortization is provided for construction in progress.

Land improvements
Buildings

Computers
Equipment

Rate
2.5%
2.5%

20.0%
10.0%

Long-lived assets   

Long-lived assets consist of capital assets. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and amortized as described in the
applicable accounting policies.

When the Authority determines that a long-lived asset no longer has any long-term service potential to the Authority, the
excess of its net carrying amount over any residual value is recognized as an expense in the statement of operations. Write-
downs are not reversed.

Revenue recognition  

The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include donations and government grants.

Manitoba Health operating revenue
Under the Health Services Insurance Act and regulations thereto, the Authority is funded primarily by the Province of
Manitoba in accordance with budget arrangements established by Manitoba Health. Operating grants are recorded as
revenue in the period to which they relate.  Grants approved but not received at the end of an accounting period are
accrued.  Where a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in that subsequent period.
These financial statements reflect agreed arrangements approved by Manitoba Health with respect to the year ended March
31, 2015. 

In Globe funding
In Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for Regional Health programs unless otherwise specified as Out of
Globe funding.  This includes volume changes and price increases for the five service categories of Acute Care, Long Term
Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency Response and Transport.  All additional costs in these
five service categories must be absorbed within the global funding provided.

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of the budgeted amount related to In Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the
statement of financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial
statements.  At that time Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the
Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.  Under Manitoba Health policy the Authority is responsible for In Globe deficits,
unless otherwise approved by Manitoba Health.
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies   (Continued from previous page)

Out of Globe funding
Out of Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for specific programs.

Any operating surplus related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial position as a
payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements.  At that time Manitoba
Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.

Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial
position as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements.  At that
time, Manitoba Health determines their final funding approvals which indicate the portion of the deficit that will be paid to the
Region.  Any unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by the Authority.

Amortization of deferred contributions
Where a grant or other restricted contribution, other than endowment contributions, is received but relates to expenses of
one or more future periods, it is deferred and recognized as revenue in the same period as the related expenses are
recognized.  Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets or to repay long-term debt as a lump sum are
deferred and amortized into revenue at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Non-Insured revenue
Non-insured revenue is revenue received for products and services where the recipient does not have Manitoba Health
coverage or where coverage is available from a third party.  Revenue is recognized when the product is received and/or the
service is rendered.  

Other revenue
Other revenue comprises recoveries for a variety of uninsured goods and services sold to patients or external customers.
Revenue is recognized when the good is sold or the service is provided.

Northern patient transportation program recoveries
Northern patient transportation program recoveries comprises recoveries of patient transportation costs.  Revenue is
recognized when the underlying service is provided.

Ancillary revenue
Ancillary revenue comprises amounts received for preferred accommodations, non Manitoba Health activities and parking
fees.  Revenue is recognized when the service is provided.

Contributed materials and services  

Contributions of materials are recognized at fair market value only to the extent that they would normally be purchased and an
official receipt for income tax purposes has been issued to the donors.  

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year.  Because of the difficulty of
determining the fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.

Capital management  

The Authority's objective when managing capital is to maintain sufficient capital to cover its costs of operations.  The
Authority's capital consists of net assets.

The Authority's capital management policy is to meet capital needs with working capital advances from Manitoba Health and
Healthy Living.

The Authority met its externally imposed capital requirements.

There were no changes in the Authority's approach to capital management during the year.
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies   (Continued from previous page)

Employee future benefits  

The Authority's employee future benefit program consists of a multiemployer defined benefit plan, as well as pre-retirement
obligations and sick leave benefits obligation.

Multiemployer defined benefit plan

The majority of the employees of the Authority are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan - HEPP (the “Plan”),
which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees.  Plan members will receive benefits
based on length of service and on the average annualized earnings calculated on the best five of the eleven consecutive years
prior to retirement, termination or death, that provide the highest earnings.  The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the
individual health entities within the related group and as such, individual entities within the related group are not able to identify
their share of the underlying assets and liabilities.  Therefore, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards Section 3250.

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities.  Market and credit risk on these securities are managed by the Plan by
placing Plan assets in trust through the Plan investment policy.  Pension expense is based on Plan management’s best
estimates, in consultation with its actuaries to provide assurance that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at
retirement, as provided by the Plan.  The funding objective is for the employer contributions to HEPP to remain a constant
percentage of employee's contributions.  Variances between funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any
differences are generally to be funded by the participating members.  

The Healthcare Employees’ Pension Plan is subject to the provisions of the Pension Benefits Act, Manitoba.  This Act requires
that the Plan’s actuaries conduct two valuations – a going-concern valuation and a solvency valuation.  In 2010, HEB Manitoba
completed the solvency exemption application process, and has now been granted exemption for the solvency funding and
transfer deficiency provision.  As at December 31, 2013 the Plan’s going concern ratio was 96.1%.

As at December 2008, the actuarial valuation shows a deficit of $388 million.  In order to ensure the long-term sustainability of
the Plan contribution rates increased 2.2% through a gradual implementation over 27 months from January 1, 2011 to April 1,
2013.   Contributions to the Plan made during the year on behalf of its employees are included in the statement of operations.

The remaining employees of the Authority are eligible for membership in the provincially operated Civil Service Superannuation
Fund. The pension liability for the Authority’s employees is included in the Province of Manitoba's liability for the Civil Service
Superannuation Fund. Accordingly, no provision is required in the financial statements relating to the effects of participation in
the Plan by the Authority and its employees.  The Authority is in receipt of an actuarial report on the Statement of Pension
Obligations under the Civil Service Superannuation Act as at December 31, 2012.

During the year, the Authority contributed $6,073,872 (2014 - $5,296,112) to the Plan.
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies   (Continued from previous page)

Pre-retirement obligation

The accrued benefit obligation for pre-retirement benefits are actuarially determined using the projected unit credit service
pro-rated on service actuarial cost method and management's best estimates of expected future rates of return on assets,
termination rates, employee demographics, salary rate increases plus age related merit-promotion scale with no provision
for disability and employee mortality and withdrawal rates.

Based upon collective agreements and/or non-union policy, employees are entitled to a pre-retirement leave benefit if they
are retiring in accordance with the provisions of the applicable group pension plan.  The Authority's contractual commitment
is to pay based upon one of the following (dependent on the agreement/policy applicable to the employee):

a)  The Authority's contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement entitlement for members
of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan ("HEPP") is to pay out four days of salary for each year of service upon
retirement if the employee complies with one of the following conditions:

i.   has ten years service and has reached the age of 55; or
ii.  qualifies for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to the age of the
     employee; or
iii. retires at or after age 65; or
iv. terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability.

b)  The Authority's contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement entitlement for members
of the Civil Service Superannuation Plan, is to pay out the following severance pay upon retirement to employees who have
reached the age of 55 and have nine or more years of service:

i.   one week of severance pay for each year of service up to 15 years of service; and
ii.  two weeks of additional severance pay for each increment of five years service past the 15 years of service up
     to 35 years of service.

c)  The Authority's contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement entitlement for members
of the MGEU Collective Agreement, is to pay out one week's pay for each year of accumulated service, or portion thereof,
upon retirement if the employee has accumulated 10 or more years of accumulated service, up to a maximum of 15 week's
pay.

Actuarial gains and losses can arise in a given year as a result of the difference between the actual return on plan assets in
that year and the expected return on plan assets for that year, the difference between the actual accrued benefit obligations
at the end of the year and the expected accrued benefit obligations at the end of the year and changes in actuarial
assumptions.  For the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2013, and in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards, gains or losses that arise in a given year, along with past service costs that arise from pre-retirement benefit plan
amendments, are to be amortized into income over the expected average remaining service life ("EARSL") of the related
employee group.  Prior to the April 1, 2013 valuation, gains or losses have been recognized in the period in which they were
incurred.

Sick leave benefit obligation

For the year ending March 31, 2014, the Authority adopted accrual accounting for the sick leave benefit obligation according
to Canadian public sector accounting standards Section 3255.  Prior to that date the Authority recognized benefit expenses
equal to its payments for the actual payouts and no liability for accumulated sick leave was recorded in the statement of
financial position.  At the beginning of the fiscal year April 1, 2011, a valuation of the Authority's obligations for the
accumulated sick leave bank was done for accounting purposes using the average usage of sick days used in excess of the
annual sick days earned.  Factors used in the calculation include average employee daily wage, number of sick days used
in the year, number of sick days earned in the year, excess of used days over earned days in the year, dollar value of the
excess and number of unused sick days.

Key assumptions used in the valuation were based on information available.  The valuation used the same assumptions
about future events as was used for the pre-retirement obligation valuation noted above.
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Significant accounting policies   (Continued from previous page)

Measurement uncertainty (use of estimates)  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. 

Areas requiring the use of significant estimates include the useful lives of capital assets, allowance for accounts deemed
uncollectible, provisions for slow moving and obsolete inventory and amounts recognized for employee benefit obligations.
Changes to the underlying assumptions and estimates or legislative changes in the near term could have a material impact
on the provisions recognized.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary they are reported in
the statement of operations in the periods in which they become known. 

Financial instruments  

The Authority recognizes its financial instruments when the Authority becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value.

At initial recognition, the Authority may irrevocably elect to subsequently measure any financial instrument at fair value. The
Authority has not made such an election during the year. 

All financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of financial instruments
subsequently measured at fair value are immediately recognized in excess if revenue over expenses. Conversely,
transaction costs are added to the carrying amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at cost or
amortized cost.

All financial assets except derivatives are tested annually for impairment. Any impairment, which is not considered
temporary, is recorded in the statement of operations. Write-downs of financial assets measured at cost and/or amortized
cost to reflect losses in value are not reversed for subsequent increases in value. Reversals of any net remeasurements of
financial assets measured at fair value are reported in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. 

Fair value measurements

The Authority classifies fair value measurements recognized in the statement of financial position using a three-tier fair
value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

 Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the Authority to develop its

own assumptions.

Fair value measurements are classified in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. This assessment requires judgment, considering factors specific to an asset or a liability and may
affect placement within the fair value hierarchy.  There were no transfers between levels for the years ended March 31,
2015 and 2014.

External restrictions  

Net assets are restricted for endowment purposes, and are subject to externally imposed restrictions that the assets be
maintained permanently in the St. Paul Residents Trust Fund.  Investment income from this fund is restricted for residents'
expenses.
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

2. Accounts receivable

2015 2014

Northern Patient Transportation Program receivables 12,827,411 11,563,249
GST rebates receivable 255,437 279,509
Patient and other receivables 2,465,894 1,936,829
Allowance for doubtful accounts - Northern Patient Transportation Program receivables (8,900,000) (5,257,747)
Allowance for doubtful accounts - patient and other receivables (1,015,055) (1,468,935)

5,633,687 7,052,905

3. Due from Manitoba Health

2015 2014

2011-2012 Extended Health Benefit 184,926 184,926
2012-2013 Medical Remuneration - 2,826,738
2013-2014 Medical Remuneration 3,672,806 3,672,807
2014-2015 Medical Remuneration 3,489,072 -
2012-2013 MAHCP Retention Bonuses 4,937 4,937
2014-2015 MAHCP Retention Bonuses 1,178,026 -
MAHCP Retention Bonus - DSM 577,932 -
2012-2013 Garden Hill Structural Floor Project 1,604 80,677
2013-2014 Northern Youth Crisis Funding 663,706 663,706
2014-2015 Northern Youth Crisis Funding 17,804 -
2012-2013 MNU Maternity Top-Up 75,447 75,447
2012-2013 Facility Support Maternity Top-Up 2,714 80,237
2013-2014 Colonoscopy Funding - 105,000
2014-2015 Colonoscopy Funding 35,000 -
2012-2013 Health Spending Account 39,156 39,156
2012-2013 EMS Wage Standardization - 6,850
2012-2013 Medical Education Coordinator 110,000 110,000
2014-2015 Medical Education Coordinator 55,000 -
2012-2013 MNU Retention Bonus Shortfall 34,672 34,672
2012-2013 HEPP Contribution Increase 419,422 419,422
2013-2014 Professional Technical Market Supplement 57,013 112,597
2013-2014 Immunization Funding 200 125,743
2014-2015 Immunization Funding 117,569 -
Grow Your Own Nurse Practitioners 12,064 432,064
Physician Assistant Funding 183,771 183,771
Nurse Sector Wage Standardization 2,459,970 -
Professional Technical Market Supplement 81,414 -
Cancer Patient Journey 329,964 -
DSM On-Call Funding 130,000 -
CUPE Maternity Leave Top-Up 20,511 -

13,954,700 9,158,750
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

4. Pre-retirement and vacation entitlements due from Manitoba Health

The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province of Manitoba for pre-retirement costs and vacation entitlements was
initially determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liabilities for pre-retirement costs and vacation
entitlements as at March 31, 2004.  Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province of Manitoba has included in its ongoing
annual funding to the Authority an amount equivalent to the change in the pre-retirement liability and for vacation
entitlements, which includes annual interest accretion related to the receivables.  The receivables will be paid by the
Province of Manitoba when it is determined that the funding is required to discharge the related liabilities.

5. Capital assets

2015
Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

Land 228,529 - 228,529
Land improvements 532,648 367,783 164,865
Buildings 114,791,947 59,853,957 54,937,990
Computers 3,690,120 2,976,010 714,110
Equipment 29,856,272 21,860,786 7,995,486
Construction in progress 12,493,909 - 12,493,909

161,593,425 85,058,536 76,534,889

2014
Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

Land 228,529 - 228,529
Land improvements 532,648 366,748 165,900
Buildings 110,144,281 55,108,314 55,035,967
Computers 3,564,088 2,685,260 878,828
Equipment 28,192,627 20,532,931 7,659,696
Construction in progress 6,853,934 - 6,853,934

149,516,107 78,693,253 70,822,854

6. Bank indebtedness

The Authority has an authorized operating line of credit of $8,900,000 bearing interest at the bank's prime rate minus 0.50%
(2014 - prime minus 0.50%).  Security provided on this line of credit includes an overdraft borrowing agreement and a Letter
of Comfort from Manitoba Health.  As at March 31, 2015 the bank's prime rate was 3.00% (2014 - 3.00%).  Bank
indebtedness is comprised of the following:

2015 2014

Petty cash on hand and balances with banks 625,248 1,124,499
Operating line of credit balance (8,431,743) (1,370,053)
Outstanding cheques and other reconciling items (1,821,958) -

(9,628,453) (245,554)
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

7. Line of credit 

The Authority maintains a line of credit facility to fund construction projects in progress.  Upon completion of the
construction projects in progress, the respective amounts will be converted to long-term debt.  The amounts are due on
demand and bear interest at a rate of prime minus 0.80% per annum (2014 - prime minus 0.80%).  As at March 31, 2015
the bank's prime rate was 3.00% (2014 - 3.00%). 

8. Deferred revenue  

Deferred revenue consists of Manitoba Health funding received in the fiscal year for various programs. This allocation of
funding is recognized as revenue when program expenses are incurred.  The change in the deferred revenue balance for
the year is as follows:

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year 2,225,394 2,706,564
Funding received during the year 4,121,940 2,740,326
Amount recognized as revenue during the year (5,094,443) (3,221,496)

Balance, end of year 1,252,891 2,225,394

9. Long-term debt

2015 2014

Manufacturer's Life Insurance Company loan, with monthly payments equal to the energy
savings including interest at 6.30% per annum, expected to be paid out by September 2021 1,149,465 1,292,251

Term loans due to Royal Bank of Canada, with monthly payments between $835 and $10,250
including interest at the bank's prime rate less 0.80% per annum, due from June 2021 to June
2053, secured by certain equipment 5,648,329 3,184,212

Loan payable to Royal Bank of Canada with monthly payments of $10,016 including interest at
3.72% per annum, due March 2016, secured by certain buildings 1,174,700 -

Mortgage payable to Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation with monthly payments of
$5,651 including interest at 4.61% per annum, due May 2027, secured by certain buildings 56,487 115,437

8,028,981 4,591,900

Less: Current portion 958,960 390,917

7,070,021 4,200,983

Principal repayments on long-term debt in each of the next five years are estimated as follows:

2016 958,960
2017 766,757
2018 769,813
2019 772,984
2020 776,276

Thereafter 3,984,191

Interest on long-term debt amounted to $214,977 (2014 – $122,861).
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

10. Sick leave benefit obligation

The Authority's sick leave benefit obligation is based on an actuarial report prepared as of March 31, 2015.  The following
table presents information about the sick leave benefit obligations, the change in value and the balance of the obligation as
at March 31, 2015:

2015 2014

Sick leave benefit obligation, beginning of year 1,811,637 2,000,792
Current period service cost 190,000 -
Interest cost 82,000 -
Benefits paid (416,000) (189,155)
Actuarial (gain)/loss and other 887,952 -

Sick leave benefit obligation, end of year 2,555,589 1,811,637
Unamortized net actuarial gain (loss) (692,000) -

Sick leave accrued benefit liability, end of year 1,863,589 1,811,637

No actuarial valuation was obtained for the year ended March 31, 2014.

11. Accrued pre-retirement obligation

The Authority's pre-retirement obligation is based on an actuarial report prepared as of March 31, 2015.  The valuation
includes employees who qualify as at March 31, 2015, and an estimate for the remainder of the employees who have not
yet met the years of service criteria.  The following table presents information about accrued pre-retirement benefit
obligations, the change in value and the balance of the obligation as at March 31, 2015:

2015 2014

Pre-retirement benefit obligation, beginning of year 7,580,000 8,462,432
Current period service cost 685,000 892,000
Interest cost 260,000 182,000
Benefits paid (376,000) (663,000)
Actuarial (gain)/loss and other 693,000 (1,025,000)

Pre-retirement benefit obligation, end of year 8,842,000 7,848,432
Unamortized net actuarial gain (loss) 637,000 (268,432)

Pre-retirement accrued benefit liability, end of year 9,479,000 7,580,000

The actuarial valuation was based on a number of assumptions about future events including a discount rate of 2.55%
(2014 - 3.35%), a rate of salary increases of 3.50% (2014 - 3.00%) and an expected average remaining service life of 8.5
years.

Funding for the pre-retirement obligation is recoverable from Manitoba Health for costs incurred up to March 31, 2004 on an
Out-of-Globe basis in the year of payment.  As of April 1, 2004, In-Globe funding has been amended to include these costs.
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

12. Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally restricted funds from the Province
for major repairs and improvements to buildings.

13. Deferred contributions related to capital assets

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amounts of grants received for the purchase of
capital assets.  The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

Changes in the deferred contribution balance are as follows:

2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year 52,322,958 55,707,301
Amount received during the year 3,264,341 2,122,801
Less: Amounts recognized as revenue during the year (6,365,283) (5,507,144)

Balance, end of year 49,222,016 52,322,958

14. Net assets invested in capital assets

2015 2014

Net assets invested in capital assets are calculated as follows:
Capital assets 76,534,889 70,822,854
Deferred contributions (49,222,016) (52,322,959)
Long-term debt (8,028,981) (3,244,633)
Line of credit (10,211,181) (4,021,408)

9,072,711 11,233,854

Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets 6,365,283 5,507,144
Amortization of capital assets (6,365,283) (5,507,144)

- -

Net changes in investment in capital assets
Purchase of capital assets 12,077,318 11,362,637
Long term debt (4,784,348) (578,346)
Payment of capital lease obligation - 47,126
Advances on line of credit (6,189,773) (3,571,408)
Manitoba Health - Capital asset funding (3,264,340) (2,122,801)

(2,161,143) 5,137,208
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

15. Revenue from Manitoba Health

2015 2014

Revenue as per Manitoba Health's funding document 196,567,683 192,889,453
Deduct:
Payments on prior year receivables (4,225,434) (5,718,805)
Capital equipment funding (1,798,970) (1,887,216)
Nelson House PCH funding - flow through (665,235) (693,001)
Accounts receivable allowance - (511,241)
Ancillary program (185,127) -
Ambulance (439,710) (143,375)
Interest funding (actual) (95,341) (46,298)
Other (318,163) (96,516)
Provincial Nursing Station - Transitional (153,937) -
Provincial Acute Stroke Care Coordinator (54,179) -
Microsoft Licensing Fee 183,453 -
CIHI Fees 42,940 -

(7,709,703) (9,096,452)

Add: Accruals approved by Manitoba Health
Medical remuneration 3,489,072 3,672,824
Medical Education reimbursement 55,000 55,000
MNU wage standardization 2,459,970 -
Mobile youth crisis program 681,510 663,706
Colonoscopy funding 70,000 105,350
EMS wage standardization 81,414 112,597
MAHCP retention bonus 1,178,026 630
MAHCP retention bonus - DSM 577,932 -
DSM on call funding 130,000 -
Deferred RHA office funding - 631,000
Physician assisting funding - 183,771
Grow your own nurse practitioner funding - 432,064
Cancer Patient Journey Funding 329,964 -
Immunization funding 117,569 125,743

9,170,457 5,982,685
Deduct:
Deferred volume funding 500,000 -

198,528,437 189,775,686

16. Related party transactions

The Pas Health Complex Foundation, Inc. and The Northern Health Foundation Inc. (together the "Foundations") are non-
profit voluntary associations whose purpose is the betterment of health care at The Health Complex facilities. The aims and
objectives of these Foundations coincide with those of the Authority. The Authority regularly provides the Foundations with a
listing of project/equipment requirements for the Foundations to consider in their annual funding processes. During the year
the Authority received donated equipment valued at $107,944 (2014 - $42,625).
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

17. Commitments and contingencies

(i) The Authority has entered into various operating leases for rental units to assist with accommodation needs of the
organization. The amounts payable over the next four years are as follows:

2016 489,504
2017 452,328
2018 452,847
2019 389,424

1,784,103

(ii) The Authority is subject to individual legal actions arising in the normal course of operations.  It is not expected that
these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the financial position or operations of the Authority.

Due to the dismissal of three senior executives in a previous period in the Burntwood RHA, litigation proceedings remain
ongoing.  The likelihood of financial implications, if any, are not determinable at this time.

(iii)  On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations ("Subscribers") formed Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of
Canada ("HIROC").  HIROC is a pooling of the public liability insurance risks for its members.  All members of the pool pay
annual premiums which are actuarially determined.  All members are subject to reassessment for losses, if any,
experienced by the pool for the years in which they were members and these losses could be material.  No reassessments
have been made to March 31, 2015.

18. Financial instruments

The Authority, as part of its operations, carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the
Authority is not exposed to significant interest, currency, credit, liquidity or other price risks arising from these financial
instruments except as otherwise disclosed.

Risk management policy

The Authority is exposed to different types of risk in the normal course of operations, including credit risk and market risk.
The Authority's objective in risk management is to optimize the risk return trade-off, within set limits, by applying integrated
risk management and control strategies, policies and procedures throughout the Authority's activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss because a counter party to a financial instrument fails to discharge its contractual
obligations. Financial instruments which potentially subject the Authority to credit risk consist principally of accounts
receivable.

The Authority is not exposed to significant credit risk as the receivable is spread among a large client base and geographic
region and payment in full is typically collected when it is due. The Authority establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts
based on management's estimate and assumptions regarding current market conditions, customer analysis and historical
payment trends. These factors are considered when determining whether past due accounts are allowed for or written off.

The Authority is not exposed to significant credit risk from Due from Manitoba Health, vacation entitlement receivable and
retirement obligations receivable, as these receivables are due from the Province of Manitoba.
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Northern Regional Health Authority Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

18. Financial instruments  (Continued from previous page)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices.  Market risk is comprised of currency risk and interest rate risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the
instruments will fluctuate relative to the Canadian dollar due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The functional currency of the Authority is the Canadian dollar. The Authority's transactions in U.S. dollars are infrequent
and are limited to non-resident charges, certain purchases and capital asset acquisitions.  The Authority does not use
foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign exchange transaction exposures. 

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the
instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.  The exposure of the Authority to interest rate risk arises
primarily on its bank indebtedness, line of credit and long-term debt, the majority of which include interest at variable rates
based on the bank's prime rate.  The Authority's cash includes amounts on deposit with financial institutions that earn
interest at market rates.  The Authority manages its exposure to the interest rate risk of its assets and liabilities by
maximizing the interest income earned on excess funds while maintaining the liquidity necessary to conduct operations on a
day-to-day basis. Fluctuations in market rates of interest on assets and liabilities do not have a significant impact on the
Authority’s results of operations. 

19. Liability for contaminated sites

Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2014, public sector accounting standards requires recognition of a liability
for remediation of contaminated sites where contamination exceeds environment site standards and a reasonable estimate of
the amount can be made.  Reporting requirements are limited to the contamination of soil, water and sediment.  As of March
31, 2015, the Authority has no known contaminated sites or no known future potential contaminated sites.

20. Trusts under administration

At March 31, 2015, the balance of Resident trust funds held in trust is $99,573 (2014 - $120,753).  These funds are not
included in the balances of the Authority's financial statements.

21. Economic dependence

The Authority received approximately 91% (2014 - 90%) of its total revenue from Manitoba Health and is economically
dependent on Manitoba Health for continued operations.  This volume of funding transactions is normal within the industry, as
regional health authorities are primarily funded by their respective provincial Ministries of Health.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the Member of Clinique Youville Clinic Inc. 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Clinique Youville Clinic Inc., which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, the statements of operations and 
changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Clinique Youville Clinic Inc. as at March 31, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 

 
Chartered Accountants 

 

June 12, 2015 

Winnipeg, Canada 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 

 Ancillary Internally Capital 2015 2014
Operations Programs Restricted Fund Total Total

Revenue: 
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority $ 2,786,943 $ – $ – $ – $ 2,786,943 $ 2,678,643 
Other 89,433 3,467 –   –   92,900 142,274 
Insurance recoveries 6,491 –   –   –   6,491 6,252 
Amortization of deferred contributions related to  

capital assets [note 5(b)] –   –   –   20,862 20,862 71,101 
Interest and donations –   –   43,864 –   43,864 33,372 
Communication and Special Projects –   4,139 –   –   4,139 –   
Diabetes Cardiac Initiative –   63,811 –   –   63,811 78,849 
Student Volunteers –   100 –   –   100 57 
Healthy Baby Program –   39,334 –   –   39,334 37,075 
Intergenerational Community Outreach –   1,996 –   –   1,996 4,937 
Pathways –   2,624 –   –   2,624 8,280 
Nobody’s Perfect Special Projects –   44,740 –   –   44,740 51,642 
Nobody’s Perfect Program –   74,821 –   –   74,821 86,430 
Nutrition Programs –   798 –   –   798 4,063 
Seniors on the Move –   3,020 –   –   3,020 –   
Teen Clinic Volunteer Funding –   4,063 –   –   4,063 4,883 
Young Adult Type 1 –   5,972 –   –   5,972 5,513 

2,882,867 248,885 43,864 20,862 3,196,478 3,213,371

Expenses: 
Amortization of capital assets –   –   –   23,555 23,555 80,627 
Salaries and benefits 2,323,300 185,315 –   –   2,508,615 2,501,407 
Building, equipment and maintenance 412,466 –   –   –   412,466 385,219 
Printing, stationery and telephone 44,533 9,644 –   –   54,177 54,507 
Supplies and services  53,685 48,690 –   –   102,375 101,197 
Clinical supplies 16,681 5,236 –   –   21,917 58,196 

 2,850,665 248,885 – 23,555 3,123,105 3,181,153

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 32,202 –   43,864 (2,693) 73,373 32,218 

Fund balances, beginning of year 75,572 – 446,662 8,710 530,944 498,726

Fund balances, end of year $ 107,774 $ – $ 490,526 $ 6,017 $ 604,317 $ 530,944 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  2015 2014 
 
Operating activities: 

Excess of revenue over expenses $ 73,373 $ 32,218 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of capital assets 23,555 80,627 
Amortization of deferred contributions related to 

capital assets (20,862) (71,101) 
Change in non-cash working capital balances: 

Accounts receivable 55 15,640 
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health  

Authority (85,398) (44,143) 
Prepaid expenses (2,340) 824 
Future employee pre-retirement and sick leave 

benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional 
Health Authority (6,266) (30,754) 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  77,413 22,862 
Future employee pre-retirement benefits payable 7,000 23,915 
Sick leave benefits payable  (734) 6,839 

Deferred contributions received related to future expense 170,133 304,244 
Deferred contributions recognized as revenue in the year (248,885) (284,988) 
  (12,956) 56,183 
 

Capital activities: 
Purchase of capital assets (12,456) (28,628) 
Deferred contributions received or receivable related to  

capital assets 12,456 26,589 
  –    (2,039) 

 
Investing activities: 

Increase in short-term investments  (10,630) (11,458) 
 

Increase (decrease) in cash (23,586) 42,686 
 
Cash, beginning of year 400,810 358,124 
 
Cash, end of year $ 377,224 $ 400,810 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

General: 

The corporation was established March 3, 1983 by the Grey Nuns of Manitoba, without share capital 
and operates under the name Centre Youville Centre. Effective October 5, 2000, the Catholic Health 
Corporation of Manitoba assumed sponsorship. The corporation operates two health resource 
centres, a Community Health Resource Centre in St. Vital and a Diabetes Education Resource 
Centre in St. Boniface. The mandate of the corporation includes: 

 The creation of a comprehensive community based resource for the promotion of healthy 
lifestyles by assisting people to assume responsibility for their own health and well-being, and to 
create an awareness of their own resources by offering education, direction and support. 

 Nurse managed care and an expanded role outside of the traditional illness focused model of 
care for health professionals. 

 Services for people across their life span with health care teams working together with the 
community to support programs that range from: maternal child health to chronic diseases; 
prenatal to parenting workshops; adolescent to women’s health services; as well as a community 
health information line. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards including the PS 4200 standards for government not-for-
profit organizations and include the following significant accounting policies: 

(a) Revenue recognition: 

The corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which include 
donations and government grants. 

Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate.  

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the 
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

Externally restricted contributions are recorded as deferred contributions and recognized as 
revenue in the year in which the related expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted 
for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into revenue at a rate 
corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital assets. 

Volunteers are an integral part of carrying out the activities of the corporation. These 
contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements because of the difficulty 
in determining their fair value. 

(b) Operating deficits or surpluses: 

The corporation is funded primarily by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA). 
The corporation’s Service Purchase Agreement with the WRHA continues in effect until 
March 31, 2016. 

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Service Purchase Agreement between 
the corporation and the WRHA, annual operating deficits are the responsibility of the 
corporation. The corporation may retain the greater of 50 percent of the annual operating 
surplus related to insured services and 2 percent of the global budget as provided by the 
WRHA, in any fiscal year. Those surpluses that are retained by the corporation are subject 
to review by the WRHA. Annual operating surpluses in excess of 2 percent of the net cost 
of insured services are repayable to the WRHA. 

(c) Fund accounting: 

The corporation reports the operations and ancillary programs separately in the 
unrestricted fund.  

Revenue and expenses related to patient care program delivery are reported in the 
Operations Fund. 

The Ancillary Programs Fund includes revenue and expenses related to grant and donation 
funding used for purposes as designated by the donor, grantor, or other contributor. The 
use of the funds includes support for research, education, and clinical program activities. 
Surplus from the Ancillary Program Fund is transferred to internally restricted funds once 
the programs are complete. 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

The Internally Restricted Fund represents funds received through donations and interest 
income. All expenditures from this fund require the approval of the Board of Directors.  

The Capital Fund reports the revenue and expenses related to capital asset equipment and 
construction projects.  Funding for capital assets purchased with internally designated 
funds is recorded as an inter-fund transfer.  

(d) Financial instruments: 

Derivative instruments and equity instruments that are quoted in an active market are 
reported at fair value. All other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or 
amortized cost unless management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value. The 
corporation has elected to record all investments at fair value as they are managed and 
evaluated on a fair value basis. 

Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains 
and losses until they are realized, when they are transferred to the statement of operations. 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 
subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are 
adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are 
amortized using the effective interest method. 

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis. When a decline is 
determined to be other than temporary, the amount of the loss is reported in the statement 
of operations and any unrealized gain is adjusted through the statement of remeasurement 
gains and losses.  

When the asset is sold, the unrealized gains and losses previously recognized in the 
statement of remeasurement gains and losses are reversed and recognized in the 
statement of operations. 

The corporation did not incur any remeasurement gains and losses during the year ended 
March 31, 2015 (2014 - nil) and therefore a statement of remeasurement gains and losses 
is not required to be included in these financial statements. 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

All financial instruments recognized at fair value are classified using a fair value hierarchy, 
which includes three levels of information that may be used to measure fair value: 

 Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities; 

 Level 2 - Observable or corroborated inputs, other than level 1, such as quoted 
prices for similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets or market data for 
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and 

 Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity 
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets and liabilities. 

(e) Capital assets: 

Capital assets are recorded at cost and are amortized over their estimated useful lives 
using the following annual rates and methods: 

 
Asset Basis Rate 
 
Furniture and fixtures Declining balance 20% 
Computer equipment Declining balance 30% 
Leasehold improvements Straight-line 5 years 
 
 

(f) Future employee benefits: 

The cost of the corporation’s employee retirement benefits is accrued as earned based on 
an actuarial estimation. The estimation of the future pre-retirement benefits has been 
performed using the projected unit credit service pro-rated on service actuarial cost 
method.  

The accumulated non-vested sick leave liability is calculated annually utilizing an internally 
developed valuation method which takes into account the average usage of sick days used 
in excess of the annual sick days earned, average employee service time to date and 
average employee compensation per day. 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(g) Employee benefits: 

The cost of the corporation’s vacation benefits is accrued when the benefits are earned by 
the employees and is reported in accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the statement 
of financial position. WRHA provides funding for a portion of vacation benefits payable, and 
this amount is reported as employee benefits recoverable from WRHA on the statement of 
financial position. 

(h) Income taxes: 

The corporation is a registered charity within the meaning of the Income Tax Act and 
therefore is exempt from income taxes under Section 149 (1) of the Income Tax Act. 

(i) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of accounts receivable, capital 
assets and obligations related to employee future benefits and amounts deferred for future 
program expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority: 

The details of receivable from WRHA are as follows:  

 
 2015 2014 
 
Basic equipment funding $ 9,391 $ 26,589 
Healthcare spending account 13,205 5,684 
Pension contribution increases 15,253 1,907 
Pre-retirement funding 31,291 –    
Union increases 78,332 24,012 
Other 2,079 5,961 
 
  $ 149,551 $ 64,153 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

3. Employee benefit plans: 

(a) Employee benefits: 

The corporation records a provision for employee benefits including vacation and statutory 
holiday entitlements. At March 31, 2015, accounts payable and accrued liabilities includes 
employee benefits payable of $164,470 (2014 - $171,359). 

During fiscal 2008, the WRHA confirmed that it will fund a portion of these employee 
benefits, which is limited to the amount estimated at March 31, 2004. Accordingly, the 
corporation has recorded a recoverable in the amount of $125,848, representing amounts 
due from WRHA, and reflects the estimated liability for accumulated employee benefits at 
that date. Each year thereafter, the corporation is expected to fund the change in the 
liability from annual funding provided by the WRHA. 

(b) Future employee pre-retirement benefits: 

The corporation maintains an employee pre-retirement benefits plan for substantially all of 
its employees. The plan provides benefit payments to eligible retirees based on length of 
service and on career earnings from initial eligibility. 

The estimation of the future pre-retirement benefits obligation has been performed using 
the projected unit credit service pro-rated on service actuarial cost method. The significant 
actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the corporation’s pre-retirement benefit plan 
obligations include mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 2.55 percent (2014 - 
3.35 percent) and a rate of salary increase of 3.5 percent (2014 - 3.0 percent) plus an age 
related merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability. 

Information about the corporation’s pre-retirement benefit plan obligations are as follows: 

 
      2015  2014 
 
Benefit plan obligations: 

Balance, beginning of year $ 233,617 $ 209,702 
Current service cost 20,000 17,934 
Pre-retirement pay-out (18,000) –    
Interest cost 7,000 5,060 
Balance, end of year 242,617 232,696 

 
Amortized actuarial loss (gain) (2,000) 921 
 
Benefit plan obligations, end of year $ 240,617 $ 233,617 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

3. Employee benefit plans (continued): 

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement benefits was 
initially determined based on the pre-retirement liability at March 31, 2004 and was 
recorded as a long-term receivable on the statement of financial position. 

In addition, during fiscal 2007, the WRHA approved partial funding of the incremental 
increases in the future employee pre-retirement benefits liability for fiscal 2005 and 2006 of 
$22,708. 

The amount recoverable has been adjusted, based on direction from WRHA, to include the 
incremental increases in the related liability since 2007, which include an interest 
component. The increase recorded in fiscal 2015 was $7,000 (2014 - $23,915) recorded as 
revenue in the statement of operations. 

The future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from WRHA at March 31, 2015 
aggregates $202,476 (2014 - $195,476) and has no specified terms of repayment. 

Beginning April 1, 2005, the WRHA established a policy of providing additional funding for 
approximately 70 percent of actual pre-retirement benefits paid. Cash funding provided by 
the WRHA for 2015 was 100 percent (2014 - 100 percent) of actual pre-retirement benefits 
paid.  

(c) Accrued sick-leave entitlement: 

The corporation provides accumulating sick leave benefits to certain employee groups. 
These benefits accumulate with employee service and benefit amounts are determined with 
reference to employees’ final earnings at the time they are paid out. The significant 
assumptions adopted in measuring the corporation’s accumulated non-vested sick leave 
benefits include a discount rate of 2.55 percent (2014 - 3.35 percent) and a rate of salary 
increase of 3.5 percent (2014 - 3.0 percent). 

A recoverable from the WRHA of $28,821 (2014 - $29,555) for the accumulated non-vested 
sick leave benefits has been recorded on the statement of financial position. The 
recoverable has been adjusted, based on direction from WRHA, for the incremental change 
in the accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits. The decrease recorded in 2015 was 
$734 (2014 - $6,839 increase) and is recorded in the statement of operations.  
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

4. Capital assets: 

 
 2015 2014 
  Accumulated Net book Net book 
  Cost amortization value value 
 
Furniture and fixtures $ 206,626 $ 172,030 $  34,596 $ 32,680 
Computer equipment 329,865 293,060 36,805 52,578 
Leasehold improvements 430,399 427,641 2,758 –    

 
 $ 966,890 $  892,731 $ 74,159 $ 85,258 
 

5. Deferred contributions: 

(a) Future expense: 

Deferred contributions related to future expense represent unspent externally restricted 
grants and donations for research, education and programs. 

 
 2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 270,633 $ 251,377 
Add amount received related to future periods 170,133 304,244 
Less amount recognized as revenue in the year (248,885) (284,988) 

 
Balance, end of year $ 191,881 $ 270,633 
 
The amount of deferred contributions recognized as revenue during the year is recorded in 
the statement of operations in ancillary programs. 

(b) Capital assets: 

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of 
donations and grants received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of 
capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the capital fund in the statement of 
operations. 

 
 2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 76,548 $ 121,060 
Additional contributions received or receivable 12,456 26,589 
Less amounts amortized to revenue (20,862) (71,101) 
 
Balance, end of year $ 68,142 $ 76,548 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

5. Deferred contributions (continued): 

During fiscal 2014, the corporation undertook server upgrades totaling nil (2014 - $28,628) 
of which nil (2014 - $26,589) was funded through basic equipment funding received from 
the WRHA. The balance of the cost was funded by the corporation. 

6. Employee pension plan: 

Eligible employees of the corporation are members of the Healthcare Employees’ Pension Plan 
- Manitoba (HEPP), a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. 

During the year, the corporation contributed $152,266 (2014 - $145,181) on behalf of its 
employees. The most recent funding actuarial valuation of the plan as at December 31, 2012 
reported that the plan had a deficiency of actuarial value of net assets over actuarial present 
value of accrued pension obligations as well as a solvency deficiency. Based on a solvency 
exemption granted to HEPP, the plan is not required to fund on a solvency basis but is required 
to fund on a going concern basis. The going concern deficiency will be funded by special 
payments out of current contributions. Any contribution deficiencies in the plan would be 
addressed through pension benefit reductions or contribution rate increases from the 
participating members. On April 1, 2014, employer contribution rates are 7.9 percent (2014 - 
7.9 percent) of pensionable earnings up to the yearly maximum pensionable earnings limit 
(YMPE) and 9.5 percent (2014 - 9.5 percent) on earnings in excess of YMPE. On April 1, 2015, 
with the inclusion of contributions toward the Cost of Living Adjustment Plan, employer 
contribution rates increased to 8.7 percent of pensionable earnings up to the YMPE and 10.5 
percent on earnings in excess of YMPE. 

7. Related party transactions: 

(a) From Youville’s inception in 1983 to March 31, 2015, the Regina Grey Nuns and the Grey 
Nuns of Manitoba Inc. have contributed $1,499,026 to Clinique Youville Clinic Inc. The 
Grey Nuns of Manitoba Inc. did not make any contributions during the years ended 
March 31, 2015 and 2014. There have been no contributions by Regina Grey Nuns since 
1996. 

(b) In 2013, the corporation entered into a memorandum of understanding with St. Boniface 
General Hospital to assist with the corporation’s Diabetes Cardiac Surgery Initiative project. 
During the year, the corporation funded $37,200 (2014 - $37,200) to the St. Boniface 
General Hospital in connection with this project. 
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

8. Commitments: 

The corporation has committed to lease premises for the St. Boniface and St. Vital centres 
through August 2018 and January 2017, respectively, as per the following schedule: 

 
 
Fiscal: 

2016  $ 207,925 
2017  191,425 
2018  96,425 
2019  40,177 

 
 

9. Financial risks: 

The corporation has exposure to the following risks associated with its financial instruments: 

(a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in a financial loss. The corporation is exposed to credit risk with respect to its 
accounts receivable, receivable from WRHA, cash and short-term investments.  

The corporation assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts receivable and provides for any 
amounts that are not collectible in the allowance for doubtful accounts. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk of the corporation at March 31, 2015 is the carrying value of these 
assets.   

At March 31, 2015, all accounts receivable were current. There were no amounts past due. 

There have been no significant changes to the credit risk exposure from 2014.  

(b) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the corporation will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely 
basis or at a reasonable cost. The corporation manages liquidity risk by monitoring its 
operating requirements. The corporation prepares budgets and cash forecasts to ensure it 
has sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations.   

All accounts payable and accrued liabilities are due within fiscal 2016. 

There have been no significant changes to the liquidity risk exposure from 2014. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the Board of Directors of Fred Douglas Society Inc. 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fred Douglas Personal Care Home, a 
Division of Fred Douglas Society Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
March 31, 2015, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Fred Douglas Personal Care Home, a Division of Fred Douglas Society Inc. as at March 31, 2015, 
and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards. 

Other Matter 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a 
whole. The supplementary information included in the schedule is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such supplementary 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

 

 
Chartered Accountants 

 

June 17, 2015 

Winnipeg, Canada 

 



 
   

FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Statement of Financial Position 
 
March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  2015 2014 
 
Assets 
 
Current assets: 

Cash (note 2) $ 305,648 $ 196,066 
Accounts receivable (note 3) 811,687 511,251 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 41,112 33,304 
Employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg  

Regional Health Authority (note 11[iii]) 355,603 355,603 
Short-term investments (note 4) 58,038 70,978 
Receivable from related entities (note 5) 39,904 348,072 
  1,611,992 1,515,274 

 
Investments (note 4) 148,127 132,935 
 
Employee future benefits recoverable from  

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (note 11[i]) 1,059,327 1,016,719 
 
Capital assets (note 6) 4,136,198 4,141,096 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   $  6,955,644 $ 6,806,024 
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  2015 2014 
 
Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Net Assets 
 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 931,500 $ 1,012,947 
Bank financing (note 7) 252,715 323,048 
  1,184,215 1,335,995 

 
Employee future benefits (note 11[i]) 1,032,345 989,737 
 
Deferred contributions (note 8): 

Donations 11,252 12,734 
Expenses of future periods 15,966 14,454 
Capital assets 3,061,001 3,029,858 
Equipment reserve 42,242 20,507 
Reserve for major repairs 253,054 202,270 
  3,383,515 3,279,823 
 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 533,087 412,279 
Invested in capital assets (note 9) 822,482 788,190 
  1,355,569 1,200,469 

 
Commitment (note 12) 
 
  $ 6,955,644 $ 6,806,024 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 
 

 
_____________________________  Director  “Eric Jensen, Chair - Board of Directors” 
 

 
_____________________________  Director  “Larry Beeston, Chair - Finance Committee” 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Statement of Operations 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  2015 2014 
 
Revenue: 

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority - Operating  $ 7,075,924 $ 6,900,087 
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority - Adult Day Program 214,157 212,448 
Resident charges 2,396,924 2,321,973 
Participant charges - Adult Day Program 34,403 35,228 
Donations and grants 12,845 18,254 
Amortization of deferred contributions (note 8[c]) 239,020 220,655 
    9,973,273 9,708,645 
 

Other income: 
Ancillary 950  1,927 
Investment 2,105 3,422 
Cafeteria 45,174 43,785 
Other 36,401 34,122 
  84,630 83,256 

 
Total revenue 10,057,903 9,791,901 

 
Expenses: 

Operating 9,428,166  9,238,901 
Adult Day Program 219,592 240,453 
Amortization of capital assets 255,045 236,495 
  9,902,803 9,715,849 
 

Excess of revenue over expenses before the undernoted 155,100 76,052 
 
Employee future benefits adjustment (note 11) (42,608) 47,887 
 
Funding (reduction) for employee future benefits (note 11) 42,608 (47,887) 
 
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 155,100 $ 76,052 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  Invested  
  in capital 2015 2014 
 Unrestricted assets Total Total 
 
Net assets, beginning of year $ 412,279 $ 788,190 $ 1,200,469 $ 1,124,417 
 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over  

expenses 171,125 (16,025) 155,100 76,052 
 
Transfer for bank financing payments (70,333) 70,333 –    –    
 
Transfer of funds related to  

capital asset additions 20,016 (20,016) –    –    
 
Net assets, end of year $ 533,087 $ 822,482 $ 1,355,569 $ 1,200,469 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  2015 2014 
 
Operating activities: 

Excess of revenue over expenses $ 155,100  $ 76,052 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of capital assets 255,045 236,495 
Amortization of deferred contributions 

related to capital assets (239,020) (219,569) 
Change in non-cash operating working capital: 

Restricted cash  (67,684) (26,603) 
Accounts receivable (300,436) (181,582) 
Inventories and prepaid expenses (7,808) (5,300) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (81,447) 96,502 

Net increase in deferred contributions  
related to donations, expenses of future periods, and  
reserve for major repairs 50,814 49,453 

  (235,436) 25,448 
 
Capital activities: 

Purchase of capital assets (250,147) (141,089) 
Deferred contributions received for capital assets 

and equipment reserves 291,898 139,057 
  41,751 (2,032) 

 
Investing activities: 

Increase in investments (2,252) (23,124) 
Change in receivable from related entities 308,168 (133,504) 
  305,916 (156,628) 

 
Financing activities: 

Repayment of bank financing (70,333) (70,056) 
 
Increase (decrease) in cash 41,898  (203,268) 
 
Cash, beginning of year 58,296 261,564 
 
Cash, end of year (note 2) $ 100,194 $ 58,296 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

General: 

Fred Douglas Personal Care Home, a Division of Fred Douglas Society Inc. (the Division) operates a 
136-bed personal care home and 90-space adult day program in Winnipeg, Manitoba. Fred Douglas 
Society Inc. is an outreach ministry of the United Church of Canada. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards including PS4200 standards for government not-for-profit 
organizations. 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

These financial statements include only the assets, liabilities, operations and net assets of 
the Division. These financial statements have been prepared solely for the purposes of 
management. As these financial statements have not been prepared for general purposes, 
readers may require further information. Non-consolidated financial statements of Fred 
Douglas Society Inc. (the Society) (unaudited) have been prepared for distribution to the 
Board of Directors. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

The Division follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which includes 
government funding. The Division is funded primarily by the Winnipeg Regional Health 
Authority (WRHA) in accordance with a Service Purchase Agreement (SPA). Operating 
grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. The Division’s SPA with 
the WRHA expired March 31, 2015, however an extension to the agreement expiring 
December 15, 2015 has been agreed to between the Division and the WRHA.  

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the 
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the 
related expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets 
are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis at a rate corresponding 
with the amortization rate for the related capital assets. 

Investment income includes interest income and realized investment gains and losses. 

(c) Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Derivative instruments 
and equity instruments that are quoted in an active market are reported at fair value. All 
other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost unless 
management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value. Management has not 
elected to record any financial instruments at fair value.   

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 
subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are 
adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are 
amortized using the effective interest method.  

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal 
year if there are indicators of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the Division 
determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of 
future cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the 
expected cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of 
the present value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from selling 
the financial asset or the amount the Division expects to realize by exercising its right to 
any collateral. If events and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss 
will be reversed to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value.  
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(d) Capital assets: 

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at 
fair value at the date of contribution. When a capital asset no longer contributes to the 
Division’s ability to provide services, its carrying amount is written down to its residual 
value. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis at the following rates: 

 
Asset  Rate 
 
Buildings  40 years 
Furniture, equipment and computer software  3 to 10 years 
 
 

(e) Employee future benefits: 

The cost of the Division’s employee future pre-retirement benefits is accrued as earned 
based on an actuarial estimation. The estimation of future pre-retirement benefits has been 
performed using the projected unit credit service pro-rated on service actuarial cost 
method. 

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Division’s employee future 
pre-retirement benefits include mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 2.55 
percent (2014 - 3.35 percent), a rate of salary increase of 3.5 percent (2014 - 3.00 percent) 
plus an age-related merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability. 

The accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits is calculated annually utilizing an internally 
developed valuation method which takes into account the average usage of sick days used 
in excess of the annual sick days earned, average employee service time to date and 
average employee compensation per day. 

(f) Contributed services: 

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year. 
Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value, contributed services are not 
recognized in the financial statements. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(g) Income taxes: 

The Society is exempt from tax under Section 149 of the Income Tax Act.  

(h) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of capital assets and employee 
future benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Cash: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Cash - unrestricted $ 100,194 $ 58,296 
Restricted cash 205,454 137,770 
 
  $ 305,648 $ 196,066 
 

Restricted cash, along with restricted investments disclosed in note 4, represents cash held for 
deferred contributions related to donations, expenses of future periods, equipment reserve and 
reserve for major repairs. 

The Division has a demand revolving credit facility with a maximum limit of $500,000 (2014 - 
$500,000). The operating credit line bears interest at prime rate plus 1 percent (2014 - prime 
rate plus 1 percent). The facility is secured by a general security agreement and a first charge 
collateral mortgage against property of the Society. At March 31, 2015, the Division has not 
utilized this facility (2014 - nil). 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

3. Accounts receivable: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Accounts receivable $ 24,403 $ 42,233 
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority: 

Pre-retirement leave 269,074 293,012 
MGEU contract increases 168,413 88,858 
MNU contract increases 149,538 47,836 
Group health benefit funding 22,987 28,503 
Resident charges (15,469) (216) 
Capital funding 180,382 39,620 
Pension increase funding 44,568 5,571 
Surplus recovery (a) (70,000) (70,000) 
Other 37,791 35,834 

 
  $ 811,687 $ 511,251 
 

(a) In accordance with the terms and conditions of the SPA, the surplus the Division may retain 
is the greater of 50 percent of the operating surplus and 2 percent of the global budget as 
provided by the WRHA, in any fiscal year. The remaining operating surplus of the Division 
in any fiscal year is repayable to the WRHA. The surplus recovery balance in both 2014 
and 2015 relates to the operating surplus for fiscal 2013, which will be paid upon review by 
the WRHA.   

4. Investments: 

 
 2015 2014 
 Average Carrying Average Carrying 

  effective yield value effective yield value 
 
Government investment  

certificates 2.41% $ 189,907 2.69% $ 186,108 
 
Money market fund  16,258  17,805 
 206,165  203,913 
 
Current portion, shown as short-term  

investments  (58,038)  (70,978) 
 
    $ 148,127   $ 132,935 
 

The government investment certificates mature during fiscal years 2016 to 2019. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

4. Investments (continued): 

The allocation of investments between unrestricted and restricted is as follows: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Unrestricted investments $ 89,105 $ 91,718 
Restricted investments 117,060 112,195 
 
  $ 206,165 $ 203,913 
 

5. Receivable from related entities: 

The receivable from (payable to) related entities are as follows: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Fred Douglas Heritage House Inc. $ 3,608 $ 77,033 
Fred Douglas Foundation, Inc. 21,047 57,469 
Fred Douglas Apartments 12,051 52,683 
Fred Douglas Courts 4,834 148,673 
6032281 Manitoba Association Inc.  (41) 129 
Fred Douglas Society Inc. (1,595) 12,085 
 
  $ 39,904 $ 348,072 
 

Fred Douglas Heritage House Inc. is an organization controlled by the Society. 6032281 
Manitoba Association Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fred Douglas Heritage House Inc. 
Fred Douglas Apartments and Fred Douglas Courts are divisions of the Society. Fred Douglas 
Foundation, Inc. is an organization over which the Society exercises significant influence. The 
receivables from/payable to these entities are non-interest bearing, with no fixed terms of 
repayment and are unsecured. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

6. Capital assets: 

 
 2015 2014 
  Accumulated Net book Net book 
  Cost amortization value value 
 
Land $ 17,137 $ –    $ 17,137 $ 17,137 
Buildings 9,751,074 6,361,468 3,389,606 3,529,936 
Furniture, equipment and 

computer software 2,536,105 1,806,650 729,455 594,023 
 
 $ 12,304,316 $ 8,168,118 $ 4,136,198 $ 4,141,096 
 

7. Bank financing: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
3.00% mortgage, Assiniboine Credit Union, 

payable $3,095 monthly including principal and 
interest, maturing January 25, 2016 $ 179,668 $ 211,281 

3.00% demand term loan, Assiniboine Credit 
Union, interest at payable $3,563 monthly 
including principal and interest, maturing 
January 25, 2016 73,047 111,767 

 
  $ 252,715 $ 323,048 
 

The Assiniboine Credit Union mortgage and term loan are secured as disclosed in note 2 for 
the demand revolving credit facility.  
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

8. Deferred contributions: 

(a) Donations: 

Deferred contributions related to donations represent restricted funding received for specific 
improvement projects and enhancements to resident living. 

 
   2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 12,734 $ 14,491 
Contributions received 7,081 12,449 
Amounts recognized as revenue in  

the year (8,563) (14,206) 
 
Balance, end of year $ 11,252 $ 12,734 
 

(b) Expenses of future periods: 

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent restricted funding 
received for future expenses related to insurance deductibles and claims. 

 
   2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 14,454 $ 14,028 
Contributions received 1,512 1,512 
Amounts recognized as revenue in  

the year –    (1,086) 
 

Balance, end of year $ 15,966 $ 14,454 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

8. Deferred contributions (continued): 

(c) Capital assets: 

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of grants 
and other contributions received for the purchase of capital assets.  

 
   2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,029,858 $ 3,089,786 
Transfer from deferred contributions -  

equipment reserve 2,065 28,742 
Contributions received 268,098 130,899 
Amounts amortized to revenue in  

the year (239,020) (219,569) 
 

Balance, end of year $ 3,061,001 $ 3,029,858 
 

(d) Equipment reserve: 

Deferred contributions related to equipment reserve represent unspent contributions for the 
future purchase of capital assets. When the capital assets are purchased, an equivalent 
amount is transferred from this reserve to the deferred contributions related to capital 
assets. 

 
   2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 20,507 $ 41,091 
Contributions received 23,800 8,158 
Transfer to deferred contributions -  

capital assets (2,065) (28,742) 
 

Balance, end of year $ 42,242 $ 20,507 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

8. Deferred contributions (continued): 

(e) Reserve for major repairs: 

Deferred contributions related to reserve for major repairs represent restricted funding 
received for the future purchase of equipment replacement and major repairs. 

 
   2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 202,270 $ 151,486 
Contributions received 50,784 50,784 

 
Balance, end of year $ 253,054 $ 202,270 
 

9. Invested in capital assets: 

Invested in capital assets is calculated as follows: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Capital assets $ 4,136,198 $ 4,141,096 
Deferred contributions - capital assets (3,061,001) (3,029,858) 
Bank financing (252,715) (323,048) 
 
  $ 822,482 $ 788,190 
 

10. Related party transactions: 

During the year, the Division received $625 (2014 - $3,038) in funding for improvements and 
resident services and $16,332 (2014 - nil) in funding for capital assets from Fred Douglas 
Foundation, Inc. 

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange 
amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

11. Employee future benefits and employee benefits: 

(i) Employee future benefits consists of: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Pre-retirement benefits $ 762,005 $ 763,005 
Accumulated non-vested sick leave 

 benefits 270,340 226,732 
 
  $ 1,032,345 $ 989,737 
 

The Division participates in an employee future pre-retirement benefits plan for 
substantially all of its employees. The plan provides benefit payments to eligible retirees 
based on length of service and on career earnings from initial eligibility. 

Information about the Division’s pre-retirement benefits plan is as follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
 
Accrued benefit obligation: 
Balance, beginning of year $ 763,005 $ 811,133 

Current benefit cost 50,000 55,635 
Interest 22,000 15,697 
Amortized actuarial loss (gain) (8,000) 2,858 
Benefits paid (65,000) (122,318) 

 
Liability for benefits $ 762,005 $ 763,005 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

11. Employee future benefits and employee benefits (continued): 

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement benefits was 
initially determined based on the pre-retirement obligation at March 31, 2005, and was 
recorded as a long-term receivable on the statement of financial position. The receivable 
has been adjusted, based on direction from WRHA, to include the incremental increases or 
decreases in the related liability for fiscal years 2007 to 2015. The decrease in fiscal 2015 
was $1,000 (2014 - $48,128) and is recorded in the statement of operations. 

The employee future pre-retirement benefits recoverable from WRHA at March 31, 2015 
aggregates $788,987 (2014 - $789,987) and has no specified terms of repayment. 

Prior to 2004, Manitoba Health funded 100 percent of actual pre-retirement benefits paid 
over and above the operating grant provided to the Division. Beginning April 1, 2005, the 
WRHA established a policy of providing additional funding, averaging approximately 88 
percent of actual pre-retirement benefits paid. Actual additional funding provided by WRHA 
for 2015 was 100 percent (2014 - 100 percent) of actual pre-retirement benefits paid.  

The Division provides accumulating sick leave benefits to substantially all of its employees. 
These benefits accumulate with employee service and benefit amounts are determined with 
reference to employees’ final earnings at the time they are paid out. The significant 
assumptions adopted in measuring the Division’s accumulated non-vested sick leave 
benefits include a discount rate of 2.55 percent (2014 - 3.35 percent) and a rate of salary 
increase of 3.50 percent (2014 - 3.00 percent). 

A recoverable from the WRHA of $270,340 (2014 - $226,732) for the accumulated non-
vested sick leave benefits has been recorded in the statement of financial position. The 
recoverable has been adjusted, based on direction from WRHA, for the incremental change 
in the accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits. The increase recorded in 2015 was 
$43,608 (2014 - $241) and is recorded in the statement of operations. 

(ii) Eligible employees of the Division are members of the Healthcare Employees’ Pension 
Plan - Manitoba (HEPP), a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

11. Employee future benefits and employee benefits (continued): 

During the year, the Division contributed $481,014 (2014 - $435,278) on behalf of its 
employees. The most recent funding actuarial valuation of the plan as at December 31, 
2013 reported that the plan had a deficiency of actuarial value of net assets over actuarial 
present value of accrued pension obligations as well as a solvency deficiency. Based on a 
solvency exemption granted to HEPP, the plan is not required to fund on a solvency basis 
but is required to fund on a going concern basis. The going concern deficiency will be 
funded by special payments out of current contributions. Any contribution deficiencies in the 
plan would be addressed through pension benefit reductions or contribution rate increases 
from the participating members. On April 1, 2014, employer contribution rates increased to 
8.7 percent (2014 - 7.9 percent) of pensionable earnings up to the yearly maximum 
pensionable earnings limit (YMPE) and 10.3 percent (2014 - 9.5 percent) on earnings in 
excess of YMPE. On April 1, 2015, with the inclusion of contributions toward the Cost of 
Living Adjustment Plan, employer contribution rates increased to 9.7 percent of 
pensionable earnings up to the YMPE and 11.3 percent on earnings in excess of YMPE. 

(iii) The cost of the Division’s vacation benefits is accrued when the benefits are earned by the 
employees and is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the statement of 
financial position. The vacation benefits liability at March 31, 2015 is $500,035 (2014 - 
$479,572). 

The funding received in each subsequent fiscal year from the Winnipeg Regional Health 
Authority includes the employee benefits recoverable of $355,603 as included on the 
statement of financial position. The employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional 
Health Authority is maintained at the value of the vacation benefits liability at March 31, 
2004. 

12. Commitment: 

For fiscal 2016, the Division has a service purchase agreement for the adult day program for 
annual transportation service of approximately $100,000.   

13. Financial risks: 

The Division is exposed to interest rate risk on its fixed and floating interest rate financial 
instruments. Fixed-interest instruments subject the Division to a fair value risk while the floating-
rate instruments subject it to a cash flow risk.   
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

13. Financial risks (continued): 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Division will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely basis 
or at a reasonable cost. The Division manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its operating 
requirements. The Division prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has sufficient funds 
to fulfill its obligations.  

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in a financial loss. The Division is exposed to credit risk with respect to accounts 
receivable, employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority, employee 
future benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority and investments.  

There has been no change to the above noted risk exposures from 2014. 

14. Trusts under administration: 

At March 31, 2015, the balance of funds held in trust on behalf of the residents who reside at 
the Division was $25,868 (2014 - $26,797).  
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Schedule - Operating Expenses 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  2015 2014 
 
Nursing services: 

Medical supplies and services $ 55,227 $ 42,994 
Resident transportation 46,882 41,072 
Incontinence supplies 67,224 57,327 
Nursing administration 17,996 17,428 
  187,329 158,821 

 
Resident services: 

Activities 15,966 17,537 
Other 8,357 12,190 
  24,323 29,727 

 
General administration: 

Advertising 2,062 4,828 
Audit and professional fees 119,615 60,498 
Bank charges and interest 2,040 866 
Bonding and insurance 5,235 7,167 
Data processing and communications 58,216 58,546 
Delivery and courier 652 533 
Equipment lease and maintenance 20,892 30,422 
Meetings and miscellaneous 1,021 2,567 
Licenses and membership fees 6,270 9,542 
Postage 5,118 2,974 
Printing, stationery and office supplies 11,432 10,455 
Staff and resident events and appreciation 15,006 14,587 
Travel 2,280 2,194 
  249,839 205,179 

 
Dietary: 

Food 320,055  295,494 
Glassware and cutlery 1,655 3,842 
Supplies 17,277 20,365 
  338,987 319,701 

 
Laundry: 

Supplies 3,968 5,618 
 

Linen: 
Supplies and service 81,353 83,105 
 

Housekeeping: 
Supplies 35,891 34,777 
 

Carried forward  921,690  836,928 
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME 
A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC. 
 
Schedule - Operating Expenses (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  2015 2014 
 
Brought forward $ 921,690 $ 836,928 
 
Physical plant: 

Operations: 
Electricity 96,283  86,994 
Natural gas 44,493 48,050 
Insurance 33,215 18,659 
Taxes 21,268 26,088 
Water 65,925 63,325 

Maintenance and repairs: 
Buildings and grounds 208,097 209,520 
Equipment 16,699 18,781 
Other 8,295 7,016 

Bank loan interest 2,642 3,154 
Interest on bank financing 5,518 5,439 
  502,435 487,026 

 
Salaries: 

Nursing 4,776,442 4,664,624 
Administration 414,457 445,070 
Resident services 274,906 276,971 
Dietary 547,055 543,231 
Support services 496,218 483,885 
Employee benefits 1,474,963 1,474,418 
Accrued vacation 20,000 26,748 
  8,004,041 7,914,947 

 
Total operating expenses $ 9,428,166 $ 9,238,901 
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2015



June 11,2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Directors of the Luther Home Corporation:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Luther Home Corporation, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flow for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

Note 3 indicates that the Corporation follows certain accounting policies that are not in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations in order to comply with the Operating Agreement with the
Manitoba Housing Renewal Corporation. The effect of these departures from Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations materially impact capital assets and operating expenses of the Corporation, but would not have a
pervasive impact on the financial statements as a whole.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of following certain accounting policies as disclosed in Note 3 in order to comply
with the Operating Agreement with the Manitoba Housing Renewal Corporation, the financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Luther Home Corporation as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for
profit organizations.

Chartered Accountants

1515 ONE LOMBAND Pt ACF WNNIPEG MB 113B 0X3 2O4) 956-9.400 FAX (204) 956-9424
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2015

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash and marketable securities (Note 4)
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

DUE FROM WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY (Note 5)

CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 6)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Subsidy due to Manitoba Housing
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7)

Term loans due on demand (Note 7)

ACCRUED BENEFIT ENTITLEMENT

LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 7)

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital assets
Subsidy surplus reserve
Replacement reserve (Note 8)

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Internally restricted - Sterkell (Note 9)
Internally restricted - Christ Lutheran Church (Note 9)
Internally restricted - Memorial Fund (Note 9)

2015 2014
(Note 14)

$$ 718,612
344,839

16,809
22,876

580,370
220,509

13 044
27,025

1,103,136 840,948

538,272 518,271

5,576,623 5,786,996

$ 7,218,031 $ 7,146,215

$ 1,013,181 $ 920,439
18,528 21,946

110,153 100,944

1,141,862 1,043,329

503,841 631,934

1,645,703 1,675,263

343,154 324,599

1,892,479 2,002,518

533,830 531,612
79,719 78,563

135,272 139,335

4,630,157 4,751,890

2,170,060 2,253,560
151,839 125,000
253,679 -

12,296 15,765

2,587,874 2,394,325

$ 7,218,031 $ 7,146,215

APPROVED ON EHALF OF THE BOARD

Director

Director
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2015

REVENUE
Long-term care (Schedule 7)
1080 Powers (Schedule 2)
1084 Powers (Schedule 3)
364 Leila (Schedule 4)
Adult Day Program (Schedule 5)
Home Care Program (Schedule 6)
Management Services (Schedule 7)
Memorial Fund (Schedule 8)
Donation Fund - Sterkell
Donation Fund - Christ Lutheran Church

EXPENSES
Long-term care (Schedule 7)
1080 Powers (Schedule 2)
1084 Powers (Schedule 3)
364 Leila (Schedule 4)
Adult Day Program (Schedule 5)
Home Care Program (Schedule 6)
Management Services (Schedule 7)
Memorial Fund (Schedule 8)

2015 2014

(Note 14)

$ 6,056,024
523,606
324,414
529,490
143,896
332,688

7,732
29,015
26,839

253,679

$ 5,854,627
518,313
332,223
463,003
137,420
332,688

9,429
33,619

125,000

8,227,383 7,806,322

6,065,735 5,776,235
508,606 503,313
269,266 245,278
532,467 435,750
143,041 138,223
350,594 332,065

33,660 22,327
32,484 33,357

7,935,853 7,486,548

291,530 319,774

(18,555) 13,082

272,975 332,856

78,418 125,017

1,008 1,008

$ 193,549 $ 206,831

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER

OTHER
Benefit bank value change - vacation

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES BEFORE ALLOCATION

ALLOCATION TO REPLACEMENT RESERVE

ALLOCATION TO INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE RESERVE

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Statement of Cash Flow

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year
Adjustments for:

Allocation to replacement reserve
Amortization of capital assets
Amortization of deferred contributions related to

capital assets

_______________________________

Adjustments for changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and

Manitoba Housing
Accrued benefit entitlement

_______________________________

Cash flow from operating activities

_______________________________

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets
Due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority

_______________________________

Cash flow from investing activities

_______________________________

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in deferred contributions
Repayment of term loans
Repayment of long-term debt

____________________________

Cash flow from financing activities

_______________________________

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

______________________

CASH - END OF YEAR

$ 193,549 5 81,831

78,418
293,570

110,017
285,344

(44,973) (92,054)

520,564 385,138

(124,330) (142,560)
4,149 (6,548)

(3,765) 13,450

89,324 (11,482)
18,555 (18,025)

504,497 219,973

(83,197) (117,173)
(20,001) 30,228

(103,198) (86,945)

(34,134) 88,928
(128,093) (145,702)
(100,830) (92,195)

(263,057) (148,969)

138,242 (15,941)

580,370 596,311

$ 718,612 $ 580,370
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2015

1. INCORPORATION AND OPERATIONS

Luther Home Corporation (the ‘Corporation”) was incorporated on May 25, 1968 as a non-profit
organization without share capital. The mission of the Corporation is to minister with love and
compassion to the physical, mental, spiritual and social needs of persons requiring care within their
facility and surrounding community.

Luther Home Corporation consists of four properties: 1081 Andrews Street, 1080 Powers Street,
1084 Powers Street and 364 Leila Avenue.

The property at 1081 Andrews Street is a long-term care facility. The property at 1080 Powers Street is
a subsidized senior housing project. The property at 1084 Powers Street is a subsidized senior housing
project. The property at 364 Leila Avenue is a group home for mentally challenged individuals.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations (ASNPO), except as disclosed in Note 3.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations (ASNPO), except as explained below, in order to comply with the Operating
Agreement with the Manitoba Housing Renewal Corporation (MHRC).

The specific accounting policies that differ from the Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations (ASNPO) include the following:

(a) Amortization for the building, furniture and equipment at 1080 Powers Street is calculated at a rate
equal to the annual principal reduction of the mortgage from MHRC. No amortization is charged on
other capital assets. Donated capital assets are not amortized.

(b) Capital assets purchased from the Replacement Reserve are charged against Replacement
Reserve account, rather than being capitalized on the statement of financial position and amortized
over these estimated useful lives; and

(c) A reserve for future capital replacement is appropriated annually from operations.

(continues)
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted contributions are
recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. Revenue recognized for
donated assets is deferred when the donated asset is received and recognized in each period to the
extent of the amortization expense on the related asset. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as
revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and
collection is reasonably assured.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance for
doubtful accounts is provided where considered necessary. Amortization, except as required under the
operating agreement with MHRC for 1080 Powers Street, is based on the estimated useful lives of
capital assets.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary,
they are reported in excess of revenues and expenses in the periods in which they become known.

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost, less any related grants. The cost for contributed capital assets is
considered to be fair value at the date of contribution.

Amortization is provided using the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives.

Rate

Buildings — 1081 Andrews Street 20 and 50 years
Automotive — 1081 Andrews Street 8 years
Real time locating system — computer 4 years
Computer and system software — 1081 Andrews Street 4 years
Furniture, equipment and improvements— 1081 Andrews Street 10 and 20 years
Real time locating system 10 years
Buildings — 364 Leila 40 years
Furniture and fixtures — 364 Leila 10 years

(continues)
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital assets (continued)

The Corporation performs impairment testing on capital assets whenever changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Impairment is measured as the
amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in
earnings for the year.

For 1080 Powers Street, amortization is provided on the building, furniture and equipment purchased
from loans by MHRC at a rate equal to the annual principal reduction of the mortgage. No amortization
is charged on capital assets; however, a replacement reserve is maintained to provide for future asset
replacement. Donated capital assets are not amortized.

Income taxes

The Corporation is registered as a non-profit organization, and as such, it is exempt from income taxes
under Section 149 of the Income Tax Act.

Replacement reserve

In accordance with the guidelines established by MHRC, Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA)
and CMHC, a replacement reserve liability has been established. The replacement reserve is funded
from the Corporation’s operations through an annual allocation to the reserve. The amount to be
allocated is the amount set out in the corresponding budget or another amount approved by the
Corporation.

Deferred contributions

Capital asset deferred contributions represent the unamortized portion of restricted contributions relating
to the purchase of capital assets. Revenue is recognized at the same rate as related assets are
amortized.

Inventory

Inventory held for consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed are recognized at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Accrued benefit entitlement

1081 Andrews Street has a contractual commitment to pay out to employees four days per year of
service upon retirement if they comply with the following conditions:

(a) have ten years of service and have reached the age of 55; or
(b) qualify for the 80” rule which is calculated by adding the number of years of service to the age of

the employee; or
(c) retire at or after the age of 65; or
(d) terminate employment at any time due to permanent disability.

(continues)
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accrued benefit entitlement (continued)

The Corporation has recorded an accrual based on an actuarial valuation that includes employees who
qualify at the year-end balance sheet date and an estimate for the remainder of employees who have
not yet met the criteria above. Funding for the pre-retirement entitlement is recoverable from the WRHA
up to a pre-determined percentage.

Internally restricted net assets

The Corporation has restricted donations in the Memorial Fund and two Donation Funds. These funds
may be designated for specific projects to enhance the care of residents of the Corporation.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments consist of cash and marketable securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable
and accrued expenses, subsidy due to MHRC, term loans due on demand and long-term debt.

All financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value, and are subsequently reported at amortized
cost.

Transaction costs on all financial instruments are expensed as incurred.

It is management’s opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to any significant interest, currency, or
credit risk arising from these financial instruments.

4. CASH AND MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities include GICs, stated at market value, which earned interest at an average rate of
1.47% at year end. Restricted cash and marketable securities are amounts allocated to reserve and
trust accounts that are subject to restrictions.

2015 2014

Cash and marketable securities, restricted $ 214,740 $ 217,598
Cash and marketable securities, unrestricted 503,872 363,132

$ 718,612 $ 580,370
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2015

5. DUE FROM WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY (WRHA)

Vacation entitlement
Pre-retirement entitlement

2015 2014

$ 133,100 $ 133,100
405,172 385,171

$ 538,272 $ 518,271

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement and vacation entitlement
obligations was originally capped at the amount owing as at March 31, 2004 and has been recorded as
a receivable on the balance sheet.

For the period April 1, 2004 to March 31, 2006, the WRHA partially funded the change in the pre
retirement entitlement. For the period April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2015, the WRHA fully funded the
change in the pre-retirement entitlement.

6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Land — 1081 Andrews St.
Buildings — 1081 Andrews St.
Automotive — 1081 Andrews St.
Real time locating system —

computer
Computer and system software —

1081 Andrews St.
Furniture, equipment and

improvements — 1081 Andrews St.

Real time locating system
Buildings — 364 Leila Ave
Furniture and fixtures — 364 Leila

Ave.
Land, building and equipment —

1080 Powers St.
Land, building and equipment —

1084 Powers St.

Net book value

2015 2014
Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost Amortization

$ 51,952 $ - $ 51,952 $ -

3,064,366 1,354,496 3,064,366 1,258,726
74,399 71,099 74,399 69,021

16,461 10,226 9,335 9,335

183,011 181,970 183,011 181,448

2,865,584 2,091,000 2,789,510 1,990,538

167,863 142,683 167,863 125,897
229,430 102,103 229,430 96,727

24,404 23,907 24,404 23,575

2,889,843 642,000 2,889,843 570,648

1,925,129 1,296,335 1,925,129 1,296,335

$ 11,492,442 $ 5,915,819 $ 11,409,245 $ 5,622,249

$ 5,576,623 $ 5,786,996
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2015

_2015 2014

Mortgage loan, with MHRC, bearing interest at 10.125% per
annum, repayable in monthly instalments of $21,387,
including interest and secured by the land and building at
1080 Powers Street, due July 1,2027.

Mortgage loan, with CMHC, bearing interest at 6.875% per
annum, repayable in monthly instalments of $3,532, including
interest and secured by the land and building at 1081
Andrews Street, due January 1, 2020.

Term demand loan, with Bank of Montreal, beating interest at
prime plus .75%, repayable in monthly principal payments of
$2,633, secured by assignment of proceeds of the contract
with the WRHA for the laundry project, due February 1, 2016.

Term demand loan, with Bank of Montreal, bearing interest at
prime plus .75% repayable in monthly principal payments of
$1 975, secured by assignment of proceeds of the contract
with the WRHA for the emergency generator, due March 1,
2020.

Term demand loan, with Bank of Montreal, bearing interest at
prime plus .75%, secured by assignments of proceeds of the
contract with the WRHA for the boiler replacements, due
September 1, 2023.

Term demand loan, with Bank of Montreal, bearing interest at
prime plus .75%, for renovations at 1084 Powers Street, due
September 1,2017.

Less: Term loans due on demand

Less: Current portion of long-term debt

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$ 109,000
120,000
131,000
143,000
149,000

$ 1,828,354 $ 1,899,706

174,277

57,873

120,234

226,670

203,756

89,493

143,934

259,790

99,064 138,716

2,506,473 2,735,396

503,841 631,934

110,153 100,944

$ 1,892,479 $ 2,002,518

Principal repayments on long-term debt in each of the next five years are estimated as follows:

12



LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2015

8. REPLACEMENT RESERVE

1081 And rews Street

Under the terms of the agreement with WRHA, the replacement reserve account was credited in the
amount of $4,776 (2014 -$18,776). These funds must be held in a separate bank account and/or

invested only in accounts or instruments insured by the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation or as
may otherwise be approved by WRHA from time to time. The use of the funds in the account may
require approval by the WHRA.

1080 Powers Street

Under the terms of the agreement with MHRC, the replacement reserve account is to be credited in the

amount of $15,000 (2014 - $15,000) annually until it accumulates $525,000 plus interest. These funds,

along with accumulated interest, must be held in a separate bank account and/or invested only in

accounts or instruments insured by the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation or as may otherwise be

approved by MHRC from time to time. The funds in the account may only be used as approved by

MHRC. Withdrawals are credited to interest first and then principal.

9. INTERNALLY RESTRICTED FUNDS

During the 2013 fiscal year, the Board of Directors approved using the Memorial Fund to fund the
deficiency of revenue of expenses of the operations of the Chaplaincy Services (Schedule 8) in the

amount of $17,538. For the current year, a deficit on the operations of the Chaplaincy Services in the

amount of $3,469 was transferred from the Memorial Fund.

During the current year, two donations were received from the Christ Lutheran Church, with specific

conditions on the use of the donated funds.

10. PROVINCIAL HOME CARE

1084 Powers Street received $332,688 (2014- $332,688) from the WRHA— Home Care Division during

the current year as a reimbursement of staff salaries and benefits paid.

11. RESIDENTIAL SUPPORT PROGRAM

364 Leila Avenue received $529,490 (2014 - $463,003) from Family Services during the current year for

residential services.

12. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

A significant portion of Luther Home’s revenues are received from the WRHA and MHRC. Of the total

revenue, 70% (2014— 70%) is from these organizations.
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2015

13. PENSION PLAN

Substantially all of the employees of the Home are members of The Healthcare Employees Pension
Plan (successor to the Manitoba Health Organization, Inc. Plan) (the “Plan”) which is a multi-employer
defined pension plan available to all eligible employees of the participating members of the Plan. Plan
members will receive benefits based on the length of service and on the average of annualized earnings
during the best five years of the last ten years that provide the highest earnings, prior to retirement,
termination or death. Pension assets consist of investment-grade securities. Market and credit risk on
these securities are managed by the Plan by placing plan assets in trust and through the Plan
investment policy. Pension expense is based on Plan management’s best estimates in consultation
with its actuaries. Contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Home on behalf of its
employees amounted to $355,414 (2014 - $311,015). This amount was determined by contributing
8.7% of eligible salaries up to $53,600 and 10.3% of the portion of salaries in excess of $53,600 and
matches contributions by employees. The funding objective is for employer contributions to the Plan to
remain equal to employee contributions. Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual
experience may be material and any differences are generally to be funded by the participating
members. The most recent actuarial valuation of the Plan, as at December 31, 2013, indicates the Plan
is fully funded.

14. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

During the current year, management discovered that a restricted donation that had been deferred on
the statement of financial position should have been recognized as revenue in the prior year.
Therefore, the financial statements have been retroactively restated to reflect this adjustment.

The effect of this restatement on the prior year financial statements is as follows:

- Accounts payable and accrued expenses decreased by $125,000
- Internally restricted net assets — Sterkell increased by $125,000
- Unrestricted net assets decreased by $125,000
- Donation Fund — Sterkell revenue increased by $125,000
- Excess of revenue over expenses after other and allocation

of replacement reserve increased by $125,000
- Net assets — End of Year increased by $125,000
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION
Schedule I

Statement of Operations
Long-Term Care

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

REVENUE FROM RESIDENT SERVICES
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
Amortization of deferred contributions
Residential charges

_______________________________

OFFSET REVENUES
Dietetics
Interest
Parking
Project maintenance
Other

________________________________

EXPENSES
Administration
Amortization of capital assets
Food
Interest on long-term debt
Maintenance and repairs
Medical supplies
Other supplies and expenses
Purchased services
Salaries, benefits and payroll levy
Utilities

__________________________________

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES BEFORE
ALLOCATION

ALLOCATION TO REPLACEMENT RESERVE

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ (15,495) $ 72,608

$ 4,283,833
44,973

1,330,367

$ 4,069,149
92,054

1,358,908

5,659,173 5,520,111

138,517 136,511
- 108

12,557 13,067
191,301 136,685
54,476 48,145

396,851 334,516

6,056,024 5,854,627

70,415 92,479
216,511 214,964
237,844 226,514
29,473 34,899
77,914 85,243
89,934 86,044

150,622 142,888
24,663 25,956

5,032,476 4,739,537
135,883 127,711

6,065,735 5,776,235

(9,711) 78,392

4,776 4,776

1,008 1,008ALLOCATION TO INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE RESERVE
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Statement of Operations
1080 Powers St.

Year Ended March 31, 2015

Schedule 2

Budget Actual Actual
2075 2015 2014

(unaudited)

REVENUES
Manitoba Housing Renewal Corporation - subsidy
Rental revenue
Cablevision
Other

EXPENSES
Administration (Schedule Al)
Amortization of capital assets
Cablevision
Electricity
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt
Repairs and maintenance (Schedule A3)
Natural gas
Property taxes
Water

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES BEFORE
EXCESS SUBSIDY AND ALLOCATION

EXCESS SUBSIDY DUE TO MANITOBA HOUSING
RENEWAL CORPORATION

ALLOCATION TO REPLACEMENT RESERVE

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

$ - $ 280,209 $
213,500 219,427

16,000 17,010
6,000 6,960

280,082
214,993

16,956
6,282

235,500 523,606 578,313

25,400 31,140 37,408
- 71,352 64,641

16,000 15,941 15,904
39,100 47,162 47,317
3,500 4,266 2,747

- 185,295 792,006
77,200 74,886 71,905
19,000 16,167 15,701

- 23,562 23,435
17,000 20,307 16,303

191,200 490,078 487,367

44,300 33,528 36,946

- (18,528) (21,946)

15,000 15,000 15,000

$ 29,300 $ - $ -
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION
Schedule 3

Statement of Operations
1084 Powers St.

Year Ended March 31, 2075

2015 2014

REVENUES
Rental revenue
Other

_______________________________

EXPENSES
Administration
Cablevision
Electricity
Insurance
Interest on long- term debt
Janitorial services
Maintenance and repairs
Natural gas
Other supplies and expenses
Professional fees
Property taxes
Security
Water

_______________________________

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES BEFORE
ALLOCATION

ALLOCATION TO REPLACEMENT RESERVE

________________________

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

$ 314,649
9,765

$ 321,482
10,741

324,414 332,223

39,120 39,120
19,284 18,309
25,612 26,145

6,836 5,316
4,491 6,007

18,716 17,331
81,667 68,193
20,539 15,867

1,597 1,523
2,160 2,428

32,022 27,986
2,010 1,935

15,212 15,118

269,266 245,278

55,148 86,945

58,642 79,460

$ (3,494) $ 7,485

17



LUTHER HOME CORPORATION
Schedule 4

Statement of Operations

364 Leila Ave.

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

REVENUES
Province of Manitoba - residential support program
Province of Manitoba - residential support program - Extra staffing

Province of Manitoba - residential support program - Benefits

_______________________________

EXPENSES
Administration
Amortization of capital assets
Electricity
Food supplies
Insurance
Janitorial services
Maintenance and repairs
Natural gas
Other supplies and expenses
Professional fees
Property taxes
Salaries, benefits and payroll levy
Telephone
Water

________________________________

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

BEFORE ALLOCATION

ALLOCATION TO REPLACEMENT RESERVE

_________________________

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

$ 437,694 $ 437,664
78,538 17,532
13,258 7,807

529,490 463,003

39,700 13,200
5,708 5,739
4,274 4,108

26,770 22,323
556 358

4,410 3,452
11,174 10,512

958 974
3,861 3,226
2,160 2,428
4,265 4,536

422,269 359,130
3,609 3,779
2,753 1,985

532,467 435,750

(2,977) 27,253

- 25,781

$ (2,977) $ 1,472
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Schedule 5
Statement of Operations

Adult Day Program

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

REVENUES

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
Participant charges

_______________________________

EXPENSES

Other supplies and expenses
Salaries, benefits and payroll levy
Travel

$ 125,223
18,673

$ 120,704
16,716

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

143,896 137,420

16,457 16,344
62,086 57,057
64,498 64,822

143,041 138,223

$ 855 $ (803)
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION
Schedule 6

Statement of Operations
Home Care Program

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

REVENUES
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority $ 332,688 $ 332,688

EXPENSES
Other supplies and expenses 15,180 15,180
Salaries, benefits and payroll levy 335,414 316,885

350,594 332,065

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ (17,906) $ 623
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Statement of Operations
Management Services

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015

Schedule 7

2014

REVENUE
Other

EXPENSES
Board expenses
Education
Legal fees
Miscellaneous
Scholarship
Staff appreciation
Tenant and staff gifts

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

$ 7,732 $ 9,429

2,917 2,430
17,250 -

- 7,248
25 -

1,000 998
9,330 9,003
3,138 2,648

33,660 22,327

$ (25,928) $ (12,898)
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Statement of Operations
Memorial Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2015

2015

Schedule 8

2014

REVENUES
General contributions

EXPENSES
Miscellaneous
Spiritual care

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

$ 29,015 $ 33,619

60 68
32,424 33,289

32,484 33,357

$ (3,469) $ 262
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LUTHER HOME CORPORATION

Supplementary Information

Year Ended March 31, 2015

Schedule 9

REPLACEMENT RESERVE
RESERVE FOR CAPITAL ASSETS

Opening balance
Current allocation
Interest earned
Current expenditures

Ending balance

RESERVE FOR MAJOR REPAIRS
Opening balance
Current allocation
Interest earned
Current expenditures

Ending balance

RESERVE FOR INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE
Opening balance
Current allocation

Ending balance

TOTAL

CAPITAL ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
CAPITAL ASSETS

Opening balance
Additions

Ending balance

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance
Current year depreciation

Ending balance

NET BOOK VALUE

SUBSIDY SURPLUS
Opening balance
Interest earned

Ending balance

LONG-TERM DEBT
Opening balance
Principal payment

Ending balance
Less: Current portion and

term loans due on demand

$ - $ 119,534
- 119,329
- 1,759

(122,337)

Long-Term 1080 1084 364
Care Powers Street Powers Street Leila Avenue Total

$ 15,171 $ 104,363 $ -

45,687 15,000 58,642
223 1,536 -

(45,522) (18,173) (58,642)

15,559 102,726 - - 118,285

10,729 - - - 10,729
4,776 - - - 4,776

157 - - - 157
(8,755) - - - (8,755)

6,907 - - - 6,907

9,072 - - - 9,072
1,008 - - - 1,008

10,080 - - - 10,080

$ 32,546 $ 102,726 $ - $ - $ 135,272

$ 6,340,437 $ 2,889,844 $ 1,925,129 $ 253,835 $ 11,409,245
83,198 - - - 83,198

6,423,635 2,889,844 1,925,129 253,835 11,492,443

3,634,962 570,649 1,296,335 120,303 5,622,249
216,511 71,352 - 5,708 293,571

3,851,473 642,001 1,296,335 126,011 5,915,820

$ 2,572,162 $ 2,247,843 $ 628,794 $ 127,824 $ 5,576,623

$ - $ - $ 78,563 $ - $ 78,563
-

- 1,156 - 1,156

$ - $ - $ 79,719 $ - $ 79,719

$ 696,974 $ 1,899,706 $ 138,717 $ - $ 2,735,397
(117,919) (71,352) (39,653) - (228,924)

579,055 1,828,354 99,064 - 2,506,473

(436,318) (78,612) (99,064) - (613,994)

$ 142,737 $ 1,749,742 $ - $ - $ 1,892,479
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MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Statement of Financial Position

As at March 31 2015 2014 

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and bank $ 2,098,011 $ 2,563,199
Accounts receivable (Note 2) 196,210 162,206
Due from WRHA (Note 3) 460,200 296,195
Inventories 73,383 64,467
Prepaid expenses 12,932 16,656
Vacation entitlements receivable 381,653 381,653

3,222,389 3,484,376

Due from Mount Carmel Clinic Foundation 20,955 120,668

Retirement obligation receivable (Note 14) 517,257 426,372

Capital assets (Note 5) 3,848,273 3,564,658
$ 7,608,874 $ 7,596,074

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6) $ 736,631 $ 894,535
Due to WRHA (Note 7) 146,304 97,808
Accrued vacation entitlements (Note 4) 480,845 431,536
Deferred revenue (Note 8) 355,066 519,815

1,718,846 1,943,694

Accrued retirement obligations (Note 14) 717,000 615,000

Deferred Contributions (Note 9)
     Expenses of future periods 223,046 351,281
     Capital assets 2,656,305 2,613,854

5,315,197 5,523,829

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)

Net Assets (page 5) 2,293,677 2,072,245
$ 7,608,874 $ 7,596,074

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors:

________________________________________     Director

________________________________________     Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 3
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MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Revenue
Amortization of deferred contributions $ 128,772 $ 137,282
Dental fees 65,102 74,215
Donations 14,397 45,149
Investment income 33,652 45,064
Medical program 77,994 75,808
Other 655,579 658,650
Parent fees 44,413 38,582
Pharmacy sales 1,065,240 1,137,050
Province of Manitoba 606,044 619,187
United Way of Winnipeg 155,074 155,172
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (Note 12) 8,343,996 8,325,874

11,190,263 11,312,033

Expenses
Amortization of capital assets 221,722 222,836
Bank charges and interest 15,220 14,811
Charitable drug program 23,247 26,053
Drugs 563,408 601,687
Maintenance and repairs 101,354 85,125
Office supplies and expenses 124,256 144,123
Other occupancy costs 79,194 86,193
Program supplies and other expenses 727,505 791,058
Salaries and benefits 8,772,936 8,637,805
Travel, meetings and conferences 84,618 128,901
Utilities 164,487 180,542

10,877,947 10,919,134

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year
before other item  312,316 392,899

Other Item
Change in accrued retirement obligations

Increase in liability (90,884) (26,278)

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ 221,432 $ 366,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 4



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2015

Externally Internally
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

Invested
In Capital

Operating Day Care Donation Capital Assets 2015 2014
Fund Fund Fund Fund (Note 11) Total Total 

Net assets, beginning of year $ 545,197 $ (3,861) $ 146,173 $ 433,932 $ 950,804 $ 2,072,245 $ 1,705,624

Excess of revenue 
over expenses for the year 357,546 (62,592) 16,219 3,209 (92,950) 221,432 366,621

Interfund transfers
Acquisition of capital assets (334,114) - - - 334,114 - -
Other 8,064 5,000 (13,064) - - - -

Net assets, end of year $ 576,693 $ (61,453) $ 149,328 $ 437,141 $ 1,191,968 $ 2,293,677 $ 2,072,245

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ 221,432 $ 366,621
Items not affecting cash

Amortization of capital assets 221,722 222,836
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets (128,772) (137,282)

314,382 452,175

Changes in non-cash working capital 
Accounts receivable (34,004) 90,873
Due from WRHA (164,005) (215,364)
Inventories (8,916) 3,361
Prepaid expenses 3,724 909
Retirement obligation receivable (90,885) (26,278)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (157,904) (217,125)
Due to WRHA 48,496 929
Accrued vacation entitlements 49,309 (22,153)
Deferred revenue (164,749) (99,944)
Accrued retirement obligations 102,000 26,278
Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods (128,235) (135,456)

(545,169) (593,970)

(230,787) (141,795)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipt of deferred contributions related to capital assets 171,223 46,772

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (505,336) (310,668)
Net decrease in amount due

from Mount Carmel Clinic Foundation 99,712 32,687

(405,624) (277,981)

Net decrease in cash and bank (465,188) (373,004)

Cash and bank, beginning of year 2,563,199 2,936,203

Cash and bank, end of year $ 2,098,011 $ 2,563,199

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 6



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Nature of the Organization

Mount Carmel Clinic ("Clinic") is an inter-disciplinary community health centre committed to
providing comprehensive health care to the community. The Clinic is incorporated under
The Mount Carmel Clinic Act, enacted by the Manitoba Legislature, as a not-for-profit
organization and is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

b) Basis of Accounting

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. 

c) Fund Accounting

The Operating Fund records the day-to-day operations of the Clinic.

The Day Care Fund records the day-to-day operations of the Anne Ross Day Nursery
("Day Care").

The Donation Fund records donor receipts and interest on investments and disburses the
funds based on specific instructions or Board of Directors' approval. 

The Capital Fund is used to fund the Clinic's internally restricted renovation projects and
the purchase of equipment and furnishings at the discretion of the Board of Directors.  

Invested in Capital Assets Fund represents the Clinic's internally restricted net assets that
are not available for other purposes because they have been invested in capital assets
(Note 11).

d) Revenue Recognition

The Clinic follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include
donations and government grants.

The majority of the Clinic's funding is provided by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
("WRHA") by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with budget arrangements agreed to
by the WRHA and the Clinic. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to
which they relate. Grants approved but not received at the end of an accounting period are
accrued. Where a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized
in that subsequent period. These financial statements reflect agreed funding arrangements
approved by WRHA with respect to the year ended March 31, 2015.

7



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

d) Revenue Recognition (continued)

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the
related expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital
assets are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate
corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when
earned.

e) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost, determined by the first-in, first-out method, and
net realizable value.

f) Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent
periods, equity instruments traded in an active market are reported at fair value, with any
unrealized gains and losses reported in income. All other financial instruments are
reported at cost or amortized cost less impairment, if applicable. Financial assets are
tested for impairment when changes in circumstances indicate the asset could be
impaired. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are
expensed for those items remeasured at fair value at each statement of financial position
date and charged to the financial instrument for those measured at amortized cost.

g) Employee Future Benefits

Pension and other employee future benefit costs are determined using the projected
benefit method prorated on years of service and based on best estimate assumptions.

For the 2005 and 2006 fiscal years, out-of-globe funding for these costs was not provided
by Manitoba Health/WRHA.

8



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

h) Capital Assets

Capital assets with cost exceeding $2,000 are recorded at cost less accumulated
amortization. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of the assets as indicated below:

Buildings 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 5 years

i) Contributed Services

Volunteers contributed a significant number of hours to assist the Clinic in carrying out its
service delivery activities. Because of the difficulty in determining their fair value,
contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.

j) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

2. Accounts Receivable
2015 2014 

Receivable for Clinic services $ 167,031 $ 128,083
Other receivables 29,179 34,123

$ 196,210 $ 162,206

3. Due from WRHA
2015 2014 

2011/2012 funding adjustment $ - $ 2,504
2012/2013 funding adjustment - 65,634
2013/2014 funding adjustment 263,583 228,057
2014/2015 funding adjustment 196,617 -

$ 460,200 $ 296,195

9



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

4. Accrued Vacation Entitlements

The Clinic records a provision for accrued vacation entitlements. Prior to March 31, 2004
changes in the liability related to vacation were recoverable from Manitoba Health. At that
date, Manitoba Health advised that subsequent to March 31, 2004 all funding related to past
and future vacation entitlement costs would be included in in-globe funding and that the
maximum liability to be recognized by Manitoba Health to facilities would be capped at  March
31, 2004 levels. Accordingly, each year as vacation entitlements are paid and earned by the
Clinic's employees, the related vacation entitlement receivable is collected and re-established
up to this maximum amount.

An analysis of the changes accrued in the vacation entitlements is as follows:

Balance, beginning of year $ 431,536 $ 453,689
Net increase (decrease) in accrued vacation entitlements 49,309 (22,153)

Balance, end of year $ 480,845 $ 431,536

5. Capital Assets
2015 2014 

Accumulated Accumulated 
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization 

Landscaping $ 222,702 $ - $ 222,702 $ -
Buildings 6,246,356 3,018,533 5,995,555 2,862,373
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment 667,765 419,919 537,844 366,615
Computer equipment 179,284 130,255 155,542 117,997
Construction-in-progress 100,873 - - -

$ 7,416,980 $ 3,568,707 $ 6,911,643 $ 3,346,985

Cost less accumulated amortization $ 3,848,273 $ 3,564,658

6.  Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $90,158 ($105,060 in 2014) in government
remittances payable.

10



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

7. Due to WRHA

Amounts due to WRHA are for medical remuneration.

8. Deferred Revenue

2015 2014 

Operating Fund
Day Care grant $ 4,392 $ 2,535
Day Care subsidy advance 15,510 15,510
Dental - 24,721
FACT Coalition 35,117 62,024
Other 129,057 115,363
Parenting Student Program 26,973 31,740
Primary Health 27,454 46,232
Sage House 14,827 14,787

253,330 312,912

Donation Fund
Child Day Care Centre 9,112 9,810
Mount Carmel Clinic Foundation 15,106 115,979
Other 26,301 25,215
Sage House 51,217 55,899

101,736 206,903

$ 355,066 $ 519,815

11



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

9. Deferred Contributions

Expenses of Future Periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally
restricted funding.

 2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 351,281 $ 486,737
Add amounts received during year 9,000 61,224
Less amounts recognized as revenue or transferred to 

deferred contributions related to capital assets during year (142,035) (201,480)
Transfer from Day Care 4,800 4,800

Balance, end of year $ 223,046 $ 351,281

Capital Assets

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of
donations, grants received and funding of approved borrowings for the purchase of capital
assets. The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of
operations at rates which match the amortization of the related capital asset purchased with
the donation, grant or approved borrowing.

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,613,854 $ 2,704,364
Add amounts received during year 171,223 46,772
Less amounts recognized as revenue during the year (128,772) (137,282)

Balance, end of year $ 2,656,305 $ 2,613,854

10. Operating Line of Credit

The Clinic has an operating line of credit for $275,000 which bears interest at the bank's prime
rate of 2.85% at March 31, 2015. The balance in the line of credit at year end was $NIL ($NIL
in 2014). The Clinic's approved line of credit is secured by a general assignment of the Clinic's
assets.

12



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

11. Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets

Net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2015 2014 

Capital assets, net book value $ 3,848,273 $ 3,564,658
Less amounts financed by 

Deferred contributions 2,656,305 2,613,854

$ 1,191,968 $ 950,804

The deficiency of revenue over expenses for the year for the Invested in Capital Assets Fund
is calculated as follows:

2015 2014 

Revenue
Amortization of deferred contributions related 

to capital assets $ 128,772 $ 137,282

Expenses
Amortization of capital assets 221,722 222,836

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for the year $ (92,950) $ (85,554)

13



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

12. Revenue from the WRHA

2015 2014 

Revenue as per WRHA final funding document 
(March 31, 2015 EFT) $ 8,034,941 $ 7,892,324

Add (deduct)
Group health 43,043 (3,644)
Mothering Project 18,256 13,055
Operational reviews - 8,582
Other 4,190 (1,316)
Other employee benefits - 15,922
Out of Globe - Pre-retirement leave 90,885 102,223
Staffing positions 161,640 103,703
ACT funding 59,834 22,000

377,848 260,525

Add (deduct)
Deferred funds:

Strategic Planning (3,855) 40,000
Strengthening Families (37,825) 36,801

Medical remuneration (19,105) 67,247

(60,785) 144,048

Total funding approved by WRHA 8,352,004 8,296,897

Add
Day care operations - 36,977

Deduct
Reserve for major repairs (7,000) (7,000)
Deferred funds - Insurance deductible (1,008) (1,000)

(8,008) (8,000)

Revenue from WRHA $ 8,343,996 $ 8,325,874

14



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

13. Commitments and Contingencies

The nature of the Clinic's activities is such that there is usually litigation pending or in prospect
at any time. With respect to claims at March 31, 2015, management believes the Clinic has
valid defences and appropriate insurance coverage in place. In the event any claims are
successful, management believes that such claims are not expected to have a material effect
on the Clinic's financial position.

On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations, ("subscribers"), formed Healthcare
Insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC"). HIROC is registered as a Reciprocal pursuant to
provincial Insurance Acts, which permit persons reciprocal contracts of indemnity insurance.
HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage to health care organizations in
the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Newfoundland. Subscribers pay
annual premiums, which are actuarially determined, and are subject to assessment for losses
in excess of such premiums, of any experienced by the group of subscribers for the years in
which they were a subscriber. No such assessments have been made to March 31, 2015. The
Clinic is a named insured under the WRHA policy with HIROC.

The Clinic leases equipment under the provisions of operating leases which expire up to
December 2019. Payments required are as follows for years ending March 31:

2016 $ 46,200
2017 7,600
2018 7,600
2019 7,000
2020 5,300

14. Employee Future Benefits

Accrued Retirement Entitlement

Based upon collective agreements and/or non-union policy, employees of the Clinic are
entitled to a pre-retirement leave benefit if they are retiring in accordance with the provisions
of the applicable Clinic Group Pension Plan. The Clinic's contractual commitment is to pay
four days of salary per year of service upon retirement if the employee complies with one of
the following conditions:

i) has 10 years service and has reached the age 55

ii) qualifies for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the number of years of service
to the age of the employee

iii) retires at or after age 65

iv) terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability

15



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

14. Employee Future Benefits (continued)

Accrued Retirement Entitlement (continued)

The Clinic undertook an actuarial valuation of the pre-retirement leave benefit for accounting
purposes as at March 31, 2015. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring
the Clinic's accrued retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount
rate of 3.6% (3.6% in 2014) and a rate of salary increase of 3.0% (3.0% in 2014) plus age
related merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability.

The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement costs was initially
determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-retirement costs
as at March 31, 2004. Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has included in its
ongoing annual funding to the Clinic, an amount equivalent to the change in the pre-retirement
liability, which includes annual interest accretion related to the receivable. The receivable will
be paid by the Province when required.  

Commencing in 2006/2007, the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority assumed responsibility
for funding the annual increase in the obligation each year. This amount will also be paid
when required and the WRHA holds funding to meet this obligation. The retirement obligation
is receivable from Manitoba Health.

An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits payable is as follows:

2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 615,000 $ 588,722
Net increase in pre-retirement entitlements 102,000 26,278

Balance, end of year $ 717,000 $ 615,000

Pension Plan

Substantially all of the employees of the Clinic are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan (a successor to the Manitoba Health Organization Inc. Plan) (the "Plan") which
is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees of the
participating members of the Plan. Plan members will receive benefits based on the length of
service and on the average of annualized earnings during the best five years of the last
eleven years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provides the highest earnings. 

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these
securities are managed by the Plan by placing plan assets in trust and through the Plan
investment policy.

16



MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

14. Employee Future Benefits (continued)

Pension Plan (continued)

Pension expense is based on Plan management's best estimates, in consultation with its
actuaries, of the amount, together with the 7.90% of salaries under $52,500 and 9.50% for
salaries greater than $52,500, contributed by employees, required to provide a high level of
assurance that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided by
the Plan. The funding objective is for employer contributions to the Plan to remain a constant
percentage of employees' contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and
any differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent
actuarial valuation of the plan as at December 31, 2012 indicated that the Plan is in deficit.
The deficiency will be funded out of the current contributions in the subsequent years. On
April 1, 2013, both employer and employee contribution rates increased to 7.90% of
pensionable earnings up to YMPE and 9.50% on earnings in excess of the YMPE.
Contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Clinic on behalf of its employees
amounted to $483,939 ($418,488 in 2014) and are included in the statement of operations.

15. Economic Dependence

The Clinic is economically dependent upon government and other agencies for funding its
operations.

16. Financial Risk Management

The Clinic is exposed to different types of risk in the normal course of operations, including
credit risk and market risk. The Clinic's objective in risk management is to optimize the risk
return trade-off, within set limits, by applying integrated risk management and control
strategies, policies and procedures throughout the Clinic's activities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation
and causes financial loss to another party. Financial instruments which potentially subject the
Clinic to credit risk consist principally of accounts receivable.  
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MOUNT CARMEL CLINIC
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

16. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

The Clinic's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral or other
credit enhancements is as follows: 

2015 2014 

Accounts receivable $ 196,210 $ 162,206
Due from WRHA 460,200 296,195
Vacation entitlements receivable 381,653 381,653
Retirement obligations receivable 517,257 426,372

$ 1,555,320   $ 1,266,426

Accounts receivable: The Clinic is not exposed to significant credit risk as trade accounts
receivable are spread among a broad client base and payment in full is typically collected
when it is due. The Clinic establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts that represents its
estimate of potential credit losses. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on
management’s estimates and assumptions regarding current market conditions, customer
analysis and historical payment trends. These factors are considered when determining
whether past due accounts are allowed for or written off. 

Due from WRHA, vacation entitlements receivable and retirement obligations receivable: The
Clinic is not exposed to significant credit risk as these receivables are from the Province of
Manitoba and the Regional Health Authority.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Clinic will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due.
The Clinic is not subject to significant liquidity risk as it maintains adequate levels of working
capital to ensure all its obligations can be met when they fall due, and has access to an
operating line of credit.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. The Clinic is not exposed to significant interest rate risk since its cash
is held in short-term or variable rate products, and the operating line of credit is not utilized at
year end.
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500 - Five Donald Street
Winnipeg, Manitoba  R3L 2T4

Tel: (204) 284-7060
Fax: (204) 284-7105

www.bookeandpartners.ca

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Directors of
Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the statements of financial
activities, changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Nine
Circles Community Health Centre Inc. as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations.

Winnipeg, Canada
May 25, 2015 Chartered Accountants
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Statement of Financial Activities 
Year Ended March 31 2015 2014

Ed
Operating Capital Mousseau

Fund Fund Fund Total Total
Revenues

Winnipeg Regional
  Health Authority $3,642,653 $ - $ - $3,642,653 $3,575,444
AIDS Community 
  Action Program 236,608 - - 236,608 236,608
Grants 57,342 - - 57,342 103,865
Interest income 24,008 - 1,777 25,785 23,128
Donations 19,673 - - 19,673 20,533
Amortization of 
    deferred contributions - 17,814 - 17,814 20,383

3,980,284 17,814 1,777 3,999,875 3,979,961

Expenses
Operating Fund 
     (Page 12) 3,862,192 - - 3,862,192 3,807,477
Amortization - 48,265 - 48,265 40,791
Interest on capital lease - 52 - 52 949

3,862,192 48,317 - 3,910,509 3,849,217

Excess (deficiency) of 
     revenues over expenses 
     before under noted items 118,092 (30,503) 1,777 89,366 130,744

Pre-retirement 
leave (Note 11)
   Recovery 55,000 - - 55,000 25,903
   Expense (55,000) - - (55,000) (26,624)

Excess (deficiency) of 
     revenues over expenses $ 118,092 $ (30,503) $ 1,777 $ 89,366 $ 130,023

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended March 31 2015 2014

Invested Ed
Operating in Capital Mousseau

Fund Assets Fund Total Total

Fund balance, beginning
of year $ 792,144 $ 97,353 $ 14,751 $ 904,248 $ 774,225

Excess (deficiency) of 
   revenues over expenses 118,092 (30,503) 1,777 89,366 130,023
Transfer to Capital Fund for
   purchase of capital assets (19,386) 19,386 - - -

Fund balance, end of year $ 890,850 $ 86,236 $ 16,528 $ 993,614 $ 904,248

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Statement of Financial Position
Year Ended March 31 2015 2014

(Note 15)
Assets
Current

Cash and short-term investments (Note 3) $1,502,887 $1,424,590
Receivables (Note 4) 146,775 114,454
Due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 234,281 180,386
Prepaids 6,079 8,291

1,890,022 1,727,721
Due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (Note 11) 250,258 195,258
Long-term investments 146,791 145,013
Capital assets (Note 5) 148,814 149,671

$2,435,885 $2,217,663

Liabilities
Current

Payables and accruals $ 426,880 $ 329,638
Funds held in trust 2,360 6,149
Deferred contributions

     General operations (Notes 3 and 6) 532,223 562,080
Current portion of obligations 

under capital lease (Note 7) 7,249 6,400

968,712 904,267
Deferred contributions

Related to capital assets (Note 8) 33,581 43,640
Restricted contributions (Note 10) 130,262 130,262

Pre-retirement leave (Note 11) 287,968 232,968
Obligations under capital lease (Note 7) 21,748 2,278

1,442,271 1,313,415
Fund Balances
Operating Fund 890,850 792,144
Capital Fund 86,236 97,353
Ed Mousseau Fund 16,528 14,751

993,614 904,248

$2,435,885 $2,217,663

Approved by the Board

 Director  Director

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31 2015 2014

Cash derived from (applied to):

Operating 
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 89,366 $ 130,023
Amortization of capital assets 48,265 40,791
Amortization of deferred contributions (17,814) (20,383)

119,817 150,431

Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities (Note 9) (20,408) (247,685)

99,409 (97,254)

Investing 
Purchase of capital assets (14,077) (34,116)

Financing 
Repayment of capital lease (14,791) (14,781)
Proceeds of capital lease - 3,905
Funding received to purchase capital assets 7,756 -

(7,035) (10,876)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 78,297 (142,246)

Cash and short-term investments, beginning of year 1,424,590 1,566,836

Cash and short-term investments, end of year $1,502,887 $1,424,590

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1. Nature of operations

Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc. (the Organization) is a local community health
centre operating programs and performing services designed to meet specific community
needs.

The Organization was formed in 1991, is an incorporated not-for-profit entity and is a
registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

2. Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations. The significant accounting policies used are detailed as follows:

a) Fund accounting

Revenues and expenses related to program delivery and administrative activities are reported
in the Operating Fund.

The Capital Fund reports the revenues and expenses related to the Organization's capital
assets.

The Ed Mousseau Fund reports the revenues and expenses related to funding contributed by
Ed Mousseau to be used for special purposes.  

b) Revenue recognition

The Organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses
are incurred.  Unrestricted contributions, including grants, are recognized as revenue of the
appropriate fund when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

c) Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost.  Amortization is provided at rates designed to
write off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Equipment 4-5 years straight-line
Computer equipment 4-5 years straight-line
Computer software 4 years straight-line
Leaseholds Over the life of the lease
Equipment under capital lease 4-10 years straight-line

Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Fund.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2. Significant accounting policies (cont.)

d) Pre-retirement leave benefits

The cost of the Organization's employee pre-retirement leave benefits is accrued as earned
based on an actuarial estimation.

The estimation of the future pre-retirement benefits has been performed using the projected
unit credit service pro-rated on service actuarial cost method. The significant actuarial
assumptions used in measuring the Organization's future employee benefit payable include
retirement, termination and mortality rates, a discount rate of 2.9% (2014 - 3.6%), a rate of
salary increase of 3.5% (2014 - 3.0%) plus an age-related merit/promotion scale with provision
for disability.

e) Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. These estimates are reviewed periodically and are
reported in earnings in the period in which they become known.  Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

f) Financial instruments

It is management's opinion that the Organization is not exposed to significant credit, currency,
interest rate, price, liquidity, or market risks arising from its financial instruments.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3. Cash and short-term investments

Cash and short-term investments consist of:
2015 2014

Cash $ 671,477 $ 606,489
Cash held in trust 2,360 6,149
Assiniboine Credit Union GIC, bearing interest at 1.95%,
     maturing and renewed annually on March 22nd 829,050 -
Assiniboine Credit Union GIC, bearing interest at 2.10%, 

redeemed during the year - 811,952

$1,502,887 $1,424,590

The cash balance is earmarked as follows:
2015 2014

Operating cash $ 970,664 $ 862,510
Externally restricted cash 532,223 562,080

$1,502,887 $1,424,590

4. Receivables
2015 2014

GST receivable $ 30,261 $ 25,968
Other receivables 116,514 88,486

$ 146,775 $ 114,454

5. Capital assets
2015 2014

Accumulated Net Net
Cost Amortization Book Value Book Value

Equipment $ 95,158 $ 76,882 $ 18,276 $ 27,119
Computer equipment 132,549 118,099 14,450 22,297
Computer software 50,049 40,466 9,583 4,794
Leaseholds 191,030 141,669 49,361 59,590
Equipment under capital lease 107,635 50,491 57,144 35,871

$ 576,421 $ 427,607 $ 148,814 $ 149,671
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

6. Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions represent restricted funding and unspent resources externally restricted
for the Operating Fund which relate to subsequent years.

The changes for the year in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

2015 2014

Beginning balance $ 562,080 $ 623,216
Grant revenue recognized during the year (433,475) (445,125)
Contributions received during the year 403,618 383,989

Ending balance $ 532,223 $ 562,080

7. Obligations under capital lease

2015 2014

Obligations under capital lease $ 28,997 $ 8,730
Less:  amount representing interest at 0% (2014 - 8.63%) - 52

28,997 8,678
Less:  current portion of obligations 7,249 6,400

$ 21,748 $ 2,278

Approximate future minimum lease payments in the next four years are as follows:

2016 $ 7,249
2017 7,249
2018 7,249
2019 7,250

$ 28,997

The leases are secured by the underlying assets.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

8. Deferred contributions related to capital assets

Deferred contributions related to capital assets of $33,581 (2014 - $43,640) represent grants
and donations for equipment, computer equipment, computer software and leasehold
improvements.  Deferred contributions are amortized in the Capital Fund on the statement of
financial activities.

9. Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities

2015 2014

Receivables $ (32,321) $ 6,238
Due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (108,895) (87,360)
Prepaids 2,212 (3,182)
Payables and accruals 97,242 (135,018)
Funds held in trust (3,789) 6,149
Deferred contributions - general operations (29,857) (61,136)
Pre-retirement leave 55,000 26,624

$ (20,408) $ (247,685)

10. Restricted contributions

Restricted contributions relate to funding received from Ed Mousseau to be used towards the
capital costs of building housing for those living with HIV/AIDS.

11. Pre-retirement leave

The Organization has a contractual commitment for the pre-retirement benefits for the
members of the pension plan based on years of service before retirement.  During the year
ended March 31, 2006, the Organization was instructed by WRHA to record the full obligation.
The Winnipeg Regional Health Authority calculated and advised the Organization of the
amount of the obligation.  Pre-retirement leave benefits are considered an out-of-globe funding
item, of which the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority has instructed the Organization to set
up a receivable for the percentage of the change in the pre-retirement leave obligation that
belongs to Winnipeg Regional Health Authority programs. The change in the accrued pre-
retirement leave benefits are recorded as an expense in the current year.  During the year, the
obligation increased by $55,000 (2014 - $26,624).  

Pre-retirement benefits for the current year of $55,000 (2014 - $25,903) were funded by
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

12. Pension

The Organization adopted a defined benefit pension plan under a participation agreement with
Healthcare Employees Pension Plan - Manitoba (the "Plan").  As part of the agreement, the
Organization's liability for pension benefits during the term of its participation in the Plan is
limited to the contributions made to the Plan as required from time to time.  As a result,
contributions to the Plan are expensed as incurred and no liability or asset is recognized for
any potential Plan funding shortfall or excess. During the year, $171,376 (2014 - $164,785)
was expensed for the purpose of the Plan.

Pension contributions are included in employee benefits expense.

13. Office space

In the current year, WRHA paid rent on behalf of the Organization in the amount of $249,876
(2014 - $247,000). The revenue and expense related to rent is not recorded in these financial
statements. 

14. Economic dependence

The volume of financial activity undertaken by the Organization with its main funding bodies is
of sufficient magnitude that the discontinuance of their funding would endanger the ability of
the Organization to continue as a going concern.

15. Comparative figures

Certain balances of the preceding year have been reclassified to conform with the current
year's financial statement presentation.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Schedule of Operating Fund Expenses and Projects
Year Ended March 31 2015 2014

Salaries $2,248,672 $2,140,771
Physician salaries and benefits 825,078 795,480
Employee benefits (Note 12) 376,802 365,147
Health and education tax 61,365 76,407
Electronic medical records 38,882 31,394
Medical supplies 28,018 22,168
Purchased and professional services 63,243 90,231
Maintenance 91,332 116,207
Travel and course fees 23,943 35,596
General expenses 262,777 269,633

4,020,112 3,943,034

Less: recoveries (157,920) (135,557)

$3,862,192 $3,807,477

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 285,519 $ 390,874

WRHA prior year adjustments 45,318 (37,000)

Excess of (expenditures) revenue for the year 80,726 (68,355)

Balance, end of year $ 411,563 $ 285,519

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 4



ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE
Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Revenue
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (Note 7) $ 4,815,481 $ 4,070,520
Residential charges 1,164,839 1,719,812
Recoveries and offset income 369,363 49,433
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets 149,727 145,790
Mortgage interest subsidy 45,359 45,359
Donations and other 13,971 4,237
Interest earned 6,457 5,227

6,565,197 6,040,378

Expenditures
Nursing personal care 4,406,985 3,765,099
Food services 579,219 714,259
General and administrative 420,301 381,542
Plant maintenance 203,517 195,087
Housekeeping 189,126 250,664
Amortization 152,558 148,621
Laundry and linen 110,592 136,044
Plant operation 105,713 153,083
Recreation 99,401 190,521
In-service education 92,269 86,684
Social work 39,851 37,473
Interest on long-term debt 20,606 23,458
Donations and other - 7,569

6,420,138 6,090,104

Excess of (expenditures) revenue for the year before
the undernoted 145,059 (49,726)

Pre-retirement payouts (66,333) (25,216)

Pre-retirement entitlement, change in liability 2,000 6,587

Excess of (expenditures) revenue for the year $ 80,726 $ (68,355)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 5



ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

 Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of (expenditures) revenue for the year $ 80,726 $ (68,355)
Adjustments for

Amortization of capital assets 152,558 148,621
Amortization of deferred contributions related

to capital assets (149,727) (145,790)
WRHA prior year adjustments 45,318 (37,000)

128,875 (102,524)

Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable (357,145) (6,265)
Due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 153,970 72,995
Inventory - supplies on hand 24,517 7,119
Prepaid expenses (4,364) 11,738
Deferred benefit entitlements (2,000) 6,587
Accrued vacation entitlement 9,059 (19,042)
Pre-retirement entitlement 2,000 (6,587)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (97,440) (113,858)
Trust liabilities (4,935) (1,050)

(276,338) (48,363)

(147,463) (150,887)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Deferred contributions - externally restricted 33,736 34,682
Deferred contributions - capital assets (10) 209,475
Deferred contributions - donations (17,241) (38,005)
Reserve for insurance deductible 1,008 1,008

17,493 207,160

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of capital assets and construction, net (9,968) (225,504)
Increase in short-term investments (6,447) (5,389)

(16,415) (230,893)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (146,385) (174,620)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 429,210 603,830

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 282,825 $ 429,210

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 6



ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of the Organization

The Odd Fellows and Rebekahs Care Homes Inc. Golden Links Lodge is a non-profit
organization operating as a long-term care facility. The organization is a registered charity
under the Income Tax Act and is therefore exempted from income taxes.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Financial Reporting

The financial statements only include the assets, liabilities, equity and operations of the
Golden Links Lodge.

Revenue Recognition

The organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions that includes
donations and government grants.  Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions, which include
residential changes, are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to
be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

The organization records on an annual basis, an estimate of the amount that may be
recoverable from, or payable to Winnipeg Regional Health Authority ("WRHA") relating to its
excess of revenues or expenses in accordance with WHRA funding guidelines. WHRA
funding adjustments are subject to WHRA audits. The differences, if any, from the initial
estimates are reflected as an adjustment in the current year's operating income.

Contributed Services

In the normal course of business, the organization receives volunteer assistance in carrying
out its service delivery activities. Volunteer services are not recognized in the financial
statements.

Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization based on the estimated useful life
of the asset is calculated as follows:
Land improvements 10 years, straight-line basis
Buildings 30-50 years, straight-line basis
Equipment 5-10 years, straight-line basis
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventory

Supplies on hand are stated at the lower of cost and replacement cost. Cost is generally
determined on the first-in, first-out basis.

Employee Benefits

The organization records a provision for employee benefits comprised of accrued vacation. A
further provision for future employee pre-retirement benefits, being an actuarial estimate of the
organization’s obligation to make a cash payment to certain qualifying employees based on
years of service upon retirement has also been recorded. Funding for portions of these
obligations remains outstanding as disclosed in Note 3.

The cost of the organization's employee pre-retirement benefits is accrued as earned based
on an actuarial estimation.

The estimation of the future pre-retirement benefits has been performed using the projected
unit credit service pro-rated on service actuarial cost method. The significant actuarial
assumptions adopted in measuring the organization's future employee benefits payable
include mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 3.60% (3.60% in 2014), a rate of
salary increase of 3.0% (3.0% in 2014) plus an age-related merit/promotion scale with no
provision for disability.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent
periods, financial assets with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any
unrealized gains and losses reported in income. All other financial instruments are reported at
cost or amortized cost less impairment, if applicable. Financial assets are tested for
impairment when changes in circumstances indicate the asset could be impaired. Transaction
costs are the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed for those items
remeasured at fair value at each statement of financial position date and charged to the
financial instrument for those measured at amortized cost.

8



ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

2. Short-term Investments
2015 2014 

Steinbach Credit Union, regular savings, 1.9% 
(2.0% in 2014) $ 286,965 $ 280,518

3. Future Employee Benefits Recoverable

Employee pre-retirement benefits are accrued as incurred as determined by actuarial
valuation. The latest actuarial valuation of the pre-retirement value as of March 31, 2015
reports an obligation of $520,000 ($518,000 in 2014). Vacation benefits are accrued as
employees earn the benefits.

Due to the nature of the benefits, the pre-retirement benefits recoverable and payable are
classified as long-term, whereas the vacation benefits recoverable and payable are classified
as current.

The change in pre-retirement liability for fiscal 2015 of $2,000 ($6,587 in 2014) will be funded
by the WRHA.

The amount of funding which will be provided by Manitoba Health, through the WRHA, for pre-
retirement entitlement obligations has been capped at the amount owing at March 31, 2004,
adjusted for allocations from the WHRA in 2005, and has been recorded as a receivable on
the statement of financial position. The Province of Manitoba has guaranteed to the WRHA,
and through it to Golden Links Lodge, this outstanding receivable which will be paid when
required. Any liability in excess of the adjusted March 31, 2004 amount is reflected as a
current year expense on the statement of operations following the "excess of revenue over
expenditures before other items" balance. 

4. Capital Assets
2015 2014 

Accumulated Net Book Net Book 
Cost Amortization Value Value

Land improvements $ 217,027 $ 217,027 $ - $ -
Buildings 3,812,680 2,194,713 1,617,967 1,733,983
Building addition

Special Needs Unit 388,858 205,230 183,628 194,429
Equipment 1,295,726 964,006 331,720 347,492
Equipment

Special Needs Unit 31,771 31,771 - -

$ 5,746,062 $ 3,612,747 $ 2,133,315 $ 2,275,904
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

5. Due from (to) Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Inc.

Any surplus related to Out of Globe funding is repayable to the WRHA. Any surplus related to
In Globe funding for the year (including PCH staffing), less the greater of 2% of funding or
50% of the actual operating surplus for the year, is repayable to the WRHA.

Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is receivable
from the WRHA and is subject to review by the WRHA. At that time, WRHA submits their final
cost approvals that indicate the portion of the deficit that will be paid to the organization. In
1992, the Province of Manitoba implemented a no deficit recovery policy that stipulates that
WRHA will not fund deficits related to In Globe funding arrangements. Any unapproved costs
not paid by WRHA are absorbed by the organization.

Differences that may occur on final settlement of approved costs are charged directly to net
assets or operations. Prior years surplus and deficit, settlement for which has not yet been
adjusted is as follows:

2015 2014 

2007 fiscal year end $ - $ 10,302
2008 fiscal year end - 18,521
2009 fiscal year end - (44,654)
2010 fiscal year end - 77,729
2011 fiscal year end - 59,421
2012 fiscal year end - 61,082
2013 fiscal year end 43,552 2,427
2014 fiscal year end 7,415 43,468
2015 fiscal year end 89,807 -
2015 fiscal year end - repayable In-Globe surplus (66,448) -

Balance, end of year $ 74,326 $ 228,296

6. Bank Indebtedness

The organization does not currently operate on a revolving line of credit. 

7. Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Operating Income

2015 2014 

Budgeted Items $ 4,255,921 $ 4,038,309
Current adjustments - Out of Globe 626,008 32,211
Repayable In-Globe surplus  (66,448)

Balance, end of year $ 4,815,481 $ 4,070,520
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

8. Contingencies

On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations, ("subscribers"), formed Healthcare
Insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC"). HIROC is registered as a Reciprocal pursuant to
provincial Insurance Acts, which permit persons reciprocal contracts of indemnity insurance.
HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage to health care organizations in
the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Newfoundland. Subscribers pay
annual premiums, which are actuarially determined, and are subject to assessment for losses
in excess of such premiums, of any experienced by the group of subscribers for the years in
which they were a subscriber. No such assessments have been made to March 31, 2015.  

9. Land Lease

The land used by the organization is owned by the Grand Lodge of Manitoba, I.O.O.F. The
organization has leased the land for a term of 50 years from March 1, 1980 without any
leasing cost other than maintaining the property.

10. Pension Plans        

During the year, the organization contributed $329,956 ($280,375 in 2014) on behalf of its
employees. 

Eligible employees of the organization are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension
Plan (a successor to the Manitoba Health Organization Inc. Plan) (the "Plan") that is a multi-
employer defined benefit pension plan. Plan members will receive benefits based on the
length of service and on the average of annualized earnings during the best five years of the
last ten years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provides the highest earnings. 

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these
securities are managed by the Plan by placing plan assets in trust and through the Plan
investment policy.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan as at December 31, 2013 indicated a solvency
deficiency. The deficiency will be funded out of the current contributions in the subsequent
years. On April 1, 2013, both employer and employee contribution rates increased to 8.7%
(7.9% in 2013) of pensionable earnings up to the  yearly maximum pensionable earnings limit
(YMPE) and 10.3% (9.5% in 2013) on earnings in excess of the YMPE.

On April 1, 2014, with the inclusion on contributions towards the Cost of Living Adjustment
Plan, the contribution rates increased to 8.7 percent (employer and employee portion) of
pensionable earnings up to the YMPE and 10.3 percent (employer and employee portion) on
earnings in excess of YMPE. 
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

11. Disclaimer

The information contained in this report is the property of Odd Fellows and Rebekahs
Personal Care Homes Inc. Golden Links Lodge, and may not be combined, consolidated or in
any way modified without the written authorization of the Odd Fellows and Rebekahs Personal
Care Homes Inc. Golden Links Lodge.  

12. Financial Risk Management

The organization is exposed to different types of risk in the normal course of operations,
including credit risk and market risk. The organization's objective in risk management is to
optimize the risk return trade-off, within set limits, by applying integrated risk management and
control strategies, policies and procedures throughout the organization's activities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation
and causes financial loss to another party. Financial instruments which potentially subject the
organization to credit risk consist principally of accounts receivable.  

The organization's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral or
other credit enhancements is as follows: 

2015 2014 

Accounts receivable $ 402,025 $ 44,880
Due from WRHA 74,326 228,296
Vacation entitlements receivable 230,242 230,242
Retirement obligations receivable 552,736 550,737

$ 1,259,329 $ 1,054,155

Accounts receivable: The organization is not exposed to significant credit risk as the
receivable is spread among a broad client base and payment in full is typically collected when
it is due. The organization establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts that represents its
estimate of potential credit losses. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on
management’s estimates and assumptions regarding current market conditions, customer
analysis and historical payment trends. These factors are considered when determining
whether past due accounts are allowed for or written off. 

Due from WRHA, vacation entitlements receivable and retirement obligations receivable: The
organization is not exposed to significant credit risk as these receivables are from the
Province of Manitoba and the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority.
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

12. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate
risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. The organization is not exposed to significant interest rate risk. Its
investments are held in short-term or variable rate products.

The organization is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as it does not have any
financial instruments denominated in foreign currency and the number of transactions in
foreign currency are minimal.

The organization is not exposed to other price risk.

13. Building Water Damage

In April 2014, the facility suffered extensive water damage. It is expected that insurance will
cover the majority of costs. The insurance deductible and any excess cost not covered by
insurance will be recognized in the year incurred.
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Schedule 1 - Deferred Contributions - Externally Restricted

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Reserve for Major Repairs

Balance, beginning of year $ 158,208 $ 139,872
Current year funding 18,336 18,336

Balance, end of year $ 176,544 $ 158,208

Equipment Replacements

Balance, beginning of year $ 81,602 $ 65,256
Current year funding 15,400 16,346

Balance, end of year $ 97,002 $ 81,602

Total Deferred Contributions - Externally Restricted $ 273,546 $ 239,810
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Schedule 2 - Deferred Contributions - Capital Assets

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,203,211 $ 2,139,526

Current year funding 152,904 356,802

Debt reduction (152,914) (147,327)

Amortize to revenue (149,727) (145,790)

Balance, end of year $ 2,053,474 $ 2,203,211
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Schedule 3 - Deferred Donations

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 91,090 $ 129,095

Current year donations 2,966 23,713

Current year expenditures (20,207) (61,718)

Balance, end of year $ 73,849 $ 91,090
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ODD FELLOWS AND REBEKAHS PERSONAL CARE HOMES INC.
GOLDEN LINKS LODGE

Schedule 4 - Reserve for Insurance Deductible

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Balance, beginning of year $ 12,185 $ 11,177

Current year funding 1,008 1,008

Balance, end of year $ 13,193 $ 12,185
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Member of St.Amant Inc. 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of St.Amant Inc., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, the statements of operations amd changes in 
fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sectoring accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
St.Amant Inc. as at March 31, 2015, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 

 

Chartered Accountants 

 

June 9, 2015 

Winnipeg, Canada 
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ST.AMANT INC. 
Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balances 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  Winnipeg  Total Operating     
  Regional  Operating Fund Total    
  Health Family Fund internally Operating Capital Total Total 
  Authority Services unrestricted restricted Fund Fund 2015 2014 
 
Revenue: 

Family Services $ 2,172,621 $ 35,729,519 $ 37,902,140 $ –    $ 37,902,140 $ –    $ 37,902,140 $ 35,237,725 
Winnipeg Regional health Authority 28,305,192 4,233,044 32,538,236 –    32,538,236 –    32,538,236 29,966,227 
Manitoba Health –    –    –    –    –    130,670 130,670 134,246 
Government of Canada 7,661 518,988 526,649 –    526,649 –    526,649 719,136 
School divisions –    565,122 565,122 –    565,122 –    565,122 504,363 
Fees 57,394 242,287 299,681 –    299,681 –    299,681 319,945 
Grants 128,512 –    128,512 –    128,512 –    128,512 86,726 
Recoveries 376,580 –    376,580 –    376,580 –    376,580 371,751 
Investment income 18,525 –    18,525 –    18,525 1,460 19,985 16,781 
St.Amant Foundation Inc. donations (note 7) 153,048 5,155 158,203 –     158,203 10,812 169,015 256,008 
Amortization of deferred contributions (note 6) –    –    –    –    –    434,943 434,943 692,183 
Gains on sale of capital assets –    –    –    –    –    –    –    5,849 
Other programs 186,139 123,419 309,558 –    309,558 –    309,558 295,760 
   31,405,672 41,417,534 72,823,206 –    72,823,206 577,885 73,401,091 68,606,700 

 
Expenses: 

Salaries and wages  24,227,382 27,263,512 51,490,894 –    51,490,894 –    51,490,894 47,292,666 
Employee benefits 5,264,954 5,533,662 10,798,616 –    10,798,616 –    10,798,616 9,776,886 
Purchased services 922,366 119,118 1,041,484 –    1,041,484 –    1,041,484 870,949 
Supplies 1,633,273 294,716 1,927,989 –    1,927,989 –    1,927,989 1,744,065 
Food 566,180 570,564 1,136,744 –    1,136,744 –    1,136,744 1,078,211 
Utilities 699,590 239,168 938,758 –    938,758 –    938,758 829,896 
Equipment 215,980 147,255 363,235 –    363,235 –    363,235 496,466 
Property taxes 245,313 153,501 398,814 –    398,814 –    398,814 406,288 
Repairs and maintenance 107,886 429,411 537,297 –    537,297 –    537,297 583,668 
Interest on long-term debt –    –    –    –    –    329,326 329,326 305,910 
Amortization –    –    –    –    –    2,131,906 2,131,906 1,945,860 
Administration and facility cost allocation (note 8) (4,001,983) 4,001,983 –    –    –    –    –    –    
Other 1,271,480 1,904,737 3,176,217 –    3,176,217 25 3,176,242 2,982,947 
  31,152,421 40,657,627 71,810,048 –    71,810,048 2,461,257 74,271,305 68,313,812 

 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses before  

the undernoted  253,251 759,907 1,013,158 –    1,013,158 (1,883,372)  (870,214) 292,888 
 
Future employee pre-retirement benefits revenue (note 9) 79,841 10,897 90,738 –    90,738 –    90,738 173,383 
Future employee pre-retirement benefits (note 9) (82,155) (95,849) (178,004) –    (178,004) –    (178,004) (204,946) 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses  250,937 674,955 925,892 –    925,892 (1,883,372) (957,480) 261,325 
 
Transfer to Capital Fund for purchased capital assets (154,532) –     (154,532) (199,744) (354,276) 354,276 –    –    
Transfer to Capital Fund for principal repayment (84,611) (343,423) (428,034) –    (428,034) 428,034 –    –    
Transfer to Capital Fund for interest (10,051) (306,735) (316,786) –    (316,786) 316,786 –    –    
Net change in fund balances 1,743 24,797 26,540 (199,744) (173,204) (784,276) (957,480) 261,325 
 
Fund balances, beginning of year   (295,151) 474,476 179,325 4,046,725 4,226,050 3,964,725 
 
Fund balances, end of year     $ (268,611) $ 274,732 $ 6,121 $ 3,262,449 $ 3,268,570 $ 4,226,050 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  2015 2014 
  
Cash provided by (used in): 
 
Operating activities: 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses $ (957,480) $ 261,325 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of capital assets 2,131,906 1,945,860 
Amortization of deferred contributions (434,943) (692,183) 
Gain on sale of capital assets –    (5,849) 

Change in non-cash operating working capital: 
Accounts receivable (1,588,577) 252,648 
Inventories 11,096 (12,547) 
Prepaid expenses (39,539) 78,576 
Receivable from to St.Amant Foundation Inc. (66,714) (708,838) 
Employee future benefits recoverable from Winnipeg 

Regional Health Authority (90,738) (173,383) 
Bank indebtedness 1,582,594 –    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (350,507) 34,182 
Employee vacation payable 167,749 234,910 
Employee future benefits 178,004 204,946 

Net change in deferred contributions related  
to expenses of future periods 376,598 283,693 

   919,449 1,703,340 
 
Capital activities: 

Purchase of capital assets (3,162,317) (2,956,785) 
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets –    5,849 
Receipt of deferred capital contributions 333,322 681,672 
  (2,828,995) (2,269,264) 

 
Financing activities: 

Proceeds from long-term debt 716,941 2,051,367 
Repayment of long-term debt (594,156) (536,795) 
   122,785 1,514,572 

 
Increase (decrease) in cash (1,786,761) 948,648 
 
Cash, beginning of year 1,851,145 902,497 
 
Cash, end of year $ 64,384 $ 1,851,145 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

General: 

St.Amant Inc. (the Organization) was incorporated in 1960 as a corporation without share capital. The 
Organization is a residential and resource facility dedicated to providing comprehensive care, 
leadership, and promoting excellence in services for Manitobans with developmental disabilities. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards including the 4200 standards for government not-for-profit 
organizations. 

(a) Revenue recognition: 

The Organization is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with 
budget arrangements established by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA) and 
Manitoba Family Services (Family Services). Operating grants are recorded as revenue in 
the period to which they relate. These financial statements reflect agreed arrangements 
approved with respect to the year ended March 31, 2015. The Organization's Service 
Purchase Agreement (SPA) with the Family Services expired on March 31, 2014, however, 
it continues in effect until a new agreement is finalized. The SPA with WRHA expired on 
March 31, 2013, however it continues to be in effect until a new agreement is finalized. 

The Organization follows the deferral method for contributions on a fund accounting basis 
as follows: 

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in 
which the related expenses are incurred. Contributions restricted for the purpose of capital 
assets are deferred and amortized into revenue at a rate corresponding with the 
amortization rate for the related capital assets. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as 
revenue of the appropriate fund when received. Investment income is recognized in the 
Operating or Capital Fund in the year in which it is earned. 

 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

The funds used by the Organization are: 

(i) Operating Fund: 

Unrestricted: 

The Operating Fund - unrestricted includes transactions related to the operations of the 
Organization. 

Internally restricted: 

The Operating Fund - internally restricted consists of funds restricted as approved by 
the Board of Directors. 

(ii) Capital Fund: 

The Capital Fund includes transactions related to the capital assets used for operations 
of the Organization. 

(b) Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Derivative instruments 
and equity instruments that are quoted in an active market are reported at fair value.  All 
other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost unless 
management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value. Management has not 
elected to record any financial instruments at fair value. 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 
subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are 
adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are 
amortized using the effective interest method. 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal 
year if there are indicators of impairment If there is an indicator of impairment, the 
Organization determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or 
timing of future cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change 
in the expected cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the 
highest of the present value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized 
from selling the financial asset or the amount the Organization expects to realize by 
exercising its right to any collateral. If events and circumstances reverse in a future period, 
an impairment loss will be reversed to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the 
initial carrying value. 

(c) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

(d) Capital assets: 

Capital expenditures are recorded at cost as capital assets in the Capital Fund. Contributed 
capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution.  

Amortization on capital assets is charged to the Capital Fund and recorded on a straight-
line basis to amortize the cost of capital assets over their estimated useful lives.  

Capital assets are amortized over the following periods: 
 

Asset  Period 
 
Land improvements 20 years 
Buildings 10 - 40 years 
Furniture and equipment, building service equipment 5 - 20 years 
Automotive 5 years 
Software 5 years 
 
 

(e) Mortgage payable: 

Mortgage payable to Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, for which a portion is 
forgivable over the period of repayment, is recorded at the repayable amounts. 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Deferred contributions: 

(i) Related to expenses of future years 

Grants received toward specified expenditures are taken into revenue as the related 
expenditures are incurred. 

(ii) Related to capital assets: 

Grants received towards the cost of capital expenditures are deferred and amortized on 
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets purchased. 

(g) Debt retirement: 

The principal portion of annual debt retirement costs is recorded in the Capital Fund as a 
reduction of long-term debt. The interest portion of annual debt retirement is recorded in the 
Capital Fund as an expense. 

(h) Income taxes: 

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax 

Act. 

(i) Volunteers: 

A large number of volunteers donate significant amounts of time in the Organization's 
activities. No amount is reflected in the financial statements for donated services since no 
objective basis is available to measure the value of such services. 

(j) Employee future benefits: 

Employee future pre-retirement benefits are accrued as earned on an actuarial estimation. 
The estimation of the employee future pre-retirement benefits has been performed using 
the projected unit credit service pro-rated on service actuarial cost method. The significant 
actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Organization's employee future pre-
retirement benefits includes mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 2.55 percent 
(2014 - 3.35 percent) and a rate of salary increase of 3.5 percent (2014 - 3.0 percent) plus 
an age related merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability. 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

The accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits is calculated annually utilizing an internally 
developed valuation method which takes into account the average usage of sick days used 
in excess of the annual sick days earned, average employee service time to date and 
average employee compensation per day. 

(k) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of capital assets and employee 
future benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Capital assets: 

 
 2015 2014 
  Accumulated Net book Net book 
  Cost amortization value value 
 
440 River Road: 

Land $ 212,888 $ –    $ 212,888 $ 212,888 
Land improvements 1,141,846 538,275 603,571 656,376 
Buildings 18,467,228 13,967,786 4,499,442 4,772,773 
Buildings service  

equipment 5,433,815 3,278,659 2,155,156 2,096,454 
Furniture and equipment 533,310 490,589 42,721 130,531 
Automotive 60,844 11,147 49,697 –    
Software 373,482 261,332 112,150 194,862 
  26,223,413 18,547,788 7,675,625 8,063,884 

 
Community residences: 

Land 3,521,400 –    3,521,400 2,750,688 
Land improvements 2,910 2,668 242 363 
Buildings 7,367,984 3,083,910 4,284,074 4,722,905 
Buildings service  

equipment 3,713,322 204,039 3,509,283 2,188,169 
Furniture and equipment 1,900,596 573,750 1,326,846 1,535,571 
Automotive 491,127 283,600 207,527 233,006 
  16,997,339 4,147,967 12,849,372 11,430,702 

 
 $ 43,220,752 $ 22,695,755 $ 20,524,997 $ 19,494,586 
 
 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

3. Advances: 

The Organization has received working capital advances from Family Services. These 
advances are non-interest bearing, have no fixed repayment terms and are unsecured. 

4. Bank indebtedness: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Cheques issued in excess of cash on hand $ 613,594 $ –    
Line of credit 969,000 –    
 
  $ 1,582,594 $ –    
 

During the year, the Organization obtained a line of credit with the National Bank of Canada to 
finance the day-to-day operations of the Organization in the amount of $1,700,000, bearing 
interest at prime. The line of credit is secured by the security outlined in note 5.  

5. Long-term debt: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Canada Mortgage payable, secured by specific 

properties, interest at 7 5/8%, payable $6,578 monthly 
including principal and interest, maturing November 
2015 $ 51,156 $ 123,284 

National Bank of Canada, loans payable, due on demand, 
at an interest rate of prime rate less 0.5%, payable 
monthly at $11,393 including principal and interest, 
maturing at various dates through to August 2015 (if 
repayment not demanded by lender on the demand 
loan) 336,871 1,409,820 

National Bank of Canada, loans payable, at interest rates 
ranging from 2.85% to 4.73%, payable $62,742 monthly 
including principal and interest, maturing at various 
dates through to September 2019  8,545,837 7,277,975 

  8,933,864 8,811,079 
 
Current portion 4,493,847 3,096,932 

 
  $ 4,440,017 $ 5,714,147 
 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

5. Long-term debt (continued): 

The Organization’s credit facility with the National Bank of Canada provides a maximum of 
$20,000,000 (2014 - $12,250,000) in demand loans to finance capital expenditures by the 
Organization. The cumulative advances under this facility may not exceed $20,000,000 (2014 - 
the lower of $12,250,000 or 75 percent of the collective market value of the community 
residences securing the facility). At March 31, 2015, the Organization had utilized $8,093,641 
(2014 - $7,650,294) of this facility.  

The long-term debt with the National Bank of Canada is secured by certain land and buildings 
owned by the Organization and for certain loans and letters of comfort from Manitoba Health. 
For Manitoba Health approved borrowings, the Government of Manitoba may elect to retire this 
debt at any time as it so chooses. 

Principal repayments annual, with the demand loans included as a current obligation, are 
approximately as follows: 

 
 
2016   $ 4,493,847 
2017  1,778,523 
2018  856,968 
2019  1,596,599 
2020  207,927 
 
    $ 8,933,864 
 

6. Deferred contributions: 

(a) Expenses of future periods: 

Deferred contribution related to expenses of future periods represents unspent externally 
restricted grants and donations. 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 895,428 $ 611,735 
Additional contributions received 901,215 438,504 
Less amounts recognized as revenue (524,617) (154,811) 
 
Balance, end of year $ 1,272,026 $ 895,428 
 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

6. Deferred contributions (continued): 

(b) Capital assets: 

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount 
and unspent amount of donations and grants received for the purchase of capital assets. 
The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of 
operations. 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 6,307,381 $ 6,317,892 
Additional contributions received 333,322 681,672 
Less amounts recognized as revenue (434,943) (692,183) 
 
Balance, end of year $ 6,205,760 $ 6,307,381 
 

 
 2015 2014 
  Accumulated Net book Net book 

  Grants amortization value value 
 
Land improvements $ 870,995 $ 262,271 $ 608,724 $ 607,814 
Buildings 7,589,750 4,074,016 3,515,734 3,584,340 
Buildings service 
  equipment 1,257,298 475,625 781,673 551,701 
Furniture and equipment 1,890,652 841,283 1,049,369 1,115,225 

 
 $ 11,608,695 $ 5,653,195 $ 5,955,500 $ 5,859,080 
 
Unspent contributions received for purchase of capital assets at March 31, 2015 are 
$250,260 (2014 - $448,301). 

7. Related party transactions and balances: 

The Organization pays rent on eight community residences to St.Amant Foundation Inc. for 
$80,903 (2014 - $80,903). In addition, the Organization paid rent to Sara Riel Foundation Inc., 
a corporation with the same Member as the Organization in the amount of $26,167 (2014 - nil). 
At March 31, 2015 the amount owing to Sara Riel Foundation Inc. is $16,167 (2014 - nil). The 
Organization charged St.Amant Foundation Inc. $87,216 (2014 - $87,797) for costs related to 
the parking lot including $46,932 (2014 - $45,290) which was recorded in deferred contributions 
related to capital assets. The Organization also charged St.Amant Foundation Inc. $100,265 
(2014 - $97,924) for administrative services provided by the Organization during the year.  

 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

7. Related party transactions and balances (continued): 

The following are contributions from St.Amant Foundation Inc. received or receivable for the 
fiscal year: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Client services programs: 

Autism programs $ 351 $ 3,811 
River Road Place 3,985 10,388 
St.Amant School and Developmental Services 10,066 4,499 
Community Residential Program 4,026 2,050 
River Road Child Care 826 5,082 
Spiritual care –    493 

Research program 135,236 214,637 
Volunteer services 1,054 1,000 
Other equipment and supplies 3,111 –    
Identified Priority Projects 245,718 275,013 
  404,373 516,973 
 
Capital projects and renovations 28,295 448,301 

 
  $ 432,668 $ 965,274 
 

Of these contributions, $28,295 (2014 - $448,301) have been recorded in deferred 
contributions related to capital assets and $245,718 (2014 - $275,013) in deferred contributions 
related to expenses of future periods. 

The receivable from St.Amant Foundation Inc. of $680,926 (2014 - $614,212) is non-interest 
bearing, has no specified terms of repayment and is unsecured. 

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange 
amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

8. Allocation of expenses: 

The Organization has incurred $5,407,915 (2014 - $5,615,760) of administration expenses and 
$5,864,843 (2014 - $5,718,450) of facility expenses in fiscal 2015 that are common to the 
administration of the WRHA and Family Services programs. These expenses are reflected in 
the WRHA programs expenses in the statement of operations. The Organization has allocated 
$3,218,142 (2014 - $2,549,703) and $783,842 (2014 - $467,305) of administration and facility 
expenses to the Family Services program, respectively. The aggregate of $4,001,984 (2014 - 
$3,017,008) allocated to the Family Services programs is recorded as a recovery in the WRHA 
programs and an expense in the Family Services programs within administration and facility 
cost allocation in the statement of operations. 

9. Employee future benefits and employee benefits: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Pre-retirement benefits plan $ 2,852,603 $ 2,889,603 
Accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits  1,269,970 1,054,966 
 
  $ 4,122,573 $ 3,944,569 
 

(a) Pre-retirement benefits plan: 

The Organization maintains an employee future pre-retirement benefits plan primarily for 
the WRHA funded employees. The plan provides benefit payments to eligible retirees 
based on length of service and on career earnings from initial eligibility. 

Information about the Organization’s pre-retirement benefits plan is as follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
 
Accrued benefit obligation: 

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,889,603 $ 2,772,805 
Current benefit cost 186,000 213,015 
Interest 86,000 60,101 
Benefits paid (280,000) (167,260) 
  2,881,603 2,878,661 

 
Amortized actuarial loss (gain) (29,000) 10,942 
 
Liability for benefits $ 2,852,603 $ 2,889,603 
 

 



 

 

ST.AMANT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

9. Employee future benefits and employee benefits (continued): 

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement benefits was 
initially determined based on the pre-retirement liability at March 31, 2004, and was 
recorded as a long-term receivable on the statement of financial position. 

The recoverable has been adjusted, based on direction from the WRHA, to include the 
incremental change in the related liability since fiscal 2007, which includes an interest 
component. The decrease recorded in fiscal 2015 was $37,000 (2014 - increase of 
$116,798) and is recorded in the statement of operations. 

The employee future pre-retirement benefits recoverable from WRHA at March 31, 2015 
aggregates $2,574,115 (2014 - $2,611,115) and has no specified terms of repayment. 

Prior to 2004, Manitoba Health funded 100 percent of actual pre-retirement benefits paid 
over and above the operating grant provided to the Organization. Beginning April 1, 2005, 
the WRHA established a policy of providing additional funding for approximately 70 percent 
of actual pre-retirement benefits paid. Actual funding provided by WRHA has been 100 
percent (2014 - 100 percent) of actual pre-retirement benefits paid.  

(b) Healthcare Employees Pension Plan: 

Certain eligible employees of the Organization are members of Healthcare Employees’ 
Pension Plan - Manitoba, a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. As individual 
entities within the plan are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and 
liabilities, the Organization is accounting for the plan as a defined contribution plan. The 
cost of the plan is recognized based on the contributions required to be made during each 
period. During the year, the Organization contributed $3,637,674 (2014 - $3,178,282) on 
behalf of its employees. 
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9. Employee future benefits and employee benefits (continued): 

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan as at December 31, 2013, reported the plan 
had a deficiency of actuarial value of net assets over actuarial present value of accrued 
pension obligations as well as a solvency deficiency. Based on a solvency exemption 
granted to HEPP, the plan is not required to fund on a solvency basis but is required to 
fund on a going concern basis. The going concern deficiency will be funded by special 
payments out of current contributions. Any contribution deficiencies in the plan would be 
addressed through pension benefit reductions or contribution rate increases from the 
participating members. On April 1, 2014, employer contribution rates increased to 8.7 
percent (2014 - 7.9 percent) of pensionable earnings up to the yearly maximum 
pensionable earnings limit (YMPE) and 10.3 percent (2014 - 9.5 percent) on earnings in 
excess of YMPE. On April 1, 2015, with the inclusion of contributions toward the Cost of 
Living Adjustment Plan, employer contribution rates increased to 9.7 percent of 
pensionable earnings up to the YMPE and 11.3 percent on earnings in excess of YMPE. 

(c) Vacation benefits: 

The cost of the Organization's vacation benefits is accrued when the benefits are earned by 
the employees and is reported as employee vacation payable on the statement of financial 
position. The vacation liability at March 31, 2015 is $3,544,803 (2014 - $3,377,054). The 
funding received in each subsequent fiscal year from the WRHA includes the vacation 
payable recoverable from the WRHA of $1,461,198 as included on the statement of 
financial position. The vacation pay recoverable from the WRHA is maintained at the 
employee vacation payable at March 31, 2004. 

(d) Accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits: 

The Organization provides accumulating sick leave benefits to certain employee groups. 
These benefits accumulate with employee service and benefit amount are determined with 
reference to employee’s final earnings at the time they are paid out. The significant 
assumptions adopted in measuring the Organization’s accumulated non-vested sick leave 
benefits include a discount rate at March 31, 2015 of 2.55 percent (2014 - 3.35 percent) 
and a rate of salary increase of 3.5 percent (2014 - 3.5 percent). 

A recoverable from the WRHA at March 31, 2015 of $906,162 (2014 - $778,424) has been 
recorded for the accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits in the statement of financial 
position. The recoverable has been adjusted, based on direction from the WRHA, for the 
incremental change in the accumulated non-vested sick leave benefits for employees 
funded by the WRHA. The increase of $127,738 (2014 - $56,585) for 2015 was recorded in 
the statement of operations. 
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Year ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

10. Financial risks: 

(a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in a financial loss. The Organization is exposed to credit risk with respect to 
accounts receivable and employee future benefits recoverable from WRHA. The 
Organization assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts receivable and provides for any 
amounts that are not collectible in the allowance for doubtful accounts.   

At March 31, 2015 and 2014, all accounts receivable were current, there were no amounts 
past due. 

There have been no significant changes to the credit risk exposure from 2014. 

(b) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Organization will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a 
timely basis or at a reasonable cost. The Organization manages liquidity risk by monitoring 
its operating requirements. The Organization prepares budgets and cash forecasts to 
ensure it has sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations. 

All accounts payable and accrued liabilities are due within fiscal 2016. 

The contractual maturity of long-term debt is disclosed in note 5. 

There have been no significant changes to the liquidity risk exposure from 2014. 

(c) Interest rate risk: 

The Organization is exposed to interest rate risk on its fixed and floating interest rate 
financial instruments. Fixed-interest instruments subject the Organization to a fair value risk 
while the floating-rate instruments subject it to a cash flow risk. 

There have been no significant changes to the interest rate risk exposure from 2014. 

11. Trusts under administration: 

At March 31, 2015, the balance of funds held in trust on behalf of the residents who reside at 
St.Amant Inc. was $552,658 (2014 - $546,764).  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To The Board of Management of The Salvation Army Golden West Centennial Lodge 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Salvation Army Golden West 
Centennial Lodge, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, the 
statements of operations, changes in net assets (deficiency) and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
The Salvation Army Golden West Centennial Lodge as at March 31, 2015, and its results of 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting 
standards for not-for-profit organizations. 

 

 
 

Chartered Accountants 

 

June 25, 2015 

Winnipeg, Canada 
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   Page 2 
THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE  
Statement of Operations 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
    
  PCH Adult Other  Total Internally   2015 2014 
  services day care services unrestricted restricted Capital Total Total 
 
Revenue: 

Winnipeg Regional Health  
Authority $ 5,468,220 $ 192,543 $ –    $ 5,660,763 $ –    $ –    $ 5,660,763 $ 5,402,228 

Participant fees –    21,381 –    21,381 –    –    21,381 20,676 
Residential charges 2,465,550 –    –    2,465,550 –    –    2,465,550 2,454,491 
Amortization of deferred  

contributions (note 8) –    –    –    –    –    295,312 295,312 301,350 
Dietary services 31,522 –    –    31,522 –    –    31,522 38,006 
Grants from The Salvation Army 

DHQ (note 13) 60,000 –    165,000 225,000 –    –    225,000 425,000 
Donations –    –    –    –    37,016 –    37,016 19,716 
Fundraising –    –    –    –    3,673 –    3,673 977 
Grant - Proceeds from sale of 

property (note 13) –    –    –    –    –    –    –    280,000 
WRHA - Window replacement  
 (note 5[b]) –    –    –    –    –    –    –    336,987 
Other income    42,354 –    64,350 106,704 35,000 –    141,704 188,310 
  8,067,646 213,924 229,350 8,510,920 75,689 295,312 8,881,921 9,467,741 

Expenses: 
Salaries 5,741,112 86,809 –    5,827,921 –    –    5,827,921 5,581,338 
Employee benefits 1,104,065 19,196 –    1,123,261 –    –    1,123,261 1,091,795 
Payroll levy 118,316 1,855 –    120,171 –    –    120,171 118,619 
Administration (note 13) 107,890 –    122,494 230,384 –    –    230,384 220,925 
Amortization –    –    –    –    –    303,812 303,812 309,850 
Contributed services –    –    76,014 76,014 –    –    76,014 65,265 
Interest on long-term debt (note 9) 24,456 –    –    24,456 –    –    24,456 21,489 
Medical supplies 102,649 –    –    102,649 –    –    102,649 95,282 
Operating expenses 477,032 114,241 –    591,273 3,160 –    594,433 583,397 
Fundraising –    –    –    –    2,157 –    2,157 2,681 
Physical plant (note 5[b]) 763,849 –    35,000 798,849 –    –    798,849 906,699 
Pre-retirement leave costs 

(note 7[a]) 26,614 –    –    26,614 –    –    26,614 36,318 
  8,465,983 222,101 233,508 8,921,592 5,317 303,812 9,230,721 9,033,658 

 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue  

over expenses $ (398,337) $ (8,177) $ (4,158) $ (410,672) $ 70,372 $ (8,500) $ (348,800) $ 434,083 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE  
Statement of Changes in Net Assets (Deficiency) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
   Internally    Invested in 2015 2014 
   Unrestricted restricted capital assets Total Total 
 
Balance, beginning of year   $ (435,849) $ 603,973 $ 48,251 $ 216,375 $ (217,708) 

 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses   (410,672) 70,372 (8,500) (348,800) 434,083 
 
Inter-fund transfer (note 11)  210,000 (210,000) –    –    –    
 
Balance, end of year   $  (636,521) $ 464,345 $ 39,751 $ (132,425) $ 216,375 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE  
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015, with comparative information for 2014 
 
  2015 2014 
  
Operating activities: 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (348,800) $ 434,083 
Items not affecting cash: 

Amortization of capital assets 303,812 309,850 
Amortization of deferred contributions (295,312) (301,350) 

   (340,300)  442,583 
Changes in non-cash working capital balances: 

Accounts receivable (69,240) (2,523) 
Receivable from WRHA (215,969) –    
Prepaid expenses 22,620 (29,703) 
Inventory (3,352) 824 
Future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable (112,000) (21,040) 
Accrued pre-retirement benefits 112,000 21,040 
Accrued vacation payable 11,215 12,244 
Advances from and amounts due to Winnipeg Regional  

Health Authority –    (183,307) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 173,572 (51,036) 

   (421,454) 189,082 
 
Financing activities: 

Grants received (receivable) 37,817 (319,107) 
Additional deferred contributions received, net 157,501 93,188 
Repayments of long-term debt (32,182) (30,078) 
Proceeds from long-term debt 212,605 –    
  375,741 (255,997) 

 
Investing activities: 

Capital asset purchases (148,090) (69,079) 
 

Decrease in cash (193,803) (135,994) 
 
Cash, beginning of year 340,523 476,517 
 
Cash, end of year $ 146,720 $ 340,523 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE  
Notes to Financial Statements  
 
Year ended March 31, 2015  
 
 

1. General 

The Salvation Army Golden West Centennial Lodge (the “Lodge” or the “Ministry Unit”) is an 
unincorporated operating unit of The Salvation Army Canada and Bermuda Territory (the 
“Territory”). 

The Governing Council of The Salvation Army in Canada (“The Governing Council”), a 
corporation established by a Special Act of Parliament, is the primary legal entity through which 
the Territory conducts its operations. The Governing Council holds title to all Salvation Army 
property, including bank accounts and real estate on behalf of individual operating units. 

The Ministry Unit is a registered charitable organization, associated with The Salvation Army 
Territorial Headquarters (“THQ”), the primary charitable entity of the Territory. The Ministry Unit 
is a not-for-profit corporation established by the provincial statute and continued by The 

Salvation Army Golden West Centennial Lodge Act (the Act). The Lodge operates a long-term 
care facility and is governed by a board of management appointed by The Salvation Army in 
accordance with the Act. The Ministry Unit operates under the direction of The Salvation Army 
Prairie Divisional Headquarters (“DHQ”), which is located in Winnipeg, Manitoba and pursuant 
to the Province of Manitoba Acts and Regulations governing supervisory and personal care 
homes, and licensed under the provisions of the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 
(“WRHA”). In this respect, the Lodge is dependent upon funding from the WRHA and The 
Salvation Army (see note 13) to continue in operation. 

The Salvation Army is an international Christian church. Its message is based on the Bible; its 
ministry is motivated by love for God and the needs of humanity. The mission of The Salvation 
Army is to share love of Jesus Christ, meet human needs and be a transforming influence in 
the communities of our world. 

The Lodge is a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt 
from income taxes under Section 149. 

The Ministry Unit, a controlled entity of The Governing Council, has its financial data included in 
the consolidated financial statements of The Governing Council. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015  
 
 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations in Part III of the CPA 
Canada Handbook and present the assets, liabilities, net deficiency, revenue and 
expenses and cash flows of the Ministry Unit. 

(i) Unrestricted funds: 

Unrestricted funds represent the operations of the Ministry Unit, including the 
revenue and expense related to the Personal Care Home, Adult Day Care and 
receipt and use of donations and legacies with no external restrictions, other than 
that they be used in operations. 

(ii) Internally restricted funds: 

Internally restricted funds (note 11) represent the following: 

Funds which have been received through donations and have been internally 
restricted by the Lodge’s Board of Management for special projects or capital 
improvement programs; and 

Funds received from fundraising activities for specific programs within the Lodge. 
These funds can be utilized at the discretion of the Executive Director on the 
designated program. 

(iii) Capital fund: 

The purpose of the Capital fund is to record capital assets, related debt and the net 
investment of the Ministry Unit in such assets. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

The Lodge follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include 
government grants and donations, including donations received from THQ through the 
Capital Deposit Account. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2015  
 
 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

The Lodge is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with budget 
arrangements established by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority. Operating grants are 
recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. Grants approved but not received at the 
end of a period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred 
and recognized in that subsequent period. 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount 
to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related 
expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are 
deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate corresponding with the 
amortization rate for the related capital assets. 

Grants from The Salvation Army DHQ represent an allocation made to the Ministry Unit from 
DHQ for the operation of the programs. The funds are derived mainly from individuals in the 
community that have contributed to the fundraising efforts of the Territory. 

(c) Capital assets: 

Land is carried at cost or fair market value at the date of acquisition and is not amortized. 

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair 
value at the date of contribution. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense. 
Betterments which extend the estimated useful life of an asset are capitalized. When a capital 
asset no longer contributes to the Lodge’s ability to provide services, its carrying amount is 
written down to its residual value. 

The Lodge capitalizes capital assets valued at $2,000 or more. Items of less than $2,000 in 
value generally are expensed in the year of acquisition. 

Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Asset   Term 
 
Buildings  50 years 
Building expansion  30 years 
Major equipment   10 years 
Nurse call system  10 years 
Roof expansion  10 years 
Office furniture and equipment  5 - 10 years 
Computer hardware and software  3 years 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(d) Vacation pay: 

The Lodge records the accrued vacation pay entitlement liability in the statement of 
financial position. Any change in the liability is recorded in the statement of operations. 

(e) Contributed services: 

Contributed services are recorded at their estimated fair value, except for volunteers. A 
substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year. 
Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value, volunteer services are not recognized 
in the financial statements. 

(f) Pre-retirement benefit obligation: 

The Lodge has a contractual commitment to pay out to employees four days salary per 
year of service upon retirement if they comply with any of the following conditions: 

(i) have ten years of service and have reached the age of 55; or 

(ii) qualify for the eighty rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to 
the age of the employee; or 

(iii) retire at or after the age 65; or 

(iv) terminate employment at any time due to permanent disability. 

The Lodge has recorded an accrual based on an actuarial valuation that includes 
employees who qualify at the year end balance sheet date and an estimate for the 
remainder of employees who have not yet met the criteria above. Funding for the pre-
retirement entitlement is partially recoverable from the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 
(note 7). 

(g) Employee future benefits: 

The Lodge records a provision for future employee benefits including accrued vacation 
payable and accrued pre-retirement benefits. For certain employees, funding for future 
employee benefits is recoverable from the WRHA as a component of salary costs in the 
period in which the expenditures are made. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

Vacation entitlements and pre-retirement entitlements that will be funded by the WRHA 
have been recorded on the statement of financial position as recoverable from the WRHA. 

(h) Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition and are subsequently 
recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has elected to carry the 
investments at fair value. The Ministry Unit has not elected to carry any such financial 
instruments at fair value. 

It is management’s opinion that there is no exposure to significant amounts of credit, 
interest or foreign exchange risks. Interest rate risk on long-term debt is reduced as interest 
payments are funded (note 9). 

(i) Allocation of fundraising/general administration expenses: 

The Lodge classifies expenses on the statement of operations by function. The Lodge does 
not allocate expenses between functions in the statement of operations. 

(j) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.  

3. Cash: 

The Ministry Unit maintains a chequing account with a Royal Bank of Canada for its operations, 
as well as deposit accounts held with THQ. Under the Territory’s policies, all ministry units 
invest surplus funds with THQ, rather than with external financial institutions. THQ accounts 
bear interest at prevailing market rates based on the type of account. 
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3. Cash (continued): 

 
   2015 2014 
 
Cash    $ 80,928 $ 72,139 
THQ general deposit account  33,965 27,997 
THQ capital deposit account (CDA)  31,827 240,387 

 
    $ 146,720 $ 340,523 
 

Funds held in the general deposit account are available for withdrawal on demand and may be 
used for the general operating needs of the Ministry Unit. 

Funds held in the capital deposit account represent funds that are restricted for capital 
purposes (i.e. acquisition, repair, replacement of long-lived assets); however, these funds can 
be withdrawn for operating purposes with agreement of THQ, provided the foreseeable capital 
needs of the Lodge have been met. 

The Ministry Unit has cash held in trust totaling $13,039 (2014 - $17,597) on behalf of 
residents. These funds are not presented in these financial statements. 

4. Capital assets: 

 
 2015 2014 
  Accumulated Net book Net book 
  Cost amortization value value 
 
Land $ 55,159 $ –    $ 55,159 $ 55,159 
Buildings 1,184,276 906,947 277,329 301,014 
Building expansion 5,744,613 4,305,076 1,439,537 1,630,334 
Major equipment 1,080,727 599,608 481,119 406,531 
Nurse call system 165,263 38,573 126,690 132,202 
Roof expansion 220,032 216,532 3,500 14,004 
Computer hardware and  

software 67,576 52,172 15,404 15,216 
 
 $ 8,517,646 $ 6,118,908 $ 2,398,738 $ 2,554,460 
 

Title to the Lodge’s land and buildings is held by The Governing Council of The Salvation Army 
in Canada, which owns and operates the Lodge. 
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5. Deferred grants receivable: 

(a) Province of Manitoba: 

The Province of Manitoba had arranged for the Lodge to receive a grant of $86,350 to be 
amortized at 6 7/8 percent interest annually for 50 years (maturing in 2020). The annual 
payment is $6,060 including principal and interest, and the remaining amount receivable at 
March 31, 2015 is $26,707 (2014 - $30,804). 

(b)  Winnipeg Regional Health Authority: 

During the past two years, the Lodge undertook projects to replace the windows and the 
HVAC units in the facility. For the year ended March 31, 2015, these costs have been 
recognized in Physical Plant expense in the statement of operations in the amount of 
$452,605 (2014 - $537,000).   

The costs to date for the window project were partially funded through a $200,000 grant 
from the Salvation Army, received in 2014, and through a deferred grant to be received 
from the WRHA over a 10 year period. The amount of the grant from the WRHA for the 
windows is $336,987, with $289,217 remaining to be received from the WRHA as at March 
31, 2015. This amount has been recorded as a grant receivable and revenue, and is being 
paid by the WRHA over 10 years (maturing in 2023). The annual payment to be received is 
$33,720 plus interest at prime.  In 2015, approximately $79,000 in costs were incurred in 
relation to the window project, which were funded through an internal loan from THQ (see 
note 9(b)), maturing in 2019. 

The costs to date for the HVAC replacement project were partially funded through internally 
restricted funds in the amount of $210,000, which had been restricted for capital projects in 
2014.  The remaining $133,605 was funded through an internal loan from THQ (see note 
9(b)), maturing in 2019. 

6. Current liabilities: 

(a) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of: 

 
   2015 2014 
 
Accounts payable  $ 197,033 $ 102,127 
Accrued salaries and benefits 325,593 249,502 
Government remittances payable 14,195 11,438 
Accrued interest payable 1,185 1,367 
 
    $ 538,006 $ 364,434 
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6. Current liabilities (continued): 

Government remittances payable include amounts payable related to payroll levy. 

(b) Advances from and amounts due to WRHA: 

From time to time, the Lodge receives advances from the WRHA for funding commitments. 
These advances, if any, are included in amounts due to the WRHA and are unsecured and 
non-interest bearing. In subsequent years, the advances owing the WRHA, are offset by 
the WRHA against funds paid for current funding commitments.  There were no balances 
owing at March 31, 2015 (2014 - nil). 

7. Employee benefits: 

(a) Pre-retirement benefits: 

The Lodge has undertaken an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2014 of the accrued pre-
retirement entitlements. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the 
Lodge’s accrued pre-retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawal rates, a 
discount rate of 2.9 percent (2014 - 3.6 percent) and a rate of salary increase of 3.5 
percent (2014 - 3.0 percent) plus age related merit/promotion scale and a factor ranging 
from 0 - 3.0 percent (2014 - 0 - 3.0 percent) for disability. Actual payments made during the 
year for the Lodge’s pre-retirement entitlements were $26,614 (2014 - $36,318). 

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for future retirement benefits 
was initially determined based on the future pre-retirement benefits payable at March 31, 
2004, and was recorded as amounts recoverable from the WRHA. The recoverable has 
been adjusted, based on direction from the WRHA, to include the incremental increases in 
the related liability for fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009, which include an interest component. 
The future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from WRHA of $645,530 at 
March 31, 2015 (2014 - $533,530) has no specified terms of repayment. 

The fair value of the future employee benefits recoverable from WRHA approximates its 
carrying value as the interest component described above is comparable to current market 
rates. 

(b) Vacation pay: 

Each year, the WRHA funds a portion of the vacation pay liability of the Lodge, which is 
limited to the amount established at March 31, 2004 of $271,682. This amount is included 
in employee benefits recoverable from WRHA on the statement of financial position. 
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8. Deferred contributions: 

Deferred contributions related to capital assets and major repairs represent the unamortized 
amount of donations and funding received for the purchase of capital assets and repairs. These 
contributions were received primarily from Manitoba Health and the WRHA, and also through 
the CDA (note 3). 

The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations. 
Changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows: 

 
 2015 2014 
 Purchased Future capital   
 capital purchases and   
  assets major repairs Total Total 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,264,249 $ 142,782 $ 2,407,031 $ 2,615,193 
 
Additional contributions 

received: 
Mortgage/loan payments 

(note 9) 32,184 –    32,184 30,087 
Capital assets and  

major repairs –    130,793 130,793 73,089 
 2,296,433 273,575 2,570,008 2,718,369 
 
Transfers as a result of  

capital asset purchases 148,090 (148,090) –    –    
Major repairs –    (5,476) (5,476) (9,988) 
Amortization (295,312) –    (295,312) (301,350) 
 
Balance, end of year $ 2,149,211 $ 120,009  $ 2,269,220 $ 2,407,031 
 

9. Long-term debt: 

(a)  Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, 
mortgage payable, interest at 6 7/8%, repayable 
$3,966 monthly, including principal and interest, 
maturing 2020 $ 209,771 $ 241,953 

 
Current portion 34,433 32,182 

 
 $ 175,338 $ 209,771 
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9. Long-term debt (continued): 

Principal and interest payments are funded by the Province of Manitoba via the WRHA. Principal 
payments are recorded in deferred contributions (note 8). 

Principal payments expected in the next five years are as follows: 

 
 
2016   $ 34,433 
2017  36,841 
2018  39,417 
2019  42,174 
2020   45,119 
Thereafter  11,787 
 
   $ 209,771 
 

During the year, interest expense relating to the debt funded amounted to $24,456 (2014 - 
$21,489). 

(b) The Salvation Army - THQ 

 
  2015 2014 
 
The Salvation Army - THQ, loan payable, interest 
at 3.14%, repayable $3,105 monthly, including 
principal and interest, maturing 2019 $ 212,605 $ –    

 
Current portion 35,000 –    

 
 $ 177,605 $ –    
 

During the year, the Lodge entered into a loan agreement with THQ, with payments 
commencing on April 1, 2015 (see note 5[b]). 
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10. Invested in capital assets: 

Investment in capital assets is calculated as follows: 

 
 2015 2014 
  
Capital assets $ 2,398,738 $ 2,554,460 
Amounts financed by: 

Deferred contributions - purchased  
capital assets (note 8) (2,149,216) (2,264,256) 

Long-term debt (note 9) (209,771) (241,953) 
 

Balance, end of year $ 39,751 $ 48,251 
 

11. Internally restricted funds: 

The internally restricted fund balance comprises the following (note 2[a][ii]): 

 
 2015 2014 
 
Special projects $ 311,973 $ 278,113 
Capital improvements 105,000 280,000 
Programs 47,372 45,860 
 
  $ 464,345 $ 603,973 
 

During the year, a transfer of $210,000 from internally restricted funds to unrestricted funds 
was approved in order to fund the HVAC replacement project (note 5[b]).   

12. Pension plan: 

Eligible employees of the Lodge are members of the Healthcare Employees’ Pension Plan - 
Manitoba (HEPP), a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. 
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12. Pension plan (continued): 

During the year, the Lodge contributed $432,369 (2014 - $390,120) on behalf of its employees. 
The most recent funding actuarial valuation of the plan as at December 31, 2012 reported that 
the plan had a deficiency of actuarial value of net assets over actuarial present value of 
accrued pension obligations as well as a solvency deficiency. Based on a solvency exemption 
granted to HEPP, the plan is not required to fund on a solvency basis but is required to fund on 
a going concern basis. The going concern deficiency will be funded by special payments out of 
current contributions. Any contribution deficiencies in the plan would be addressed through 
pension benefit reductions or contribution rate increases from the participating members. On 
April 1, 2014 employer contribution rates increased to 7.9 percent (2014 - 7.9 percent) of 
pensionable earnings up to the yearly maximum pensionable earnings limit (YMPE) and 9.5 
percent (2014 - 9.5 percent) on earnings in excess of YMPE. On April 1, 2015, with the 
inclusion of contributions toward the Cost of Living Adjustment Plan, employer contribution 
rates increased to 8.9 percent (2014 - 8.7 percent) of pensionable earnings up to the YMPE 
and 10.5 percent (10.3 percent) on earnings in excess of YMPE. 

13. Related party transactions: 

During the year, the Lodge had the following transactions with The Salvation Army: 

 
  2015 2014 
 
Revenue: 

Grants from DHQ - Red Shield Appeal $ 165,000 $ 165,000 
Grants from DHQ  60,000  60,000 
Grants from DHQ - Window Replacement –    200,000 
Grant - proceeds from sale of property –    280,000 

 
Expense: 

Management support assessment paid to THQ 122,494 119,320 
 

 

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are balances due to THQ of $20,489 (2014 
- $9,943) which represents the management services assessment for the month of March. 

DHQ has approved funding to the Ministry Unit up to $60,000 annually starting April 1, 2012 for 
a maximum of 12 years for the purpose of reducing the deficiency in net assets. Funding for the 
current year is included in receivable from The Salvation Army in the statements of financial 
position. 

The above transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the 
exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the 
related parties. 
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14. Management of capital: 

The Ministry Unit defines its capital as the amounts included in its fund balances. The Ministry 
Unit’s objectives in managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern 
so that it can continue to provide the appropriate level of services and benefits to its clients and 
its stakeholders, while carrying out the mandate of The Salvation Army. 

Management continually monitors the impact of changes in economic conditions on its funding 
commitments. 
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Les notes afférentes font partie intégrante de ces états financiers. 3

VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING 
État de la Situation Financière 

Au 31 mars 2015 2014  

Fonds
Fonds  immobilisa- Fonds de

opérations  tions  réserve  Total  Total 

$  $  $  $ $
Actif 

Actif à court terme 
Encaisse (note 2) 102 855  - -   102 855   90 653  
Comptes à recevoir 21 690  - -  21 690   21 098  
Comptes à recevoir - SM/SS  145 083  - -  145 083   111 725  
Inventaire 38 622  - -  38 622   38 456  
Dépenses payées d'avance  13 376  - -  13 376   12 408  
Avantages sociaux future recouvrables (note 3)  227 348  - -  227 348   227 348  
Dû de Villa Youville Motels  10 099  - -  10 099   32 596  

559 073   - - 559 073   534 284  

Avantages sociaux futurs recouvrables (note 3) 374 000   - - 374 000   354 000  

Immobilisations (note 4) -   6 573 240  -   6 573 240   6 736 365  

Construction en cours (note 5) -  -  -  -   59 585  

Interfonds  (89 978)  -  89 978  - - 

 843 095   6 573 240  89 978   7 506 313   7 684 234  

Passif et solde de fonds 

Passif à court terme 
Comptes à payer et dépenses courues   258 365  - -  258 365   292 156 
Avantages sociaux à payer (note 3)  315 016   - - 315 016   302 359  
Revenus reportés - Soins de garde de jour 29 701  - -  29 701   34 041  

 603 082  - -   603 082   628 556 

Passif à long terme 
Avantages sociaux futurs à payer (note 3)  374 000  - -  374 000   354 000 
Apports reportés (note 6)  

Afférents aux immobilisations - 6 498 150   6 498 150   6 720 860  
Fonds des réserves 

Réserve générale  - -  19 549   19 549   19 549 
Réserve pour ameublement  - -  4 339   4 339   18 161 
Réserve pour réparations majeures - -  66 090   66 090   63 450 

 374 000   6 498 150  89 978   6 962 128   7 176 020  

Engagements contractuels et éventualités (note 7)

Solde de fonds     
Surplus cumulé  (133 987)   75 090  -   (58 897)   (120 342)  

 843 095   6 573 240  89 978   7 506 313   7 684 234  
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
 État de l'évolution des soldes de fonds

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015 2014 

 Fonds 
Fonds immobilisa- 

opérations tions Total Total 
$ $ $ $ 

Solde, au début de l'exercice (195 432) 75 090 (120 342) (56 205)

Excédent (déficit) des revenus sur 
les dépenses pour l'exercice 61 445 - 61 445 (64 137)

Solde, à la fin de l'exercice (133 987) 75 090 (58 897) (120 342)

Les notes afférentes font partie intégrante de ces états financiers. 4



 VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
État des résultats

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015 2014 
$ $ 

Revenus
Services de soins prolongés

Santé Sud (note 8) 4 317 276 4 154 828
Prestations de retraite 20 000 (5 898)

 4 337 276 4 148 930

Loyer des résidents 959 289 983 964

Autres 
Recouvrements - motels 102 277 49 323

- cuisine 57 792 54 220
- matériel et autres 78 478 48 303

Amortissement des apports reportés 267 993 267 273
Intérêts 2 505 3 261
Soins de garde de jour 77 657 81 002

586 702 503 382

5 883 267 5 636 276

Dépenses 
Administration 490 872 524 559
Amortissement 267 993 267 273
Buanderie 172 901 178 983
Frais d'entretien d'immobilisations 244 824 268 321
Frais de ménage 347 365 336 486
Frais d'opération d'immobilisations 203 772 244 684
Médicaments 116 292 120 701
Paiement pré-retraite/Prestations de retraite 20 000 (5 898)
Services de supports aux résidents - activités 163 575 156 217
Ressources cliniques 110 958 104 508
Services alimentaires - nursing 610 506 610 889

- motels 32 568 21 465
- autres 39 335 31 411

Soins de garde de jour 77 001 81 002
Soins médicaux 2 923 860 2 759 812

5 821 822 5 700 413

Excédent (déficit) des revenus sur les dépenses pour l'exercice 61 445 (64 137)

Les notes afférentes font partie intégrante de ces états financiers. 5



VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
 État des flux de trésorerie

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015 2014 
$ $ 

Flux de trésorerie reliés aux opérations
Excédent (déficit) des revenus sur les dépenses pour l'exercice 61 445 (64 137)
Ajustements pour

Amortissement des immobilisations 267 993 267 273
Amortissement des apports reportés (267 993) (267 273)

61 445 (64 137)
Variations des éléments hors liquidités du fonds de roulement

Comptes à recevoir (591) (10 114)
Comptes à recevoir - SM/SS (33 358) (174 159)
Dû de Villa Youville Motels 22 496 (28 328)
Inventaire (166) 3 645
Dépenses payées d'avance (968) (3 994)
Avantages sociaux future recouvrables (20 000) 10 585
Compte à payer - SM/SS (33 791) 5 904
Avantages sociaux à payer 12 657 (40 093)
Avantages sociaux futurs à payer 20 000 (10 585)

27 724 (311 276)

Flux de trésorerie reliés aux activités de financement
Financement de Santé Sud pour immobilisations 2 640 2 640
Soins de garde de jour (4 340) (7 869)

(1 700) (5 229)

Flux de trésorerie reliés aux activités d'investissement
Dépenses des apports reportés - dépenses de périodes futures (13 822) (11 046)

Augmentation (diminution) nette de l'encaisse 12 202 (327 551)

Encaisse, au début de l'exercice 90 653 418 204

Encaisse, à la fin de l'exercice 102 855 90 653

Les notes afférentes font partie intégrante de ces états financiers. 6



VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

1. Nature des activités et sommaire des principales méthodes comptables

a) Nature et objectif de l'organisation

Villa Youville Inc. (la « corporation ») est un organisme de bienfaisance enregistré et est
exempt d'impôt selon l'article 149 de la loi d'impôt du Canada.

Villa Youville Inc. fut incorporée le 24 décembre 1963 par Lettre Patente sous « The
Companies Act » de la Province du Manitoba.

b) Règles comptables

Les états financiers ont été préparés conformément aux normes comptables pour les
organismes sans but lucratif du Canada.

c) Méthode comptables

Ces états financiers ne comprennent pas les résultats de la section des motels et des
fonds généraux. Des états financiers séparés sont produits pour les motels et les fonds
généraux.

d) Comptabilité par fonds

La corporation applique la méthode de la comptabilité par fonds affectés pour
comptabiliser les apports.

Fonds d'opérations

Le fonds d'opérations rend compte des activités menées par la corporation en matière de
prestations de services et d'administration. Ce fonds présente les ressources non
affectées, les subventions de fonctionnement affectées et les actifs, les passifs, les
revenus et les dépenses liées aux opérations de la corporation et toutes autres ressources
affectées pour lequel un fonds séparé n'a pas été établi.

Fonds d'immobilisations

Le fonds d'immobilisations présente les actifs, les passifs, les revenus et les dépenses
afférents aux immobilisations de la corporation.

Réserves pour remplacements

Le fonds de réserve est employé pour les projets de rénovation et l'achat de l'équipement
et de l'ameublement. Les affectations annuelles aux fonds de réserve pour réparations
majeures se chiffrent à 2 640 $. La permission de Santé Manitoba est requise pour toute
charge ou retrait de cette réserve (voir note 6).
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

1. Nature des activités et sommaire des principales méthodes comptables (suite)

e) Constatation des revenus

Sous la Loi sur l'assurance-maladie et ses règlements, la corporation reçoit des fonds
principalement de la Province du Manitoba conformément au budget établi par Santé
Manitoba. Les subventions d'exploitation sont constatées à titre de produits de l'exercice
au cours duquel les charges connexes sont engagées. Toutes subventions accordées
mais non reçues sont constatées à recevoir, et, celles afférentes à une période ultérieure
sont reportées et constatées dans cette période ultérieure. Ces états financiers reflètent le
financement approuvé par Santé Manitoba pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015 ainsi
que les règlements anticipés par rapport au déficit d'exploitation net.

Les fonds seront ajustés lorsque la revue des comptes de la corporation sera complétée
par Santé Manitoba. Tout ajustement sera reflété dans l'exercice au cours duquel Santé
Manitoba reçoit le rapport final des coûts recommandés.

Les apports non affectés sont constatés à titre de produits lorsqu'ils sont reçus ou à
recevoir si le montant à recevoir peut faire l'objet d'une estimation raisonnable et que sa
réception est raisonnablement assurée.

Les apports affectés sont constatés à titre de produits de l'exercice au cours duquel les
charges connexes sont engagées. Les apports affectés aux achats d'immobilisations sont
reportés et amortis à titre de produits selon la méthode d'amortissement linéaire et du taux
d'amortissement conformément à ces immobilisations.

Les revenus de placements affectés sont constatés à titre de produits dans l'exercice au
cours duquel les charges connexes sont engagées. Les revenus de placements non
affectés sont constatés à titre de produits lorsqu'ils sont gagnés.

f) Instruments financiers

Les instruments financiers sont comptabilisés à leur juste valeur au moment de leur
acquisition ou de leur émission. Au cours des périodes ultérieures, les instruments de
capitaux propres négociés sur un marché actif sont comptabilisés à leur juste valeur, tout
gain ou toute perte non réalisé étant comptabilisé dans l'état des résultats. Tous les autres
instruments financiers sont comptabilisés au coût ou au coût après amortissement diminué
des pertes de valeur, le cas échéant. Les actifs financiers font l’objet d’un test de
dépréciation lorsque les changements de situation suggèrent qu’ils pourraient s’être
dépréciés. Les coûts de transaction attribuables à l’acquisition, à la sortie ou à l’émission
des instruments financiers sont passés en charges dans le cas des éléments qui sont
réévalués à la juste valeur à la date de chaque état de la situation financière et ils sont
imputés aux instruments financiers dans le cas de ceux qui sont évalués au coût après
amortissement.
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

1. Nature des activités et sommaire des principales méthodes comptables (suite)

g) Inventaire

L'inventaire est évalué au moindre du coût et de la valeur de réalisation nette. Le coût
étant déterminé en se servant de la méthode de l'épuisement successif.

h) Immobilisations

Les immobilisations acquises sont comptabilisées au coût dans le fonds des
immobilisations. Les apports reçus sous forme d'immobilisations sont comptabilisés à la
juste valeur dans le fonds des immobilisations à la date de l'apport. Les immobilisations
sont amorties selon la méthode de l'amortissement linéaire sur leur durée de vie utile
estimative comme suit :

Bâtisses 40 ans
Rénovations 20 ans
Équipement d'entretien 20 ans
Équipement 10 ans
Ordinateurs 5 ans

i) Avantages sociaux futurs

L'estimation des avantages futurs antérieurs à la retraite a été effectuée selon la méthode
actuarielle de la répartition des prestations au prorata des services.

j) Apports reçus sous forme de services

Plusieurs bénévoles consacrent un nombre notable d'heures par année à aider la
corporation à assurer la prestation de ses services. En raison de la difficulté de déterminer
la juste valeur de ces apports, ceux-ci ne sont pas constatés dans les états financiers.

k) Emploi des estimations

La préparation des états financiers, selon les normes comptables pour les organismes
sans but lucratif du Canada, exige de la direction qu'elle établisse des estimations et
formule des hypothèses à l'égard des montants d'actif et de passif portés à l'état de la
situation financière et des éléments de l'actif et du passif éventuels à la date de l'état de la
situation financière ainsi que des montants de revenus et de dépenses imputées au cours
de l'exercice couvert par les états financiers. Les résultats réels pourraient différer de ces
estimations.
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

2. Marge de Crédit

La corporation a une marge de crédit d'exploitation approuvée avec la Caisse Groupe
Financier  avec un  maximum de 185 000 $. La marge  de crédit porte un taux  d'intérêt de
3,25 % (3,25 % en 2014), et est garantie par une lettre d'autorisation de Santé Manitoba et
d'un contrat de sureté général. 

3. Avantages sociaux recouvrables        

Les prestations de retraite sont constatées lorsqu'elles sont réalisées et sont fondées sur des
hypothèses actuarielles tandis que les congés de vacances rémunérés sont constatés
lorsqu'ils sont réalisés par l'employé. 

À cause de la nature de ces bénéfices, les prestations de retraite recevables et payables sont
classifiées comme étant à long terme tandis que les congés de vacances apparaissent
comme recevables et payables à court terme.

Santé Manitoba, via Santé Sud, fournira du financement pour les prestations de retraite
jusqu’au montant maximum des obligations encourues en date du 31 mars 2004. Ce montant
a été enregistré comme un recevable dans l'état de la situation financière. La Province du
Manitoba a garanti ce recevable non réglé à l’Office et lui sera payé lorsqu’il sera requis.
Toute obligation excédent le montant du 31 mars 2004 est reflétée comme une charge de
l’exercice courant dans l’état des résultats. Le montant à recevoir est enregistré sur une base
non actualisée. Cette politique est encouragée et appliquée de la même manière que Santé
Manitoba. La juste valeur du montant à recevoir sur une base actualisée serait
significativement moins élevée que la valeur comptable et la différence pourrait être
influencée de façon significative par le taux d’actualisation effectif utilisé.

4. Immobilisations          
2015 2014 

Valeur Valeur 
Amortissement comptable comptable 

Coût cumulé nette nette 
$ $ $ $ 

Terrain 75 090 - 75 090 75 090
Bâtisses 9 866 900 3 600 767 6 266 133 6 517 482
Équipement 291 498 268 792 22 706 26 945
Équipement d'entretien 300 554 91 243 209 311 116 848
Ordinateurs 13 684 13 684 - -

10 547 726 3 974 486 6 573 240 6 736 365
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

5. Construction en cours        
2015 2014 

$ $ 

Projet - traitement d'eau - 59 585

6. Apports reportés     

Apports reportés afférents aux immobilisations

Les apports reportés présentés dans le fonds des immobilisations comprennent les fractions
non amorties des apports reçus sous forme de contributions pour l'acquisition des
immobilisations. 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Solde, au début de l'exercice 6 720 860 6 871 659
Plus achat d'ameublement 45 283 116 474
Moins montants amortis dans les résultats (267 993) (267 273)

Solde, à la fin de l'exercice 6 498 150 6 720 860

Apports reportés - réserve pour ameublement

Les apports reportés rattachés aux montants reçus au cours de l'exercice sont destinés à
couvrir l'achat d'ameublement.

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Solde, au début de l'exercice 18 161 29 207
Apport reportés afférents aux immobilisations (13 822) (11 046)

Solde, à la fin de l'exercice 4 339 18 161
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

6. Apports reportés (suite)

Apports reportés - réserve pour réparations majeures

Les apports reportés pour réparations majeures comprennent les fractions reçues de Santé
Manitoba au cours de l'exercice destinées à couvrir les charges pour des réparations
majeures ou remplacement d'équipement. 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Solde, au début de l'exercice 63 450 60 810
Plus allocations de réserve 2 640 2 640
Autres allocations de réserve - -

Solde, à la fin de l'exercice 66 090 63 450

Apports reportés - réserve générale

Les apports reportés généraux comprennent des dons et prélèvements de fonds au cours de
l'exercice destinées à couvrir les dépenses d'activités pour les résidents (capital ou autres) au
delà des fonds provisionnés par Santé Sud. 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Solde, au début de l'exercice 19 549 19 549
Intérêts - -

Solde, à la fin de l'exercice 19 549 19 549

7. Engagements contractuels et éventualités           

Au 1er juillet 1987, un groupe d'organismes en soins de santé, (« souscripteurs »), ont formé
le Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada (« HIROC »). HIROC est autorisé en tant que
bourse d'assurance réciproque au sens de la Loi sur les assurances des provinces, qui
permet des contrats réciproques de personnes d'assurance indemnité. HIROC facilite la
fourniture d'assurance aux organismes en soins de santé dans les provinces de l'Ontario, du
Manitoba, de la Saskatchewan et de Terre-Neuve. Les abonnés payent des primes annuelles,
qui sont actuariellement déterminées, et sont sujets à une évaluation pour les pertes
expérimentées par le groupe d'abonnés au-dessus de telles primes pendant les années où ils
étaient un abonné. Au 31 mars 2015, la corporation n'a subi aucune évaluation de ce genre.
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

8. Revenus Santé Sud

Le revenu présenté dans les états financiers comprend un montant estimé qui dépend de  la
prévision budgétaire non finalisée à date pour l'exercice fiscal 31 mars 2015.

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Revenu de Santé Sud conformément au budget 4 122 201 4 030 738
Plus   

Honoraires de capitation 30 254 30 254
Subvention de lits - 3 862
Normalisation des salaires - MNU 98 825 19 723
Ajustement du financement de recrutement des employés 48 (12 558)
Financement de HSA (8 908) (1 139)

Moins apports nets redistribués 
Ajustement du financement hors globe - Loyer des résidents 74 856 83 255
Ajustement du financement hors globe - agrément - 693

Revenue de Santé Sud 4 317 276 4 154 828

9. Avantages sociaux futurs

Avantages sociaux futurs à payer

Les avantages sociaux futurs à payer sont basés sur une évaluation actuarielle au 31 mars
2015.

En ce qui concerne le droit de pré-retraite des membres du Health Employees' Pension Plan,
l'engagement contractuel de la corporation est de payer quatre jours de salaire pour chaque
année de service avant la retraite de l'employé, si l'employé se conforme à une ou plusieurs
des conditions suivantes :

 a complété dix ans de service et a atteint l'âge de 55 ans; ou
 répond à la règle de "quatre-vingt" qui est calculée en ajoutant le nombre d'années de

service à l'âge de l'employé; ou
 a pris sa retraite à l'âge de 65 ans ou après; ou
 a terminé l'emploi en tout temps dû à une incapacité permanente.

L'hypothèse actuarielle importante utilisée pour mesurer les droits de retraite courus de la
corporation regroupe la mortalité et les taux de retraits; un taux d'actualisation de 2,55 %
(3,35 % en 2014) et un taux d'accroissement du salaire de 3,00 % (3,00 % en 2014); plus une
grille de promotion/mérite relative à l'âge et sans provision pour un handicap. 
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

9. Avantages sociaux futurs (suite)

Régime de retraite

La majorité des employés de la corporation participent au régime de retraite "Healthcare
Employees' Pension Plan" (le «Régime»), successeur du régime Manitoba Health
Organization Inc. Il s'agit d'un Régime de retraite interentreprises à prestations déterminées
de type de fin de carrière dont bénéficient les salariés. Le Régime prévoit les versements de
prestations basés selon le calcul qui rend les meilleurs résultats. Le calcul sera basé sur le
nombre d'années de service et de la moyenne des salaires durant les cinq meilleures années
des dix dernières années avant la retraite, le congédiement ou la mort.

Les actifs du Régime comprennent des placements de qualité. L'administration des risques de
crédit et de marché est gérée par le Régime en suivant la politique établie pour les
placements du Régime et en plaçant les actifs en fiducie.

Avec l'aide d'un actuaire, la charge de retraite est déterminée selon les circonstances les plus
probables d'après la direction. Pour s'assurer que le régime honore ses engagements, l'actif
de la caisse de retraite comprend un montant qui s'ajoute au versement de 7,90 % du salaire
et de 9,50 % du salaire au-dessus de 52 500 $ des participants. La contribution de
l'employeur est de 7,90 % du salaire et de 9,50 % du salaire au-dessus de 52 500 $ des
participants. Au 1er avril 2014,  avec l’inclusion de contribution envers le plan d’ajustement
pour le coût de la vie, le taux des cotisations a augmenté à 8.7% (pour l’employeur et
l’employé) du droit ouvrant à pension jusqu’à une limite du maximum annuel moyen des gains
ouvrant droit à pension (MGAP) et a augmenté à 10.3% (portion de l’employeur et de
l’employé) des gains excédent le MGAP.

L'évaluation actuarielle la plus récente, au 31 décembre 2013, indiquait que le régime était en
déficit; cependant, on prévoit que les augmentations des taux de contribution récemment
mises en application élimineront cette insuffisance dans l'horizon prévisionnel. Au cours de
l'exercice, la corporation a versé au régime 275 593 $ (220 931 $ en 2014) pour le compte de
ses employés.

10. Gestion des risques financiers        

La corporation, dans le cours normal de ses activités, est exposée à différents risques,
notamment le risque de crédit. L'objectif de la corporation en matière de gestion des risques
est de favoriser l'optimisation du rapport risque-rendement, à l'intérieur de limites définies, en
appliquant des stratégies, des politiques ainsi que des processus de gestion et de contrôle
des risques intégrés à l'ensemble des activités de la corporation.

Risque de crédit

Le risque de crédit est le risque de perte couru par la corporation lorsqu’une contrepartie à un
instrument financier ne réussit pas à respecter ses obligations contractuelles. La corporation
est exposée principalement au risque de crédit au niveau des placements et des comptes à
recevoir.
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VILLA YOUVILLE INC. - NURSING
Notes afférentes aux états financiers 

Pour l'exercice terminé le 31 mars 2015

10. Gestion des risques financiers (suite)

L’exposition maximale de la corporation au risque de crédit, qui ne tient compte d’aucune
garantie ni d’autres améliorations des termes de crédit, est la suivante :

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Autres 21 690 21 098
Santé Manitoba/Santé Sud 145 083 111 725
Villa Youville Motels 10 099 32 596

176 872 165 419

La corporation n’est pas exposée de façon significative au risque de crédit puisque les
comptes à recevoir – autres viennent d’une grande base de clients et le paiement est
typiquement entièrement acquitté lorsqu’il est dû. La corporation a établi une provision pour
créances douteuses qui représente son évaluation des pertes de crédit potentielles. La
provision pour créances douteuses est fondée sur les évaluations et les hypothèses de la
gestion concernant des conditions de marché courantes, l’analyse des clients et des
tendances historiques de paiement.  

Risque de liquidité

Le risque de liquidité est le risque que la corporation ne soit pas en mesure de remplir ses
obligations lorsqu’elles arrivent à échéance. La corporation maintient son fonds de roulement
à un niveau convenable qui lui permet de remplir toutes ses obligations en temps opportun. 

Risque de taux d'intérêt

La corporation, est exposée aux fluctuations des taux d'intérêts qui pourraient affecter les
sorties et entrées de fonds liées à la marge de crédit à taux variable.  La corporation ne se
sert pas d'instruments financiers dérivés pour gérer le risque de taux d'intérêt. 

11. Dépendance économique

Le volume d'activité financière entreprise par la corporation avec Santé Manitoba et Santé
Sud est assez suffisant que la cessation de ces placements mettrait en danger la capacité de
la corporation à continuer comme entreprise pérenne.
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Financial Statements

March 31, 2015



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.:  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc., which comprise the statement
of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of West Park Manor Personal Care
Home Inc. as at March 31, 2015 and the results of its operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Winnipeg, Manitoba

July 28, 2015 Chartered Accountants

2500 - 201 Portage Ave., Winnipeg, Manitoba, R3B 3K6, Phone: (204) 775-4531, 1 (877) 500-0795



West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Statement of Financial Position

As at March 31, 2015

2015 2014

Assets
Current

Cash (Note 3) 762,538 618,861
Short term investments (Note 4) 1,753,452 1,991,177
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 47,412 64,465
Prepaid expenses and deposits 88,200 55,843
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 684,015 834,894

3,335,617 3,565,240

Capital assets (Note 6) 1,995,134 1,980,666

Deferred charges - future employee benefits (Note 7) 754,664 662,664

6,085,415 6,208,570

Continued on next page

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

Revenue  
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority  

Operating  5,649,836 5,687,158
Bed grant  11,712 11,712
Interest on approved borrowing  58,957 52,488
Year-end adjustment  (Note 14) (97,544) (70,590)
Medical salaries  20,400 19,776
Pre-retirement leave amortization  49,275 63,571
MNU related  163,687 44,762
Over-cost and other funding  116,585 57,486
Median rate adjustment per diem  58,595 1,320
Non median rate funding  262,320 262,320
CUPE related  100,983 -

Residential charges  3,241,460 3,143,474
3.6 HPRD and other revenue  591,853 563,997
Amortization of deferred capital contributions  159,563 153,934

10,387,682 9,991,408

Expenses  
Amortization  133,262 123,912
Dietary services and supplies  395,809 383,814
Employee benefits  1,415,667 1,429,979
Employee benefits - preretirement leave  49,275 63,571
General administration  118,631 128,987
Health and safety  4,376 8,949
Housekeeping  41,960 36,288
Interest on long-term debt  69,705 68,247
Laundry  38,656 40,626
Medical salaries  20,938 19,416
Nursing services and supplies  197,627 220,549
Recreation and handicraft supplies  17,112 16,543
Repairs and maintenance  118,716 124,310
Salaries and wages  7,336,061 6,902,455
Utilities  273,401 266,871

10,231,196 9,834,517

Excess of revenue over expenses before the following: 156,486 156,891

Other items  
Accrued future employee benefit income  92,000 55,675
Accrued future employee benefit expense  (92,000) (55,675)

Excess of revenue over expenses 156,486 156,891

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2015

Internally
restricted

Unrestricted Invested in
capital assets

2015 2014

Net assets, beginning of year 976,027 255,509 282,642 1,514,178 1,356,282

Excess of revenue over expenses - 130,185 26,301 156,486 156,891

Change in internally restricted net
amounts  (Note 10)

29,386 - - 29,386 1,005

Purchase of capital assets   - (147,730) 147,730 - -

Funding proceeds on capital asset
additions  

- 136,761 (136,761) - -

Transfers  (Note 11) 52,928 (52,928) - - -

Net assets, end of year 1,058,341 321,797 319,912 1,700,050 1,514,178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2015

2015 2014

Cash provided by (used for) the following activities  
Operating   

Cash received from Government and tenants   10,722,618 10,158,293
Cash paid to suppliers   (1,774,588) (1,256,465)
Cash paid to employees   (8,854,009) (8,431,151)
Interest paid   (69,705) (68,247)

   24,316 402,430

Financing   
Advances of long-term debt   27,654 406,849
Repayment of long-term debt   (159,716) (165,917)
Increase in internally restricted net assets   (35,674) (12,913)
Decrease in internally restricted net assets   6,288 11,907
Advances of receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority   (476,387) (225,390)
Repayments of receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority   654,992 129,059
Contributions to trust funds payable   44,245 67,299
Withdrawals from trust funds payable   (32,036) (63,656)

   29,366 147,238

Investing   
Purchase of capital assets   (147,730) (527,705)
Purchase of short-term investments   - (15,006)
Proceeds on sale of short-term investments   237,725 103,115

   89,995 (439,596)

Increase in cash resources  143,677 110,072
Cash resources, beginning of year   618,861 508,789

Cash resources, end of year   762,538 618,861

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

1. Incorporation and nature of the organization

West Park Manor Personal Care Home, Inc. (the "Organization") is a privately operated non-profit corporation which
provides personal care for senior citizens.  It is incorporated without share capital under the Corporations Act of Manitoba.

The Organization is a not for profit organization under the Income Tax Act (the "Act") and as such, is exempt from income
taxes.  In order to maintain its status as such, the Organization must meet certain requirements within the Act.  In the
opinion of the management, these requirements have been met.

2. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations set out in Part III of the CPA Canada Handbook - Accounting  using the following significant accounting
policies:

Cash  

Cash includes balances with banks. Cash subject to restrictions that prevent its use for current purposes is included in
restricted cash.

Investments  

Investments are portfolio investments recorded at fair value for those with prices quoted in an active market, and cost less
impairment for those that are not quoted in an active market. They have been classified as short-term assets in concurrence
with the nature of the investment.

Capital assets  

The Organization capitalizes all individual assets and assets grouped in a similar kind with a cost over $2,000. Capital
assets with a cost less than $2,000 may be capitalized if the Organization estimates the asset will have a long-term benefit.

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost.  Amortization is recorded in the Capital Asset Fund using the straight-line
basis, at rates intended to amortize the value of capital assets over their estimated useful life.  The annual rates are as
follows:
Buildings 40 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Equipment 16 years

Fund accounting  

The Organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions and uses fund accounting, and maintains three
funds: unrestricted fund, invested in capital asset fund and internally restricted fund.

The Unrestricted Fund reports the Organization’s revenue and expenses related to program delivery and administrative
activities in accordance with guidelines established by Manitoba Health and/or Winnipeg Regional Healthy Authority for
future expenditures as approved by Manitoba Health. 

The Capital Asset Fund reports the Organization’s assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses related to West Park Manor
Personal Care Home Inc.'s capital assets and building expansion campaign. 

The Internally Restricted Funds reports the Organization’s internally restricted resources, including reserves for major
repairs and benefit plan funding, that are restricted for use at the discretion of the Board of Directors. 
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

2. Significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Revenue recognition  

The Organization uses the deferral method of accounting for contributions and reports on a fund accounting basis.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the Unrestricted Fund when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

Restricted investment income is recognized in the appropriate deferred contribution balance or in net assets depending on
the nature of the restrictions. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the Unrestricted Fund when
earned

Deferred contributions  

Deferred contributions represent the unamortized portion of restricted contributions relating to the purchase of capital assets
or self-funding of insurance deductibles.  Capital asset deferred contributions are recognized as revenue on the same basis
as respective assets are amortized.  Insurance deductible and major repairs deferred contributions are recognized as
revenue on the same basis as respective expenditures are made.

Long-lived assets  

Long-lived assets consist of buildings, computer equipment and equipment with finite useful lives.  Long-lived assets are
measured and amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

When the Organization determines that a long-lived asset no longer has any long-term service potential to the Organization,
the excess of its net carrying amount over any residual value is recognized as an expense in the statement of operations.
Write-downs are not reversed.

Measurement uncertainty (use of estimates)  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Accounts receivable  and receivable from WRHA are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate
allowance for doubtful accounts is provided where considered necessary.  Amortization and deferred contributions are
based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary they are reported in
excess of revenues and expenses in the periods in which they become known. 

Financial instruments  

The Organization recognizes its financial instruments when the Organization becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value.

At initial recognition, the Organization may irrevocably elect to subsequently measure any financial instrument at fair value.  
The Organization has not made such an election during the year.

The Organization subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market at fair value. Fair
value is determined by published price quotations. Investments in equity instruments not quoted in an active market are
subsequently measured at cost less impairment.  All other financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. 

Transaction costs and financing fees directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of financial
instruments subsequently measured at fair value are immediately recognized in operations  for the current period.
Conversely, transaction costs and financing fees are added to the carrying amount for those financial instruments
subsequently measured at amortized cost or cost.
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

3. Cash

Included in cash are amounts due to reserve and trust accounts that are subject to certain restrictions.

Bank accounts earn interest at rates ranging from prime plus 1% to 1.75%
2015 2014

Bank (bank indebtedness) (114,327) 601,382
Internally restricted cash - equipment and repairs 17,479 17,479
Investment cash account 859,386 -

762,538 618,861

4. Short term investments

2015 2014

Money market mutual funds 1,753,452 1,738,454
Guaranteed investment certificate, matured June 21, 2014 - 252,723

1,753,452 1,991,177

5. Accounts receivable  

2015 2014

Resident rents receivables 14,486 28,581
Government remittances receivable 32,926 35,884

47,412 64,465
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

6. Capital assets

2015
Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

Land 132,920 - 132,920
Buildings 3,191,738 1,843,570 1,348,168
Computer equipment 89,865 62,539 27,326
Equipment 2,309,918 1,823,198 486,720

5,724,441 3,729,307 1,995,134

2014
Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

Land 132,920 - 132,920
Buildings 3,191,738 1,763,006 1,428,732
Computer equipment 57,243 55,229 2,014
Equipment 2,194,810 1,777,810 417,000

5,576,711 3,596,045 1,980,666

7. Deferred charges - future employee benefits

Retirement benefits 
Under guidelines produced by Manitoba Health and/or Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA), funding owed to the
Organization related to pre-retirement leave benefits and vacation pay liability is recognized as an out of global budget
accounts receivable for March 31, 2004 and prior years. Funding for employee future benefits incurred subsequent to March
31, 2004 fiscal years are included in the Organization's global funding and were not recorded as a receivable, as Manitoba
Health and/or WRHA had directed all health care facilities to record the future employee benefits liability but not the
corresponding receivable.  Each year since the 2009 fiscal year, Manitoba Health and WRHA agreed to provide funding for
100% of the retirement liability accrued during the year. For the March 31, 2015 fiscal year the Organization incurred an
increase in employee future benefits of $92,000 (2014 - an decrease of $55,675) and a receivable for the same amount was
recorded as a decrease in expense and income as directed by Manitoba Health and the WRHA.  The significant actuarial
assumptions adopted in measuring the Organization's accrued retirement entitlement include a discount rate of 3.15% and
a rate of salary increase of 3.50%.  

The total amount of the liability at March 31, 2015 is $812,000 (2014 - $720,000) and the related receivable is $754,664
(2014 - $662,664).

Pension Plan
The Organization participates in the Health Employees Pension Plan which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan
available to all eligible employees.  The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the individual entities within the related
group.  As a result, individual entities within the related group are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets
and liabilities.  Therefore, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan in accordance with the requirements of
Section 3462 of Part II of the CPA Canada Handbook. Total contributions to the plan on behalf of employees during the
year were $513,121 (2014 - $430,743).  

9



West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

8. Long-term debt

2015 2014

First mortgage payable in monthly instalments of $8,289 including interest at 7.75%, secured
by land and buildings having a net book value of $405,605 (2014 - $407,197), due August 1,
2023. 617,166 666,722

Term loan due on demand bearing interest at prime minus 0.50%, payable in monthly
instalments of $1,485 plus interest, with a renewal date of December 20, 2015, secured with a
general security agreement. Prime rate as at March 31, 2015 is 2.85% (2014 - 3.00%). 63,353 81,173

Term loan due on demand bearing interest at prime minus 0.50%, payable in monthly
instalments of $1,301 plus interest, with a renewal date of December 9, 2015, secured with a
general security agreement. 84,487 100,099

Term loan due on demand bearing interest at prime minus 0.50%, payable in monthly
instalments of $1,542 plus interest, with a renewal date of October 15, 2015, secured with a
general security agreement. 129,515 148,019

Term loan due on demand bearing interest at prime plus 0.25%, payable in monthly
instalments of $4,852 plus interest, with a renewal date of September 30, 2015 secured with a
general security agreement. Principal payments of $58,224 (2014 - $24,260) were paid in the
year and a final advance of $27,654 was made to fully capitalize the loan. 352,020 382,590

1,246,541 1,378,603

Less: current portion 682,000 761,000

564,541 617,603

Principal repayments on long-term debt in each of the next five years, assuming long-term debt subject to refinancing is
renewed, are estimated as follows:

2016 154,000
2017 161,000
2018 169,000
2019 163,000
2020 165,000

9. Deferred contributions

Changes for the year in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

Capital fund Insurance 2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year 899,900 18,632 918,532 815,519
 - Principal repayment 102,046 - 102,046 160,709
 - Equipment replacement 136,761 - 136,761 86,278
 - Major repairs 7,944 - 7,944 7,944
 - Insurance deductible - 2,016 2,016 2,016
Recognized as revenue during the year (159,563) - (159,563) (153,934)

Balance, end of year 987,088 20,648 1,007,736 918,532
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West Park Manor Personal Care Home Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2015

10. Internally restricted net assets

2015 2014

Non-operating income reserve
  Balance, beginning of year 632,771 631,766
     Interest 34,675 12,913
     Other (1,360) (1,490)
     Payments/expenditures (3,929) (8,024)
     Transfer to reserve funds - (2,394)

  Balance, end of year 662,157 632,771
Reserve for major repairs 28,233 28,233
Reserve for employee benefits 367,951 315,023

1,058,341 976,027

These net assets have been restricted by the Board of Directors.  The use of such assets is at the discretion of the Board of
Directors. 

11. Transfers

During the year, the Board of Directors approved a transfer to the internally restricted fund to be used for future employee
benefits.

12. Financial instruments

The Organization, as part of its operations, carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the
Organization is not exposed to significant interest, currency, credit, liquidity or other price risks arising from these financial
instruments except as otherwise disclosed.

Credit concentration

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Personal Care Home to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
trade accounts receivable and receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA).

Market risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign currency risk), whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market. The Organization’s investments in mutual funds exposes the Organization to price risk as these
investments are subject to price changes in an open market due to a variety of reasons including changes in market rates of
interest, general economic indicators and restrictions on credit markets.

13. Economic dependence

A significant portion of the Organization's operating funds are provided by Manitoba Health and/or Winnipeg Regional
Health Authority and its ability to continue viable operations is dependent upon maintaining this funding.

14. Year end adjustment

The year end adjustment in the revenues section of the Statement of Operations represents the difference in the funding
budget and the actual funding for residential charges received from residents and the actual medical remuneration
payments made to physicians. The amount has been set up as a payable to WRHA.
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 RESEARCH MANITOBA
Statement of Operations and Fund Balance

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014

Revenue
Province of Manitoba
    Jobs and the Economy $ 12,184,300 $ 6,002,600
    Health - 2,000,000
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 1,100,000 1,100,000
Other funding 63,600 5,500
Grants returned/rescinded 175,023 335,986
Investment income 136,109 139,945

13,659,032 9,584,031

Add deferred revenue, beginning of year 5,558,570 4,823,679
Less deferred revenue, end the year 3,265,250 5,558,570

15,952,352 8,849,140

Expenditures
Administration (Page 12) 1,076,110 907,206
Health Research Personnel awards 1,416,250 1,528,985
Health Research grants 4,297,681 4,091,796
MS grants and awards 1,948,712 1,190,109
Applied Health Services 419,609 75,000
George and Fay Yee Centre for 
   Healthcare Innovation Support Unit 1,000,000 1,000,000
Research and Infrastructure Grants 3,795,982 -
Health Research Initiative (HRI) 2,000,000 -

15,954,344 8,793,096

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures for the year (1,992) 56,044

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,137,960 1,081,916

Fund balance, end of year $ 1,135,968 $ 1,137,960

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 4



RESEARCH MANITOBA
 Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year $ (1,992) $ 56,044
Adjustments for

Amortization of capital assets 5,965 5,588

3,973 61,632
Changes in non-cash working capital balances

Accounts receivable (7,569) (12,088)
Accrued interest receivable 11,239 (4,540)
Deposit 500 -
Prepaid expenses (171) -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,602,447 (21,936)
Deferred revenue (2,293,320) 734,891
Research grants payable (1,042,286) 1,756,224

(1,725,187) 2,514,183

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (13,092) (1,183)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
during the year (1,738,279) 2,513,000

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8,775,865 6,262,865

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 7,037,586 $ 8,775,865

Represented by
Cash and bank $ 1,153,375 $ 737,134
Short-term investment 5,884,211 8,038,731

$ 7,037,586 $ 8,775,865

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 5



RESEARCH MANITOBA
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2014

1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of the Organization

Research Manitoba was originally established by The Manitoba Health Research Council Act
to promote and assist basic, clinical and applied research in the health sciences in Manitoba.
It was continued under The Research Manitoba Act in 2014 to promote and support, and
coordinate funding of, research in the health, natural and social sciences, engineering and the
humanities in Manitoba. Research Manitoba is a registered charity and is exempt from tax
under the Income Tax Act.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the Canadian public sector accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations as established by the Public Sector Accounting
Board.  

Revenue Recognition

The organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Grant revenue is
reflected in income in the period in which the grant is received or becomes receivable and in
accordance with the terms of the applicable funding agreements, where there are restrictions
related to when the related expenditures are incurred as outlined below. Interest income is
recognized as revenue when earned and is allocated to the General Fund.

The General Research Funds - General research grants are charged to expenditures in the
year the funding is committed for, by the Board. Research grants returned to or rescinded by
the organization are recorded as revenues when received or rescinded.

The Applied Health Services Research funds - Research Manitoba is partnering with
Manitoba Health, the regional health authorities and the George and Fay Yee Centre for
Healthcare Innovation (CHI) to support applied health services research which is relevant to
the health system in Manitoba and to support collaborations between policy makers, service
providers and researchers interested in working together to address health system
challenges.

Funding through this initiative will provide grants-in-aid of research, designed to defray the
normal direct costs of research including, among others, personnel costs, supplies and
expendable materials, equipment, computer costs and publication costs.  The maximum
amount of funding awarded will be $200,000 over a 2-year period.
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RESEARCH MANITOBA
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2014

1.     Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash and bank, a short-term
investment in a cash savings account that can be redeemed at the organization's request, and
a bank overdraft.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization, based on the
estimated useful life of the asset, is calculated as 20% per year for 5 years. Any changes to
this policy will be Board approved. The amortization for purchases prior to this fiscal year will
continue to be calculated as follows:

Office and computer equipment  20% diminishing balance basis
Computer equipment for review committees 33.3% diminishing balance basis

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. Cash has been
designated to be in the fair value category. All other financial instruments are reported at cost
or amortized cost less impairment, if applicable. Financial assets are tested for impairment
when changes in circumstances indicate the asset could be impaired. Transaction costs on
the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed for those items
remeasured at fair value at each balance sheet date and charged to the financial instrument
for those measured at amortized cost. Due to the nature of the financial instruments held by
Research Manitoba, there are no unrealized gains or losses, and therefore a statement of
remeasurement gains and losses are not required for these financial statements.

Grants and Awards

All grants and awards and their renewals are recorded as an expenditure in the year they are
committed for.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.
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RESEARCH MANITOBA
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2014

2. Short-term Investment
2015 2014 

Steinbach Credit Union, charity regular savings
account, 1.85%, no maturity date. $ 5,884,211 $ 8,038,731

The fair value of the short-term investment approximates the carrying value.

3. Accounts Receivable

2015 2014 

Miscellaneous receivables $ 25,024 $ 21,981
Goods and Services Tax receivable 12,325 7,799

$ 37,349 $ 29,780

4. Capital Assets          
2015 2014

Accumulated) Accumulated
Cost) Amortization Cost Amortization

Office equipment $ 34,151 $ 15,206 $ 21,059 $ 13,151
Computer equipment 49,007 34,192 49,007 30,282

$ 83,158 $ 49,398 $ 70,066 $ 43,433

Cost less accumulated amortization $ 33,760 $ 26,633

5. Deferred Revenue        

Revenue of $5,000,000, received from Manitoba Health at the end of March, 2011, is
intended to fund clinical research into whether the chronic cerebrospinal venous insufficiency
treatment is a safe, effective treatment for Multiple Sclerosis patients. The MS awards made
to date include funding of clinical trials undertaken by a research team in Manitoba in
partnership with the Canadian Institutes of Health Research, The Canadian Multiple Sclerosis
Monitoring System and the Manitoba Centre for Advanced Cell and Tissue Therapies (stem
cells).  During the current year, $1,948,712 of these funds were utilized (for a cumulative total
of $3,240,142) and future commitments of $1,018,278 were made. The unexpended balance
at March 31, 2015 is $1,759,858.

8



RESEARCH MANITOBA
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2014

5. Deferred Revenue (continued)

Revenue received from the WRHA in the amount of $2,000,000 is intended to support
research that will have an impact on the health of individuals, the health of populations and
communities, decisions about government health policy, health system organization and
healthcare delivery. Funding is awarded up to $200,000 over 2 years. During the current year,
$419,608 of these funds were utilized (for a cumulative total of $494,609) and the
unexpended balance at March 31, 2015 is $1,505,392.

6. Pension Benefits

Employees of Research Manitoba are eligible for pension benefits in accordance with the
provisions of the Civil Service Superannuation Act (CSSA), administered by the Civil Service
Superannuation Board (CSSB). The CSSA established a defined benefit plan to provide
benefits to employees of the Manitoba Civil Service and to participating agencies of the
Government, including Research Manitoba, through the Civil Service Superannuation Fund
(CSSF).  Effective April 1, 2012, pursuant to an agreement with the Province of Manitoba,
Research Manitoba transferred to the Province the pension liability for its employees.

Commencing April 1, 2012, Research Manitoba was required to pay to the Province the
employees' current pension contributions. The plan is funded by the organization's employees
at rates of 6.6% to 8.5% of the employees' salary.  The organization is required to match at
rates of 5.6% to 7.5% of the employees' salary.  The amount contributed by Research
Manitoba for 2015 was $32,660 and the employee share was $32,660. Under this agreement,
the organization has no further pension liability.

9



RESEARCH MANITOBA
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2014

7. Commitments         

Research Manitoba has committed grants and awards under the General Research funds,
MS funds and S Patient Oriented Research funds as follows:

Research
General

Year funds MS funds SPOR funds Total

2016 $ 3,188,089 $ 828,535 $ 1,000,000 $ 5,016,624
2017 1,182,018 642,700 1,000,000 2,824,718
2018 450,000 125,000 1,000,000 1,575,000
2019 450,000 93,750 - 543,750

Total $ 5,270,107 $ 1,689,985 $ 3,000,000 $ 9,960,092

Commitments of future years of all the funds are not recorded as an expenditure in the year of
commitment, they are recorded as an expenditure in the year they are committed for. These
commitments will be funded as follows:

Current General Research Fund Balance $ 1,135,968
Deferred revenue 3,265,250
Future Province of Manitoba grants 5,558,874

$ 9,960,092

8. Related Party Transactions      

Research Manitoba is related to all Province of Manitoba departments and agencies. During
the year, Research Manitoba had the following transactions with related organizations:

2015 2014 

Grant revenue $ 13,284,300 $ 9,102,600

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related
parties.

9. Economic Dependence        

Research Manitoba relies almost entirely on grants from the Province of Manitoba.

10



RESEARCH MANITOBA
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2014

10. Financial Instrument Risks

General Objectives, Policies, and Processes

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the determination of the organization’s
risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them,
it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure effective
implementation of the objectives and policies to the organization’s Chief Executive Officer.
The Board of Directors receives quarterly reports from the organization’s Chief Executive
Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness of the processes put in place and the
appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets.

The organization’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, including credit
risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk,
policies or procedures used to manage financial instrument risks.

Interest Rate Risk

The organization is exposed to interest rate risk arising from the possibility that changes in
interest rates will affect the cash flows related to its investments. The organization’s objective
is to minimize interest rate risk by locking in fixed rates on its investments when possible.

At March 31, 2015, a 1% move in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, could
impact the interest revenue of the investments by $58,800 (2014 - $80,000). These changes
would be recognized in the statement of operations.

Credit Risk

The organization is exposed to credit risk through the possibility of non-collection of its
accounts receivable. The majority of the organization's receivables are from government
entities which minimizes the risk of non-collection. The organization also makes sure it meets
all the eligibility criteria for the amounts to ensure they will collect the amounts outstanding.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the organization will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The organization has a planning and budgeting process in place to help
determine the funds required to support the organization’s normal operating requirements on
an ongoing basis. The organization ensures that there are sufficient funds to meet its short-
term requirements, taking into account its anticipated cash flows from operations and its
holdings of cash and cash equivalents. 
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RESEARCH MANITOBA
Schedule of Administrative Expenses

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Accounting and audit $ 9,882 $ 7,801
Amortization 5,965 5,588
Bank charges and interest 1,580 1,507
Communications and information technology 65,819 71,384
Conferences, meetings and travel 36,459 28,183
Consulting and professional fees 22,357 22,386
Council and committee expenses 5,974 5,739
Delivery 1,569 2,056
GST expense 2,639 -
Insurance 4,888 4,561
Marketing 60,596 49,636
Office space 57,555 42,372
Parking 1,106 2,175
Printing, stationery and office supplies 22,934 11,098
Repairs and maintenance 2,851 1,563
Reviewer's expenses 36,123 20,259
Salaries and benefits 728,040 619,660
Workshops and training 9,773 11,238

$ 1,076,110 $ 907,206
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Independent Auditor's Report 

 

To the Members of TRAVEL MANITOBA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TRAVEL MANITOBA, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015 and the statements of operations, changes in 
net assets, remeasurement gains, and cash flows for the  then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of TRAVEL MANITOBA as at March 31, 2015 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Accountants 

Winnipeg, Manitoba 
June 16, 2015 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TRAVEL MANITOBA 
Statement of Financial Position 

As at March 31 2015 2014 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and short-term deposits (Note 2) $ 1,975,338  $ 1,662,949  
Trade accounts receivable 290,793  277,606  
Prepaid expenses 98,585  44,187  

2,364,716  1,984,742  

Due from the Province of Manitoba (Note 3) 78,532  94,647  

Capital assets (Note 4) 86,968  131,048  

$ 2,530,216  $ 2,210,437  

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,409,897  $ 1,142,114  
Deferred revenue 279,070  333,608  

1,688,967  1,475,722  

Retirement allowances and other benefits 
payable (Note 5) 531,142  484,148  

2,220,109  1,959,870  

Contingencies and commitments (Note 7) 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 135,954  44,147  
Restricted for purchase of capital assets 75,000  75,000  
Invested in capital assets 86,968  131,048  

297,922  250,195  

Accumulated remeasurement gains 12,185  372  

310,107  250,567  

$ 2,530,216  $ 2,210,437  

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors: 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TRAVEL MANITOBA
Statement of Operations 

For the year ended March 31 2015 2014 

Revenue 
Province of Manitoba 

Operating $ 7,471,000  $ 7,471,000  
Other initiatives - Federal and provincial funding 485,000  300,000  
Partnership and leveraged marketing 1,142,664  561,292  
Other 17,473  49,476  

9,116,137  8,381,768  

Expenses 
Marketing and industry relations 7,144,738  6,877,000  
Visitor services 1,011,761  996,954  
Corporate services 900,045  882,770  
Amortization 11,866  12,365  

9,068,410  8,769,089  

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses for the year $ 47,727  $ (387,321)  



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TRAVEL MANITOBA 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

For the year ended March 31, 2015 

 Restricted  
  for Purchase  Invested  

  of Capital  in Capital  2015 2014 

 Unrestricted  Assets  Assets  Total  Total  
 

Net assets, beginning of year $ 44,147  $ 75,000  $ 131,048  $ 250,195  $ 637,516  

Excess (deficiency) of revenue  
 over expenses for the year  96,417   -   (48,690)   47,727   (387,321)  

Interfund Transfers 

Acquisition of capital assets 
($6,921 in 2014)  (4,610)   -   4,610   -   -  

 
Net assets, end of year  $ 135,954  $ 75,000  $ 86,968  $ 297,922  $ 250,195  
 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TRAVEL MANITOBA 

Statement of Remeasurement Gains 

For the year ended March 31 2015  2014  

Accumulated remeasurement gains, beginning of year $ 372  $ 1,206  

Unrealized gain (loss) attributable to foreign exchange  11,813   (834)  
 
Accumulated remeasurement gains, end of year $ 12,185  $ 372  
 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TRAVEL MANITOBA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended March 31 2015  2014  

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses for the year $ 47,727  $ (387,321)  
Adjustment for non cash items 

Amortization  11,866   12,365  
Loss on disposal of capital assets  36,824   -  
Unrealized remeasurement (loss) gain  11,813   (834)  

 

  108,230   (375,790)  
Changes in non-cash working capital 

Trade accounts receivable  (13,187)   447,388  
Prepaid expenses  (54,398)   (26,597)  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  267,783   197,702  
Deferred revenue  (54,538)   185,827  
Due from Province of Manitoba  16,115   3,346  
Retirement allowances and other benefits payable  46,994   47,216  

 
  316,999   479,092  
 
Cash Flows from Financing and Investing Activities  -   -  
 
Cash Flows from Capital Activities 

Acquisition of capital assets  (4,610)   (6,921)  
 
Net increase in cash and short-term deposits  312,389   472,171  

Cash and short-term deposits, beginning of year  1,662,949   1,190,778  
 
Cash and short-term deposits, end of year $ 1,975,338  $ 1,662,949  
 



 

TRAVEL MANITOBA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2015 
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1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 a.  Nature of the Organization 

Travel Manitoba was created as a Crown Corporation on April 1, 2005 under The Travel 
Manitoba Act as the culmination of extensive consultation and leadership from both the 
tourism industry and the provincial government. Travel Manitoba's mission is to grow 
tourism revenues by harnessing the collective investment in tourism to create strong 
connections between visitors and Manitoba's unique experiences. Travel Manitoba 
collaborates closely and in partnership with the tourism industry and governments to attract 
visitors to Manitoba, sustaining and creating jobs and businesses in the tourism sector in 
the province. 

Travel Manitoba receives core funding from the Province of Manitoba to facilitate 
operations and to mobilize public and private resources to further foster the growth and 
professionalism of the tourism industry in Manitoba. Travel Manitoba is economically 
dependent on the Province of Manitoba because it derives a significant portion of its 
revenue from the Province of Manitoba. 

b.  Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Organization are the responsibility of management. They 
have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for 
government not-for-profit organizations as established by the Public Sector Accounting 
Board. 

c.  Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements have been prepared using Canadian public sector accounting 
standards for government not-for-profit organizations. 

d.  Cash and Short-term Deposits 

Cash and short-term deposits consist of cash and short-term deposits with a duration of 
less than ninety days from the date of acquisition. 

e.  Contributions Receivable 

Contributions receivable are recognized as an asset when the amounts to be received can 
be reasonably estimated and ultimate collection is reasonably assured. 



 

TRAVEL MANITOBA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2015 
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1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

f.  Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent 
periods, equities traded in an active market and derivatives are reported at fair value, with 
any unrealized gains and losses reported in the statement of remeasurement gains and 
losses. All bonds and guaranteed investment certificates have been designated to be in the 
fair value category, with gains and losses reported in the statement of remeasurement 
gains and losses. All other financial instruments are reported at cost or amortized cost less 
impairment, if applicable. Financial assets are tested for impairment when changes in 
circumstances indicate the asset could be impaired. Transaction costs on the acquisition, 
sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed for those items remeasured at fair 
value at each statement of financial position date and charged to the financial instrument 
for those measured at amortized cost. 

g.  Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and are amortized on a 
declining balance basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets at the following rates: 

Computer hardware   30% 
Computer software  30% 
Furniture and equipment  5% 
Leasehold improvements  5% 

h.  Retirement Allowances and Post-Employment Benefits 

The Organization provides retirement allowance and pension benefits to its employees.  

Retirement allowances are provided to certain qualifying employees. The benefits are 
provided under a final pay plan. The costs of benefits earned by employees are charged to 
expenses as services are rendered. The costs are actuarially determined using the 
projected benefit method and reflect management's best estimates of the length of service, 
salary increases and ages at which employees will retire. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognized in income immediately.  

Employees of the Organization are provided pension benefits by the Civil Service 
Superannuation Fund ("the Fund"). Under paragraph 6 of the Civil Service Superannuation 
Act, the Organization is described as a "matching employer" and its contribution toward the 
pension benefits is limited to matching the employees' contributions to the Fund. 

In addition, an individual has entitlement to enhanced pension benefits. The plan is based 
on final pay and is indexed. The cost of the benefits earned by the employee is charged to 
expenses as services are rendered. The cost is actuarially determined using the projected 
benefit method and reflects management's best estimate of salary increases and the age 
at which the employee will retire. 
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1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

h.  Retirement Allowances and Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

Sick leave benefits that accumulate but do not vest, are determined using present value 
techniques and reflect management‘s best estimate of future cost trends associated with 
such benefits and interest rates. Adjustment to these costs arising from changes in 
estimates and experience gains and losses are amortized to income over the estimated 
average remaining service life of the employee groups on a straight line basis. 

i.  Revenue Recognition 

The Organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Grant 
revenue is recognized in the period earned. Partnership and marketing revenue are 
recognized when services are rendered if the amount to be received can be reasonably 
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

The Organization recognizes revenue arising from non-monetary transactions in the period 
when services have been rendered if the amount to be received can be reasonably 
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

j. Restricted Fund for Acquisition of Capital Assets 

A fund has been established by the Board of Directors in order to finance the future 
acquisition of capital items which are not funded by the Province of Manitoba through the 
provision of operating grants. Charges to the fund will occur at the discretion of the 
President and Chief Executive Officer. Any future redesignation of the fund balance would 
be subject to approval by the Board of Directors. 

k.  Contributed Materials and Services 

Contributed materials and services which are used in the normal course of the 
Organization’s operations and would otherwise have been purchased are recorded at their 
fair value at the date of contribution if fair value can be reasonably estimated.  

l. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards for government not-for-profit organizations requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from management's best 
estimates as additional information becomes available in the future. 
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2. Cash and Short-term Deposits 

The Organization invests all surplus cash into short-term deposits with the Province's 
Treasury Division. These deposits are made up of 30, 60 and 90 day callable term deposits. 

A dedicated account has been established to safeguard $100,000 for the Organization’s 
retirement allowance obligation and enhanced pension benefit costs. Interest earned will be 
retained in the account. 

The Organization has a credit facility to a maximum of $500,000 with interest at prime plus 1% 
(effective rate of 3.85% as at March 31, 2015) which is secured by a general security 
agreement. As at March 31, 2015, the facility remains unused. 

3. Due from the Province of Manitoba 

Upon inception on April 1, 2005, the Organization recorded accumulated severance pay 
benefits receivable and payable of $368,937 transferred from the Province of Manitoba for its 
employees. This receivable, or portion thereof, for the Organization, will be collected by the 
Organization as severance benefits are paid to employees on record as at April 1, 2005.  

During the year, the Organization reduced the receivable from the government in the amount 
of $16,115 related to employees no longer employed by the Organization. The receivable from 
the Province of Manitoba as at March 31, 2015 is $78,532 ($94,647 in 2014). 

4. Capital Assets 

  2015   2014  
 

  Accumulated   Accumulated  
 Cost  Amortization  Cost  Amortization  

 
Computer hardware $ 36,838  $ 22,668  $ 44,551  $ 30,058  
Computer software  31,791   30,439   33,854   29,860  
Furniture and equipment  23,150   6,278   23,150   5,390  
Leasehold improvements  70,724   16,150   123,493   28,692  

 
 $ 162,503  $ 75,535  $ 225,048  $ 94,000  

  
Cost less accumulated amortization  $ 86,968   $ 131,048  
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5. Retirement Allowances and Other Benefits Payable 

Retirement Allowances 

The Organization measures its accrued benefit obligation for each of the retirement allowance 
and enhanced pension benefits as at March 31 of each year. The most recent actuarial 
valuation report for the retirement allowance was at April 1, 2015 and the most recent finalized 
and approved actuarial valuation report for the enhanced pension benefits was at December 
31, 2013.  

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Organization's retirement 
allowance obligation and costs are as follows: 

 2015  2014  
 

Benefit costs for the year ended March 31  
Discount rate 6.00% 6.50% 
Rate of compensation increase 3.75% 3.75% 
Employer contributions $ 198,996  $ 161,827  

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Organization's enhanced 
pension benefit and costs are as follows: 

 2015  2014  
 

Benefit costs for the year ended March 31  
Discount rate 6.50% 6.50% 
Rate of compensation increase 3.75% 3.75% 
Employer contributions $ 12,992  $ 12,820  
Effect of change in assumptions $ -  $ -  
Experience loss/gain adjustment $ -  $ -  

Sick Leave 

Sick leave benefits that accumulate but do not vest, are determined using present value 
techniques and are estimated to be a liability as at March 31, 2015 of $36,000 ($30,200 in 
2014). The amount is not considered to be significant by management, and as such has not 
been recorded as a liability in the financial statement of the Organization. 
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6.    Financial Instrument Risk  

The Organization is exposed to different types of risk in the normal course of operations, 
including credit risk and market risk. The Organization's objective in risk management is to 
optimize the risk return trade-off, within set limits, by applying integrated risk management and 
control strategies, policies and procedures throughout the Organization's activities. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation 
and causes financial loss to another party. Financial instruments which potentially subject the 
Organization to credit risk consist principally of trade accounts receivable, due from the 
Province of Manitoba, and short-term deposits. 

The Organization's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral or 
other credit enhancements is as follows:  

  0-30 Days  31-60 Days  Over 60 Days  
 

Trade accounts receivables 
(net of allowance of $15,000) $ 140,459  $ 53,095  $ 97,240  

Government receivables  -   -   78,532  
 

 $ 140,459  $ 53,095  $ 175,772  
 

Trade Accounts Receivables - The Organization is not exposed to significant credit risk as the 
receivable is spread among a broad client base and payment in full is typically collected when 
it is due. The Organization establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts that represents its 
estimate of potential credit losses. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on 
management’s estimates and assumptions regarding current market conditions, customer 
analysis and historical payment trends. These factors are considered when determining 
whether past due accounts are allowed for or written off.  

Government Receivables - The Organization is not exposed to significant credit risk as 
non-trade receivables are substantially all from provincial and federal governments. 
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6. Financial Instrument Risk Management (continued) 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Organization will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they fall due. The Organization has a planning and budgeting process in place to help 
determine the funds required to support the Organization’s normal operating requirements on 
an ongoing basis. The Organization ensures that there are sufficient funds to meet its 
short-term requirements, taking into account its anticipated cash flows from operations and its 
holdings of cash and cash equivalents. To achieve this aim, it seeks to maintain cash 
balances to meet, at a minimum, expected requirements for a period of at least 90 days. The 
following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual 
cash-flows) of financial liabilities: 

 0-30 Days  31-60 Days  Over 60 Days  
 

Trade accounts payable $ 1,287,152  $ 113,719  $ 9,025  
 

7. Contingencies and Commitments 

The Organization has entered into lease agreements for rental of facilities at various locations 
expiring in June 2035 with total annual payments of $490,200. In addition, the Organization 
has entered into lease agreements for computer equipment and a van expiring in June 2019 
and April 2017, respectively, for total annual payments of $15,100 and $3,200, respectively. 

The Organization has access to a loan guarantee with the Province of Manitoba for 
$1,500,000. The guarantee will enable Travel Manitoba to establish a line of credit up to this 
amount for the purpose of providing advances and profit guarantees as part of bid proposals 
and preparation efforts being undertaken in attracting various events to take place in 
Manitoba. As at March 31, 2015, this line of credit had not been drawn upon.  

8. Non-monetary Transactions 

During the current year, the Organization entered into contracts with exchanges of 
non-monetary services for other non-monetary services with little or no monetary 
consideration involved. These transactions are within normal business activities and were 
done in order to carry out the mandate of the Organization.   

The aggregate amount of all non-monetary transactions in the current year total $124,365 
($35,900 in 2014). 

The Organization has not incurred any gains or losses in the current year with respect to these 
non-monetary transactions. 
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